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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
S8 exXAPABAIRAS ([ KE3XPh |) GEM([ GEM) i 6

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Viva China Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, which together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

In 2020, the lockdowns implemented by various countries against the raging
outbreak of COVID-19 worldwide have dampened economic activities and
consumer sentiment, inevitably posing unprecedented and grave challenges to the
sports industry and retail industry. In addition to the external challenges arising
from the lingering Sino-US tensions, China also faced substantial economic shock
brought on by the pandemic. Fortunately, such adversity at home and abroad had
expedited the establishment of domestic economic circulation which represented
a new economic development pattern and consumption model featuring domestic
and international dual circulations that complement each other. Currently, China
is experiencing an orderly economic recovery following the effective domestic
containment of the pandemic, with its economy characterised by ample

potential and strong resilience. The sports industry and retail industry which are
closely related to the livelihood of the people are still presented with abundant
opportunities for growth. In the short run, the economic stimulating measures
launched by the central government will play an active role in driving the market
demand during different domestic peak seasons of consumption. In the long run,
the strong resilience of China's economic development alongside the pursuit of
better lifestyle consumables and sports experience by consumers will boost the
demand for “sports and lifestyle consumables” and “sports experience”.
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In 2019, the Group fully realised the layout of our two principal businesses: 1)
“sports and lifestyle consumables”, covering investment in and operation of sports
and lifestyle consumables brand projects; and 2) “sports experience”, including
the operation, service provision and investment of sports destinations, sports
competitions and events as well as an e-sports club. Owing to the perseverance
and hard work of the working teams, we are pleased to have witnessed the
consolidation and constant development of our two main businesses in the
Reporting Period. In the future, the Group will make every effort to promote the
development of our two principal businesses in order to provide consumer brand
products of multiple brands as well as a full range of sports experience and
services in a bid to grasp opportunities in the “prime consumer group” market with
huge potential and a younger consumer base.

“Sports and Lifestyle Consumables”

Ever since the outbreak of the pandemic, people have become more aware

of their health condition. Additionally, the Group has been benefited from the
domestic economic circulation pushing forward by China and market opportunities
brought by young consumers. In mid-2020, we have completed the acquisition of
Bossini. Bossini is a well-known lifestyle apparel brand in the industry, with more
than 30 years history in the Greater China region and other parts of Asia. While
we are expanding our existing businesses (including Bossini and LNG brand),

we will also continue to pursue potential M&A opportunities actively for different
types of domestic and international consumable brands. On 15 March 2021,

we announced that we conditionally agreed to subscribe for a majority share
interest of LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited which holds a majority interest
in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”). Clarks brand has a history of nearly two
hundred years. Its main markets cover the United Kingdom, the United States and
many different countries in the world, including the Greater China region. Upon
completion of the transaction, the presence of the Group's sports and lifestyle
consumables business will be further expanded. The Group will make every effort
to develop the business of apparels and footwears brands of Bossini, LNG and
Clarks and is committed to capture the business growth opportunities in the

large consumption market environment arising from the further urbanization and
modernization of the PRC.

“Sports Experience”

In recent years, national fitness policy has been released, which has created

a perfect timing for an in-depth and vibrant development of national fitness
business in China. After the outbreak of the pandemic, people have been putting
more attention to attain a fit and healthy body by doing sports. Therefore, we
have worked to develop high-quality sports destinations in various communities,
and provided professional sports training and services in an effort to proactively
promote national physical fitness, whilst enriching people’s experience and
interactions in our sports destinations. In 2020, we accelerated the expansion of
our sports destinations network to various places nationwide. During the Reporting
Period, the Group managed and operated seven sports parks. For “All Star
Skating Club”, it operates a total of twelve ice-skating rinks in first and second-
tier cities in China, mainly engaging in the provision of ice-skating experience and
training services. Due to the outbreak of pandemic at the beginning of 2020, in
response to the pandemic prevention measures, all sports parks and ice-skating
rinks suspended operation from February to March. As the pandemic in China has
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Chairman’s Statement EEIRE

been under control gradually, the ice-skating rinks have also resumed operation
gradually since April. Currently, business has generally returned to normal. For
sports team and event management business, CBA and streetball league “3+1
Basketball League” were resumed and held in June and September respectively.
And “LNG Esports” was also affected by the pandemic, the spring and summer
tournaments of League of Legends Pro League (LPL) in 2020 were held online
instead. Therefore, the revenue generated from LNG Esports was affected to some
extent. “LNG.M TEAM" was newly formed in September 2020, and achieved an
outstanding performance in Onmyoji arena Pro League (OPL). The team won all
the 22 matches and attained the overall champion of the competition.

During the Reporting Period, the State General Administration of Sports and the
Ministry of Education jointly issued the “Opinions on Deepening the Integration
of Sparts into Education to Promote the Health Development of Youth” ( { B
FMEREHRARESTS VFREEZEMER) ) o include the subject of
physwoal education in the high school and college entrance examinations in order
to enhance the importance of physical education, promote physical education and
training industry as well as the construction of sports facilities. These policies have
created favorable conditions for the development of the sports industry during the
pandemic. We also expect that the Beijing Winter Olympics will provide the winter
sports industry with significant room for development, in particular the demand for
different levels of skating training will grow further. Meanwhile, we look forward
to the rapid increase in consumer sentiment of urban residents bolstered by the
urbanisation in China in the next five to ten years, driving up the utilisation rates
of sports parks and ice-skating venues. We continue to actively expand the sports
destination network. The four sports parks currently under construction are located
across the country and are expected to be completed between 2021 to 2022,

According to the 14th Five-Year Plan issued by the state, China will roll out the
Nationwide Physical Fitness Program, which sets targets to improve the national
physique and optimise the public service system of nationwide physical fitness.
It aims to promote the construction of social sports venues and facilities and
also allow better coverage of fitness trails and other convenient fitness venues
alongside with the development of sports parks according to local conditions.
Adhering to cultural education and professional training, it continues to promote
the development of winter sports as well as the expansion of sports consumption,
and tap into the sports industries including fitness, leisure, and outdoor sports.
We hope to capitalise on this opportunity where nationwide physical fitness is
becoming more popular and to engage more people in more diversified sports
experience by operating sports destinations that are open to the public. It is
expected to benefit the medium to long term development of our business.
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Acknowledgment

The year of 2020 marks the 10th anniversary of Viva China. Consistently
committed to our aspirations, we take it as our mission to integrate sports into
daily life, communication and leisure consumption. In the next decade, adhering
to a firm belief, Viva China will carry forward our visions with prudent steps, and
continue to focus on developing our two principal businesses to offer all-rounded
sports experience, services and consumables to consumer groups in order to
create greater value for Shareholders.

Since the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group has endeavoured to implement
epidemic prevention measures comprehensively to safeguard the health and safety
of employees and customers, and worked side by side with our employees to
overcome every single obstacle and challenge. On behalf of our fellow Board
members, | want to thank our staff for sticking to their posts at all times. | would
also like to extend my heartfelt thanks to our Shareholders and business partners
for their trust, loyalty and support to the Group, and to our management and
business teams for their contribution over the past year.

Li Ning
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
22 March 2021, Hong Kong
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Business Review
¥ OEE

In 2020, the Group constantly made every efforts to develop the strategy of two
principal businesses, operating “sports and lifestyle consumables”, which covers
investment in and preparation for sports, health and leisure-related consumables
projects, and maintaining “sports experience”, which includes the operation,
service provision and investment of sports destinations, sports competitions and
events as well as an e-sports club. During the Reporting Period, while the novel
coronavirus has been sweeping across the world and the trade war between China
and the US has been intensified again, the two major businesses have not been
much affected under the economic internal circulation in China, and the scale of
business has even further expanded.

Sports and Lifestyle Consumables

The apparel consumer market in the PRC has immense market potential. With
the profound experience possessed by the management team of the Group’s
consumables business, we acquired Bossini International Holdings Limited
("Bossini”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Bossini Group”) in late July 2020
to generate economies of scale (including but not limited to marketing, supply
chain solutions and distribution channels) and benefits such as market coverage
with our sports and lifestyle consumables. With the long-established household
name of Bossini in the region, the Group believes that Bossini has the potential
to further promote its brand in China, expanding its regional coverage and seizing
opportunities.

On 15 March 2021, we announced that we conditionally agreed to subscribe

for the majority share interest and acquire the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan of
LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (“SPV") which holds a majority interest

in G&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”). Clarks brand has a history of nearly two
hundred years. Its main markets cover the United Kingdom, the United States and
many different countries in the world, including the Greater China region. Upon
completion of such transaction, the SPV and its subsidiaries (including Clark) will
become indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Clark will further
expand the presence of the Group’s consumables business and create synergy
with the consumables business.

The Group’s “LNG” casual footwear and apparel brand business, which has been
marketed on various online platforms, successfully opened a pop-up store in
Hangzhou in the fourth quarter, making its offline market debut, and its first and
second physical stores were also opened in Chongging and Shanghai in January
and February 2021, respectively. Moreover, the LNG brand cooperates with other
youthful fashion brands and launches authorised products from time to time. For
instance, it worked with “The King’s Avatar” and “Demon Slayer: Kimetsu no
Yaiba" respectively to introduce seasonal crossover products. The LNG brand will
continue to gain its inspiration from the “young generation” which represents user
bases of e-sports, animation and fashion, and create fashion brands featuring
gorgeous visuals and high quality to cater for youngsters of the next generation.

By developing products concerning sports, health and leisure, the Group hopes
to bring more diversity to sports and life experience and thereby generate
consumption opportunities; at the same time, the Group pursues potential M&A
opportunities actively for different types of domestic and international consumer
brands so as to seize the huge potential market of young consumers.
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Sports Experience
Sports Destinations Development

Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres

The Group has been dedicating its effort to participate in the operation and
management of sports destinations, which mainly include Li Ning Sports

Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres. They offered a wide spectrum of localised,
professional and accessible indoor and outdoor venues and facilities for popular
sports and leisure activities. Moreover, sports destinations provide value-added
services, including training, catering, retail and health management, as part of
their consistent efforts to practise the corporate mission of promoting diverse
sports experiences and advocating a healthy sports lifestyle across communities,
whilst creating various sources of revenue for the Group. Due to the outbreak of
pandemic in China during the first half of the year, all sports parks and sports
centres suspended their operation from February to March in 2020 in response
to the national pandemic prevention measures. As the progress in combating the
pandemic became more successful, sports activities have resumed in an orderly
manner. Sports parks and sports centres have also resumed operation since
April. Currently, business has generally returned to normal. During the Reporting
Period, seven Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres are managed and
operated by the Group, including Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, Linyi Li Ning
Sports Centre, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park, Nantong Li Ning Sports
Centre, Tianjin Li Ning Sports Centre, Tianjin Xiging Li Ning Culture and Sports
Centre and Hefei Nanyan Lake Li Ning Sports Park. Tianjin Xiging Li Ning Culture
and Sports Centre and Hefei Nanyan Lake Li Ning Sports Park have officially
commenced operation since September and October in 2020 respectively. There
are currently four sports destination under construction, which are expected to be
completed between 2021 to 2022,
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lce-skating Rinks

The Group’s "All Star Skating Club” is the leading indoor ice-skating chain-brand
in China, engaging in the business of managing and operating ice-skating rinks.
It currently operates an aggregate of 12 ice-skating rinks in first and second-
tier Chinese cities including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Tianjin,
Hangzhou, Suzhou, Wuhan and Haikou. Among which, the Mega branch, the
second ice-skating rink in Shanghai, was opened with great flourish on 25
August 2020, and its business has been operating well within a short period of
time. Covering an average operating area between 1,200 and 3,000 square
metres, the ice-skating rinks are mainly located in districts with high customer
flow, such as large shopping malls in central business districts, with an aim to
provide different communities with localised, accessible and quality indoor ice-
skating rinks. Due to the outbreak of pandemic in China during the first half of
2020, in response to the national pandemic prevention measures, all ice-skating
rinks suspended operation from February to March in 2020. As the pandemic in
China has been under control gradually, the ice-skating rinks have also resumed
operation gradually since April. Currently, business has generally returned to
normal. Apart from providing rental service of venue facilities and winter sports
gears, All Star Skating Club focuses on offering systematic winter sports training
programmes, coaching and interests classes for different age groups and people
at different skill levels. In its training programmes, All Star Skating Club aligns
with the teaching standard of Ice Skating Institute (ISI) as well as the qualification
ranking of International Skating Union (ISU), and has employed a team of
professional coaches comprising retired athletes of national professional teams and
overseas trainers. International partners are also introduced to offer tailor-made
winter sports training programmes and cultural exchange activities. To promote
the winter sports culture around China, All Star Skating Club also sponsors and
undertakes international, national and provincial winter sports competitions and
events from time to time.

Coordination and Investment of Sports Competitions
and Events

“LNG Esports” of the Group was also affected by the pandemic. The spring and
summer tournaments of League of Legends Pro League (LPL) in 2020 were
held online, and hence, the revenue generated from LNG Esports was affected
to some extent. At the end of December 2020, Lee Seung Yong (Nickname:
Tarzan), the former jungler for GRF, joined LNG Esports team as an individual
and is responsible for the jungler position of the team. The Group also widened
LNG Esports team’s brand recognition and developed relevant consumption
opportunities, including various marketing campaigns on social media and the
launch of customised products with other brands. Besides, the LNG Esports
team was arranged to join a number of public charity activities to give back to
community. As a result, the LNG Esports team recorded over 610,000 followers
on its official Weibo account during the Reporting Period. In addition, newly
formed in this year, “LNG.M Team” achieved an outstanding performance in OPL
(Onmyoji arena Pro League). The team won all the 22 matches and attained the
overall champion of the competition.
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Basketball

As affected by the pandemic in the first half year of 2020, a lot of sport activities
have come to a standstill. After half a year, the Group’s “3+1 Basketball League”
was successfully held in August 2020, and matches were held in 11 cities. In
complement with the preventive measures, this year's “3+1 Basketball League”
was held behind closed doors. And yet, it did not weaken fans’ passion for the
league and the live online league has recorded millions of views. Apart from

that, the Group partook in the commercial operation of certain authorisation for
CBA (Chinese Basketball Association), the highest-ranking professional basketball
league in China, by providing sponsorship and marketing-related services during
the Reporting Period.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERSAND SUPPLIERS

Employees, customers and suppliers are crucial to the success of the Group. As
such, the Company has maintained a smooth communication with all stakeholders
to establish mutual trust, in pursuing outstanding environmental, social and
governance performance. The Group adopts a people-oriented approach to
formulate its human resource policy, to provide employees with reasonable
remuneration and welfare and make adjustments when appropriate. Moreover,

in addition to requiring employees to comply with occupational safety rules and
procedures, the Group also cares for the well-being of employees by launching
various staff caring programs for employees to relax. The Group also offers
employees with extensive training programs to enhance their lateral skills, enabling
them to have better development opportunities in the long run. The Group strives
to provide goods and services of the best quality to our customers. By listening to
customers’ feedback, the Group has established effective communication channels,
and maintains a cordial relationship with its customers. The Group believes that
the success of the Group lies in quality of service. Hence, the Group is committed
to building an integrated sports platform featured with spectating and participatory
projects, aiming to meet the needs of our customers with quality sports resources
and involve the public in sports events. The Group is committed to establishing
long-term partnership with suppliers. To maintain a good partnership, it is crucial
to ensure that the products and services offered by suppliers meet the specified
requirements in the first place. Therefore, the Group has established strict
procurement standards and conducted regular quality inspection to maintain the
quality of products and services.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group attaches high importance to
environmental issues. Though the Group is not a high-pollution generated
enterprise, it actively integrates the concepts of environmental protection and
green building into different business segments as practicable as possible.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In order to minimise the environmental, social and governance risks, the Group
operates its business in a manner that satisfies the relevant laws and regulations
in respect of employee benefits, safety and environment. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions where it operates, i.e. the PRC and Hong Kong, in all material
respects. For more information about the measures adopted by the Group for
environmental protection and regulatory compliance during this financial year,
please refer to the environmental, social and governance report of this annual
report.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2021, the world has made phased progress in vaccine
research and development, citizens from different countries have successively
vaccinated at the beginning of the new year, which is expected to bring the
global economic activities back to normal. The 2020 economic data released by
China at the beginning of the year showed that domestic economy remained its
growth, reflecting domestic economic activities are still robust under the epidemic.
However, as the epidemic has not subsided, public travel and consumer demand
have depressed. The Group foresees that in the first year of the 14th Five-Year
Plan in 2021, challenges and opportunities will continue to emerge in various
China industries.

The Group will focus its resources on the development of two major businesses,
“sports and lifestyle consumables” and “sports experience” in order to provide
multi-brands consumer brand products and a full range of sports experiences and
Services.

The Group will concentrate its main resources on the core business of “Multi-
brands Apparels and Footwears”. The Group will further expand its brand operation
team, set up professional online and offline channel operation divisions, invest in
competitive supply chain business which can create the most powerful force for
business development of the Group in the PRC market with target of achieving
rapid growth for the Group’s “Multi-brands Apparels and Footwears” business.
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With the substantial increase in the amount of people doing sports, provinces and
cities have responded positively with the Healthy China initiative, a national policy
to increase investments in e-sports in first-tier cities. Among which, Shanghai is
determined to become the worldwide capital of e-sports. In January 2021, the
city commenced construction of the top international professional e-sports venue
“Shanghai Xinwen E-sports Centre”, which can accommodate 6,000 people and
the investment was estimated to be more than RMB10 billion. China is going to
usher in a number of large-scale traditional sports events, including 2021 FIFA
Club World Cup and 2022 Beijing Olympic Winter Games in the coming years,
which are expected to drive a new national upsurge in sports.

Taking a comprehensive view of the market environment, the pandemic will
continue to have certain impact on the global economy, even the Chinese
economy. The Group will carefully monitor the operating environment and adopt
corresponding measures to ensure stable development of the business. However,
in the foreseeable future, provinces and cities will pay more attention to national
fitness activities and gradually improve the relevant facilities of the sports industry,
which will promote the mass formation of sports groups and pursue a sustainable
healthy lifestyle, which is consistent with the Group 's corporate mission of
promoting a healthy lifestyle and sports culture. This will help the Group to
continuously expand the sports industry, including expanding the network of sports
destinations, organising investment in sports events and enriching the business
layout of sports consumer goods, so as to create a multi-faceted and multi-angle
sports experience for the masses.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s consolidated revenue was
HK$819.0 million (2019: HK$625.0 million), representing an increase of 31.0%.
Revenue from “sports and lifestyle consumables” business was significantly
increased by HK$439.0 million, which was mainly due to the acquisition of Bossini
Group in late July 2020. However, “sports experience” business recorded a
decrease in revenue amounting to HK$245.0 million as outbreak of COVID-19
resulted in the closure of sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks

during February to March 2020 and postponement and cancellation of sports
competitions and events. Moreover, the Group has also faded out the construction
materials business which led to a decrease in revenue of HK$187.4 million.

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$330.8
million (2019: HK$123.2 million), representing an increase of HK$207.6 million
or 168.5% as compared to the previous year. Increase in gross profit was mainly
contributed by the sports and lifestyle consumable business through the acquisition
of Bossini Group.

The Group’s other income and other gains — net for the year amounted to
HK$1,359.1 million (2019: HK$890.6 million). Other income and other

gains — net during the period was mainly attributable to the gain on disposal of
2.85% (2019: 6.8%) of the total issued share capital in Li Ning Co amounting
to HK$1,023.0 million (2019: HK$817.4 million), gain on bargain purchase of
HK$245.3 million (2019: HK$ nil) and government grants of HK$33.2 million
(2019: HK$20.3 million).

Selling and distribution expenses for the year amounted to HK$224.4 million
(2019: HK$47.7 million), representing a significant increase of HK$176.7 million
or 370.4% as compared to the year of 2019. The increase was attributable to
the expenses from i) Bossini Group which was acquired in late July 2020 and i)
ice-skating rinks business which was acquired in December 2019,

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses together with net
impairment gains/(losses) on financial assets (the “Administrative Expenses”)
incurred for the year amounted to HK$453.4 million (2019: HK$355.8 million)
which represented an increase of HK$97.6 million or 27.4% as compared to the
year of 2019. The increase in Administrative Expenses was primarily attributable
to i) the impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets of HK$130.1 million
(2019: HK$31.4 million) due to the unpredictable poor performance of the
business and slower pace of generic growth as a result of outbreak of COVID-19
and ii) expenses of Bossini Group amounting to HK$124.3 million were included
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements since late July 2020; but the
increase was partially offset by i) decrease in impairment loss of trade receivables
and other receivables of HK$82.2 million and i) the absence of impairment loss
of investment in a joint venture (2019: HK$17.4 million) in the current year.
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Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$65.1
million (2019: HK$118.3 million). The decrease in finance costs was primarily
attributable to the re-financing by redemption of convertible notes in December
20719 which bore a higher interest rate.

The Group held approximately 331,202,000 ordinary shares of Li Ning Co Limited
(“Li Ning Co”") and approximately RMB204.2 million registered and paid-up capital
of CITIC Land Co., Ltd (“CITIC Land”") as at 31 December 2020, representing
13.3% equity interests in Li Ning Co and 29% equity interests in CITIC Land,
respectively as well as 35.1% and 5.7% on the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2020, respectively.

Investment costs of Li Ning Co and CITIC Land as at year ended 31 December
2020 were HK$1,699.5 million and HK$381.5 million respectively. Dividend
received from Li Ning Co was HK$56.0 million during the year ended 31
December 2020. Please refer to Note 15 for the fair value of the investments.

Li Ning Co's principal activities include brand development, design, manufacture,
sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories
in the PRC.

CITIC Land’s principal activities include property development and operation;
property management; hotel investment and management; construction project
and facilities contracting and equipment installations; decoration units; landscaping;
property development consultancy.

Li Ning Co and CITIC Land are accounted for as associates of the Group. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted

to include the attributable share of associate’s results based on the financial
statements drawn up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must
be no greater than three months. During the year, the Group shared the results of
Li Ning Co based on its adjusted financial results for the twelve months ended 30
September 2020 adjusted by any significant events or transactions for the period
from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020, There is no non-coterminous
period end for other associates and joint ventures.
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Li Ning Co’s adjusted net profit for the year amounted to HK$1,7771.4 million
(2019: HK$1,492.3 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 18.7%. This
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue and gross profit margin together
with better control over expense of Li Ning Co.

Li Ning Co will continue to promote the strategy of “Single Brand, Multi-
categories, Diversified Channels”, strengthen and improve the core business
focuses, remain devoted to create LI-NING’s experience value, and focus on
enhancing efficiency in order to achieve healthy and sustainable profit growth in
the future. Backed by various favorable policies to support the development of the
sports industry and the consumption upgrade driven by national economic growth,
consumption concept of the general public has changed gradually with more and
more consumers giving great consideration to product innovation and brand value.
Along with the increasingly mature consumption concept, consumption demand

of people will become more refined and diverse, which will pose even more
challenges to the brand and product competitiveness in the market.

Investment in Li Ning Co aligns with the Group’s strategy to expand its business
scope along the sports value chain in the PRC. The long term commitment

to build an integrated platform allows the Group to create synergies and reap
crossover benefits among its various business components to the greatest extent
in the long run, enabling the Group to explore further strategic development
opportunities, including sports marketing and sponsorship opportunities.
Meanwhile, aligned utilisation of resources in hand, including the sports talents
or sports events and sports destinations network, would be promoted between Li
Ning Co and the Group for growing their businesses together as well as possibly
expanding the markets for certain types of sports in China.

CITIC Land's net profit for the year amounted to HK$12.4 million (2019:
HK$10.9 million).

By leveraging the Group’s existing sports resources and the “CITIC Land” brand's
reputation, the Group can strengthen its execution capability in sports destinations
development in the PRC via the redevelopment project in central business district
in Beijing.
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During the year, the Group shared the profits less losses of associates and

joint ventures amounting to HK$266.4 million (2019: HK$342.1 million). The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in contributions from i) Li Ning Co of
HK$13.0 million due to the reduction of shareholding in Li Ning Co and ii) Double
Happiness of HK$61.3 million due to the absence of one-off gain in the current
year.

During the year, the Group has recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders
of HK$1,192.4 million comparing to a net profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$834.4 million for the year 2019.The increase was mainly due to the gain

on disposal of partial interest in an associate (Li Ning Co) of HK$1,023.0 million
(2019: HK$817.4 million) and gain on bargain purchase from the acquisition of
Bossini of HK$245.3 million, but partially offset by the decrease in share of profits
of associates and joint venture amounting to HK$75.7 million in the current year.

SEGMENT
Sports and lifestyle consumables

The Group launched the “sports and lifestyle consumables” business at the end of
2019 to capture opportunities in sports life-related consumer products market in
China.

In the third quarter of 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of approximately
66.5% of the entire issued share capital of Bossini. Bossini Group is engaged in
the retail and distribution of casual wear garments and is a well-known apparel
brand in the industry. Thereafter, Bossini became a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, which bring new sources of revenue for the Group starting from the
third quarter of 2020.

Apart from the acquisition of Bossini Group, the Group officially launched a new
series of apparel and footwear under the “LNG” brand. The target customers

of the “LNG" brand are youngsters. Apart from the existing distributors and
e-commerce platform such as T-mall, JD.com, Wechat Mini Program, the Group
is in discussion with some other distributors to expand its distribution network. The
Group is cautiously monitoring the market and has commenced operation of the
physical retail stores in the first quarter of 2021,

The sports and lifestyle consumables segment generated revenue of HK$439.0
million and recorded an operating loss of HK$93.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Sports Destinations Development

Currently, sports destinations development segment mainly comprises operation
of sports parks, sports centres and ice skating rinks; provision of community
development consultancy; and property development for sales and investment.

The Group has been dedicating its effort to promote a sportive and healthy
lifestyle in the community. Echoing the PRC government’s strategy to promote
nationwide physical fitness, the Group actively seeks cooperation with different
prospective contracting parties, including local governments, property development
and construction companies, and established financial institutions. The Group

has been selecting suitable cooperation opportunities to invest in and operate
potential sports destination projects, including sports centres and sports parks, and
sports-related commercial opportunities that promote healthier living and sports
awareness in the PRC.

The sports destination development segment generated revenue of HK$169.2
million (2019: HK$268.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
represented a decrease of HK$99.4 million or 37.0% as compared to the year

of 2019. The decrease in sports destination development segment's revenue was
mainly attributable to a significant scale down of construction materials business
as a result of adjustment in corporate strategy, which led to a decrease in sales
of construction materials, but partially net off by the increase in operating revenue
of sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks as the Group continues to
expand the sports destination network. The Group’s strategy is to expand its sports
destination network, and expects that more sports destinations and facilities will be
operated by the Group. Taking into account lower than expected revenue due to
the business lockdown as a result of outbreak of COVID-19 which all sports parks,
sports centres and ice-skating rinks were closed from February to March 2020
and they have gradually resumed normal operation since April 2020, this segment
reported an operating loss of HK$12.3 million during the year (2019: operating
loss of HK$70.7 million).

Sports team and event management

The sports team and event management segment continued its business which
encompasses coordination and investments of sports competitions and events,
management and operation of an e-sports club, sports talent management,
and sports-related marketing and consultancy services. For the year ended 31
December 2020, our sports segment generated revenue of HK$210.9 million
(2019: HK$356.4 million), which represents a decrease of HK$145.5 million
or 40.8% as compared to the year of 2019. The decrease in sports team and
event management segment’s revenue was mainly due to the postponement
or cancellation of sports competitions and events as a result of outbreak of
COVID-19. The sports segment recorded an operating loss of HK$6.0 million
(2019: operating profit of HK$22.9 million), which represented a decrease of
126.2%.
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Financial Position

Net assets value of the Group has increased from HK$3,059.6 million as at 31
December 2019 to HK$4,531.3 million as at 31 December 2020. The increase
was mainly due to the gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate (Li Ning
Co) amounting to HK$1,023.0 million during the year.

The total non-current assets of the Group has increased from HK$3,671.7 million
as at 31 December 2019 to HK$3,975.2 million as at 31 December 2020,
which represents an increase of HK$303.5 million. The increase was mainly
resulted from the increase in right-of-use assets and investment properties arisen
from the acquisition of Bossini Group, but partially offset by the disposal of partial
interest in an associate (Li Ning Co) during the year.

Current assets of the Group recorded an increase by HK$1,680.0 million from
HK$1,194.8 million as at the beginning of the year to HK$2,874.8 million

as at the end of the year. The key components of the current assets at the
reporting date were cash and bank balances included restricted bank balances of
HK$1,8671.1 million (2019: HK$652.6 million), trade debtors and bills receivable.
The increase in the Group’s cash and bank balance was mainly due to the
consideration received from the disposal of partial interest in an associate but
partially offset by the payment of special dividend during this year.

The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020 were HK$694.9
million, representing an increase of HK$367.3 million or 112.1% from that as at
31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the key components of non-
current liabilities were bank loan of HK$1,256.0 million (2019: HK$1,256.0
million) and non-current lease liabilities of HK$273.5 million (2019: HK$169.3
million).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group recorded a net cash inflows in operations for the current year of
HK$294.4 million, representing an increase of HK$253.1 million compared to last
year (2019: net cash inflow of HK$41.3 million). The increase in operating cash
inflows was mainly due to the continuous collection of frade debtors. A net cash
inflows in investing activities of HK$1,401.6 million for the current year (2019:
HK$1,595.1 million), representing an decrease of HK$193.5 million compared to
last year. The cash inflows from investing activities in 2019 and 2020 was mainly
due to the proceeds from disposal of partial interest in an associate. A net cash
outflows from financing activities of HK$501.2 million for the current year (2019:
HK$1,354.2 million), representing a decrease of HK$853.0 million compared to
last year. The financing cash outflows in 2020 and 2019 was mainly due to the
dividend payment and payment of lease liabilities. As a result, the cash and cash
equivalent of the Group as at 31 December 2020 increased by HK$1,208.2
million from the beginning of the year.

The Group had banking facilities of HK$1,256.0 million (2019: HK$1,648.5
million), all of which has been utilised (2019: HK$1,256.0 million) as at 31
December 2020. The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 0 (2019: 0.20) as
at 31 December 2020. The Group defines gearing ratio as ratio of net debt over
equity plus net debt in which net debt represents total bank and other borrowings
less cash and bank balances (including restricted bank balances). The current
ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December
2020 was approximately 4.1 (2019: 3.6). The Group’s gearing level and liquidity
position has been maintained at a healthy level as at the reporting date. It is the
Group’s strategy to maintain a healthy and effective gearing ratio in a range of 0
to 1.
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Financial Management Policy and Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s finance division at its headquarters in Hong Kong manages the
financial risks of the Group. One of the key objectives of the Group’s treasury
policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. It is the Group’s policy not to engage in any high-risk investment activities.
As the Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC, most of the revenue
and trading transactions are settled in either HK$ or RMB. Accordingly, the
majority of the Group’s net current assets were denominated in either HK$ or
RMB. Deposits placed in various banks are mainly denominated in these two
currencies. The Group maintains its proportion of deposits in RMB and HK$ in
line with its future business and investment plans. The policies in place to manage
foreign currency risk have been followed by the Group for several years and are
considered to be effective with the current foreign currency risk still manageable.
The Group has assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has entered
into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk during the year
and as at the reporting date.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, interests in an associate with carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,315.7 million (2019: HK$1,065.1 million) had been charged
as security for a bank borrowing of a subsidiary.

Commitments for Property Development/Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had commitments totalling HK$27.4 million
in relation to capital contribution to the Sports Cultural Industry Fund, associates
and joint ventures and for property development in the PRC which were contracted
but not provided for (2019: HK$590.1 million).

Material Transactions

The Group entered into the following material transactions:

(@ On 1 April 2020, the Group announced the sale of 2.85% of the total
issued share capital in Li Ning Co by way of placing (the “Placing”). The
Placing was completed on 3 April 2020 and all the relevant sale shares
were placed with net proceeds of HK$1,493.5 million received. The
Group’s equity interests in Li Ning Co have decreased from approximately
16.3% to approximately 13.5% immediately after the completion of
Placing. The Placing represented an opportunity to realise part of the
investment by the Group in Li Ning Co. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 13 May 2020.
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On 14 May 2020, Dragon Leap Development Limited (a company with
80% shares held by the Group, “Dragon Leap”) entered into an agreement
which conditionally agreed to acquire 1,093,091,098 shares of Bossini,

a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the issued
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 592), representing approximately 66.6% of the entire issued share
capital of Bossini as at 14 May 2020. The consideration for the transaction
was HK$46,620,000. The acquisition was completed in July 2020 and
thereafter, Bossini became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
Following completion, Dragon Leap owns approximately 66.6% of the
entire issued share capital of Bossini and is required to make a mandatory
unconditional cash offer for all the issued shares of Bossini (other than
those already owned or agreed to be acquired by Dragon Leap and parties
acting in concert with it) and an offer to cancel all outstanding share options
of Bossini (collectively, the “Offers”). The Offers were closed on 14 August
2020 and the Group holds approximately 66.5% of the total number of
issued shares of Bossini immediately after the close of the Offers.

Bossini and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the retail and
distribution of casual wear garments. Over the past two decades, Bossini
has rapidly established an extensive international operating platform and
distribution network that extended to a total of 287 directly managed stores
and 799 export franchised stores in 30 different countries and regions

as at 31 December 2019. With the established operating track record of
the Group in the PRC over the last decade, its core businesses have laid

a solid foundation for the Group in the sports-related sector market in the
PRC. The Group believes that the apparel consumer market in the PRC
has immense market potentials given the increasing public awareness of
health and well-being lifestyle of the population across all ages. With the
profound experience possessed by the management team of the Group
and also the long established household name of Bossini in the region, the
Board believes that there would be much synergy between the business

of Bossini and that of the Group in penetrating the PRC markets for
Bossini’s products, and the crossover of intergroup products and sales after
completion of the acquisition. Further details of the above were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 14 May 2020, 30 June 2020,

21 July 2020, 24 July 2020 and 14 August 2020, and the circular of the
Company dated 24 June 2020 and the composite and response document
relating to the Offers dated 24 July 2020.

Pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into between
Viva China Consumables Limited (“Viva China Consumables” or the
“Lender”, formerly known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings Limited),

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and LionRock Capital GP
Limited acting in its capacity as the general partner (the “General Partner”)
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of LionRock Capital Partners QiLe L.P. (the “Borrower” or “LionRock”)

on 28 September 2020, the Lender has agreed to provide a facility of
GBP54,000,000 (the “Facility”) to the Borrower at an interest rate of 4%
per annum for financing the acquisition or subscription of equity interests in
a target company by LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (the “SPV"), a
company wholly owned by LionRock.

The Group completed the sale of shares by way of Placing with net
proceeds of approximately HK$1,493.5 million. The Group wishes to fully
utilize its financial resources. Given the Borrower is in need of financing
for making certain investment and the interest income expected to be
generated from the loan agreement is higher than depositing the cash

of the Group into commercial banks, the Group decided to provide
financial assistance to the Borrower which allows the Group to maximize
the return of its financial resources. In addition, the General Partner is an
experienced private equity firm in Asia’s consumer sector with investments
in a wide range of businesses including consumer products, sports and
food and beverages. The Group considered that this would provide a good
opportunity for the Group to establish business relationship with the General
Partner and also to review the investment of the Borrower and explore
participation if appropriate opportunities suitable for the Group shall arise.

On 15 March 2021, the Lender entered into a subscription agreement

(the “Agreement”) with the Borrower and the SPV pursuant to which the
Lender conditionally agreed to subscribe for 510 shares of the SPV at

a subscription price of GBP51,000,000 (the “Subscription Price”, and

the “Subscription”, respectively) and acquire a shareholder’s loan (the
“Purchase Shareholder’s Loan”) from the Borrower at a consideration

of GBP 51,000,000 (the “Consideration”, and the “Shareholder’s Loan
Transaction”, respectively). The Consideration payable by the Lender to the
Borrower shall be deemed to be satisfied at completion of the Subscription
(the “Completion”) by setting off an amount equal to the Consideration
against an outstanding amount of GBP 51,000,000 which has been drawn
down and remains outstanding under the Loan Agreement (the “Outstanding
Amount”). Upon consummation of the Shareholder’s Loan Transaction

at Completion, the Outstanding Amount shall be deemed to have been
irrevocably and unconditionally repaid in full by the Borrower to the Lender
in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement and all unpaid interest
which has been accrued pursuant to the Loan Agreement shall be deemed
irrevocably and unconditionally waived by the Lender. The Subscription
Price payable by the Lender to the target at Completion shall be setting

off an amount equal to the Subscription Price against the Purchase
Shareholder’s Loan, and the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan owed by the SPV
to the Lender (being the new lender of the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan

as from the consummation of the Shareholder's Loan Transaction) shall be
deemed fully paid and satisfied in full and are the Purchase Shareholder’s
Loan shall be terminated.
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The SPV holds a majority interest in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”)
which is principally engaged in wholesaling and retailing of shoes and

trading in the brand name “Clarks”. Upon Completion, the target and

its subsidiaries (including Clark) will become indirect non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 28 September 2020. For details of the Agreement,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 January

2021 and 15 March 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount of loan was

HK$271,874,000 (equivalent to GBP25,726,000). As at the date of this
report, the outstanding amount of loan was HK$568,305,000 (equivalent

to GBP53,776,000).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory provident fund
contributions, medical benefits, housing benefits, education allowances and
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discretionary share options issued based on their contribution to the Group. Staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2020 F+_A=Z+—HILFE  EIRA(BE
amounted to HK$199.8 million (2019: HK$92.6 million). The Group also engages 2 BB ) A199,800,0008 7T( = F — IL4F ¢

professional consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the remuneration 92,600,000/87C) - AEB ML HEEER -

policy which, in turn, would support the business growth of the Group. As at 31 LAREIRSITE A F N 2 FNBUR A AR &
December 2020, the Group employed approximately 2,300 full-time employees BloEKER HN_ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—
(2019: 700) and their remuneration was calculated with reference to the market B AEBBHAL2300% (T —F : 700
rates. Significant increase in staff cost and headcount was mainly due to the Z)2HES BEZHFNHR2EHNSNEE

acquisition of Bossini in late July 2020.

Subsequent Events

(@  On 16 March 2021, Viva China Yangzhou Community Development
Holdings Limited (the “Seller”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the share purchase agreement with Yangzhou

City Huacheng Property Development Limited (the “Buyer”), pursuant to
which the Seller agreed to sell and the Buyer agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital in Yangzhou Viva Property Development Limited at a

consideration of RMB313.69 million.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16

March 2021,

(b)  Pursuant to the Loan Agreement entered into between Viva China

Consumables, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the General
Partner of the Borrower on 28 September 2020, the Lender has agreed
to provide a facility of GBP54,000,000 to the Borrower at an interest rate
of 4% per annum for financing the acquisition or subscription of equity
interests in a target company by the SPV, a company wholly owned by

LionRock.
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On 15 March 2021, the Lender entered into the Agreement with the
Borrower and the SPV pursuant to which the Lender conditionally

agreed to subscribe for 510 shares of the SPV at a subscription price of
GBP51,000,000 and acquire the Purchase Shareholder's Loan from the
Borrower at the Consideration of GBP 51,000,000. The Consideration
payable by the Lender to the Borrower shall be deemed to be satisfied at
Completion by setting off an amount equal to the Consideration against an
Qutstanding Amount of GBP 51,000,000 which has been drawn down and
remains outstanding under the Loan Agreement. Upon consummation of
the Shareholder’s Loan Transaction at Completion, the Outstanding Amount
shall be deemed to have been irrevocably and unconditionally repaid in full
by the Borrower to the Lender in accordance with the terms of the Loan
Agreement and all unpaid interest which has been accrued pursuant to the
Loan Agreement shall be deemed irrevocably and unconditionally waived
by the Lender. The Subscription Price payable by the Lender to the target
at Completion shall be setting off an amount equal to the Subscription
Price against the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan, and the Purchase
Shareholder's Loan owed by the SPV to the Lender (being the new lender
of the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan as from the consummation of the
Shareholder's Loan Transaction) shall be deemed fully paid and satisfied in
full and the Purchase Shareholder's Loan shall be terminated.

The SPV holds a majority interest in Clark which is principally engaged in
wholesaling and retailing of shoes and trading in the brand name “Clarks’.
Upon Completion, the target and its subsidiaries (including Clark) will
become indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 28 September 2020. For details of the Agreement,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 January
2021 and 15 March 2021,

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount of loan was
HK$271,874,000 (equivalent to GBP25,726,000). As at the date of this
report, the outstanding amount of loan was HK$568,305,000 (equivalent
to GBP53,776,000).

Grant of share options by the Company and a non-wholly owned subsidiary (c)

On 18 January 2021, the Company has granted an aggregate of
288,600,000 share options to the directors and certain employees in
respect of their services to the Group in the forthcoming years. The share
options have an exercise price of HK$0.67 per share. 5,800,000 share
options shall vest on 18 January 20271 and shall be exercisable for a
period of two years after vested. The remaining 282,800,000 share
options are subject to a vesting schedule in trenches of one-third each on
18 January 2022, 18 January 2023 and 18 January 2024 respectively
and shall be exercisable for a period of 5 years after vested according to
the respective vesting schedules. The price of the Company’s shares at
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the date of grant was HK$0.67 per share, which was the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of
the options.

Details of the above were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
18 January 2021,

On 5 January 2021, Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 592), has granted an aggregate of 90,000,000 share options
to the directors and certain employees of Bossini in respect of their services
to Bossini Group in the forthcoming years. The share options have an
exercise price of HK$0.460 per share. Each of the one-third of the share
options is exercisable from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026, from

1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 and from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026. The price of Bossini's shares at the date of grant was
HK$0.460 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the options.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini’s announcement dated 5
January 2021,

Proposed rights issue by a non-wholly owned subsidiary

On 5 February 2021, Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 592), proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately
HK$296 million before expense by way of a rights issue of 821,916,697
rights shares at a price of HK$0.360 per rights share on the basis of one
(1) rights share for every two (2) existing shares held by the qualifying
shareholders on the record date.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcement dated 5
February 2021,
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

MR. LI NING

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXEGUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Ning, aged 58, has been the chairman (the “Chairman”), an executive
Director and a member of the executive committee of the Company since June
20710. Mr. Li was also appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee,
the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 15 March 2012,

22 May 2013 and 4 November 2019 respectively. He is a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is the founder of the LI-NING brand. He has
been appointed as an executive director of Li Ning Co* since 4 March 2004 and
is currently its executive chairman. Mr. Li was appointed as interim chief executive
officer of Li Ning Co* on 18 March 2015 and has been re-designated as its joint
chief executive officer with effect from 2 September 2019. Mr. Li is the younger
brother of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive Director and the uncle of Mr. Li
Qilin, who is an executive Director.

Mr. Liis one of the most outstanding athletes in the 20th century. In the 6th
World Cup Gymnastics Competition in 1982, Mr. Li unprecedentedly won six
gold medals in men’s artistic gymnastics events and was named the “Prince of
Gymnastics” (“B812 E ") in the PRC. In the 23rd Los Angeles Olympic Games
in 1984, Mr. Li won three gold, two silver and one bronze medals, making him
the athlete winning the most medals of that Olympic Games. In 1987, Mr. Li
became the Asian member of Athlete’s Commission of the International Olympic
Committee. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Li served as a member of the Men’s
Artistic Gymnastics Technical Committee of the Federation Internationale De
Gymnastique. He is currently an honorary member of the Federation Internationale
De Gymnastique. In 1999, Mr. Li was voted one of the “World's Most Excellent
Athletes in the 20th Century” by the World Sports Correspondent Association.

After retiring from his athlete career in 1989, Mr. Li initiated the idea of LI-NING
brand with the goal of creating the first national sports goods brand in the PRC.
He has dedicated the past over 30 years to the development of the business of
LN Group, achieving great contribution to the development of the sporting goods
industry in the PRC. Mr. Li is the non-executive chairman of LionRock Capital GP
Limited.

Mr. Li holds a bachelor's degree in law from School of Law of Peking University
(bR KE), an executive M.B.A. degree from Guanghua School of Management
of Peking University (At R 22 ¥ ZEE IR 22P5), an honorary doctorate in
technology from Loughborough University in the United Kingdom and an honorary
degree of doctor of humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. In
June 2010, Mr. Li was also conferred honorary fellowship from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Li has also been actively involved in charities via his “Li Ning Foundation” (2=
ZE %) and his genuine support 1o the active and retired Chinese athletes and
coaches in establishing “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation” (7R B4 :8
FEHF EH ), which aims at providing subsidies for further education and
trainings for athletes and to support educational development in impoverished and
remote areas in the PRC. In October 2009, Mr. Li was appointed by the United
Nations World Food Programme (WFP) as "WFP Goodwill Ambassador Against
Hunger”. Mr. Liis an honorary president of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development and a life member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong.

MR. LI CHUNYANG

EXECUTIVE DIRECGTOR

Mr. Li Chunyang, aged 52, is an executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2010 and
is a director of 3EFLLBHLEE B 2R (Jb ) A BR 22 &), Viva China Community
Development Holdings Limited and various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from Peking University in 2004 with a bachelor's degree in Economics.
He was one of the founders of “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation”. In
1989 and 1991, he won the World Gymnastics Championships.

MR. LI QILIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qilin, aged 34, was appointed as a non-executive Director in June 2013,
Mr. Li has been re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director and appointed as a member of the executive committee of the Company
with effect from 13 November 2015, Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2013. Mr.
Li is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li has been a director
of Lead Ahead Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, since June
2010.

Mr. Li has been appointed as a non-executive director of Li Ning Co* since 13
December 2017 and re-designated as its executive director with effect from 19
June 2018,

Mr. Li has considerable experience in financial services industry and was an
analyst of Persistent Asset Management Limited during the period from January
2010 to July 2013. Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive
Director and the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director.
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MR. VICTOR HERRERO

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Victor Herrero, aged 52, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 14 January 20271, Prior to the appointment,
he was a senior advisor of the Company. On 24 July 2020, Mr. Herrero has
been appointed as the chairman and a non-executive director of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Bossini International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code:592), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Herrero has extensive experience in corporate management and business
operations in the consumables industry. From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Herrero served
as the chief executive officer and director of Guess Inc. (listed on New York Stock
Exchange), which is principally engaged in designing, marketing, distributing and
licensing a lifestyle collection of contemporary apparel, denim, handbags, watches,
footwear and other related consumer products around the world. Prior to joining
Guess Inc., Mr. Herrero served as the head of Asia Pacific and managing director
of Greater China of Industria de Diserio Textil, S.A. (Inditex Group), an international
fashion retailer with brands including Zara, Massimo Dutti, Pull & Bear, Bershka
and Stradivarius. Mr. Herrero is a board member of Global Fashion Group S.A.,
(e-commerce fashion site operator and owner of Zalora and The Iconic, the shares
of which are listed on the Frankfurt stock exchange), G-Il Apparel Group, Ltd (US
manufacturer and distributor operating through a portfolio of brands, the shares

of which are listed on NASDAQ), Gruppo Coppel (Mexican consumer finance and
retail conglomerate) and Clarks (British based international shoe manufacturer and
retailer).

Mr. Herrero graduated with a Master of Business Administration from Kellogg
School of Management at Northwestern University in 2003. He obtained a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from ESCP Europe in Paris, France
in 1992 and a Bachelor's of Law Degree from the University of Zaragoza in Spain
in 1993. He was also awarded “Best CEQ in the Sustainable Apparel Industry” in
2018 by the European CEO Magazine.
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MR. MA WING MAN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Ma Wing Man, aged 55, is a non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in June 2010. Mr. Ma
was a member of the nomination committee of the Company during the period
from 2 June 2010 to 15 March 2012. Mr. Ma has over 30 years of experience
in finance and administration. Mr. Ma has been employed by “Li Ning Foundation”
as the financial controller since 2005. From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Ma had been
employed first as accountant and later as financial and accounting manager of
Jianlibao Holdings (H.K.) Company Limited, which was a wholesaler and retailer
of Jianlibao drinks. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Ma was employed as assistant
accountant by Wong's Circuits (PTH) Limited, which was a manufacturer of printed
circuit board and a subsidiary of Wong's International Holdings Limited* (Stock
Code: 0099).

Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (predecessor of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1989 with a diploma in business administration. In 1993,
he obtained a diploma in accounting from School of Professional and Continuing
Education, University of Hong Kong. In 1998, he obtained a professional

diploma for financial controllers & finance directors of foreign investment &
foreign enterprise in China, which was jointly awarded by School of Management
Zhongshan University, China and The Hong Kong Management Association. In
2003, he obtained a bachelor of business administration degree with honours in
accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong.

MR. LI QING

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qing, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director and a member of
both the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Li joined the Group in December 2019. Mr. Li has accumulated over 27 years
of experience in investment and asset management, merge and acquisition and
business operation in Hong Kong and PRC. Mr. Li graduated with an executive
M.B.A degree from Guanghua School of Management of Beijing University (1t 5
AEREEIE L) in 2006.

Mr. Li has been appointed as an executive director of Suzhou Crystal Clear
Chemical Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 300655(SZSE)) in July 2016 and is currently

its chief strategy officer. The shares of this company are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He is currently the chairman of both Jiming Asset Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd and Ma'anshan Jishipujiang Asset Management Co., Ltd. He
was appointed as the general manager of HuaAn Funds Management Limited from
May 2010 to September 2014 and a director of China Investment Information
Services Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Stock Exchange, from
July 2001 to June 2010.
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MR. PAK WAI KEUNG, MARTIN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the audit committee, a member of each of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pak joined the
Group in February 2019. He has accumulated over 25 years of experience in
finance, accounting and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Pak graduated with

a Bachelor of Commerce from the Murdoch University, Australia in 1991 and

a Master of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2009. Mr. Pak is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Mr. Pak has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nan

Nan Resources Enterprise Limited™ (Stock Code: 1229), Convoy Global Holdings
Limited* (Stock Code: 1019) and Dragon Mining Limited™ (Stock Code: 1712)
with effect from 19 September 2017, 8 December 2017 and 5 November 2018
respectively. Mr. Pak was an independent non-executive director of Ta Yang
Group Holdings Limited* (Stock Code: 1991) during the period from 27 April
2016 to 28 October 2018. The shares of these companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. From January 2017 to August 2018, Mr. Pak has
been an independent non-executive director of Trony Solar Holdings Company
Limited, trading of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange has been
suspended since 21 June 2012 and was delisted on 23 August 2018. Since 12
June 2019, Mr. Pak had been an independent non-executive director of China
Huiyuan Juice Group Limited, the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange was cancelled on 18 January 2021,
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MR. WANG YAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 48, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the remuneration committee, and a member of both the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in July
2017. He is currently a director of Sina Corporation (“SINA”, ticker: SINA), the
shares of which are listed on the Nasdag Stock Market in the U.S. In April 1996,
Mr. Wang founded the SRSnet.com division of Beijing Stone Rich Sight Limited
(currently known as Beijing SINA Information Technology Co., Ltd.), one of the
subsidiaries of SINA and served as the head of SRS Internet Group from April
1996 to April 1999, From April 1999 to August 1999, Mr. Wang served as the
executive deputy general manager for production and business development in
China of SINA. From September 1999 to May 2001, Mr. Wang served as the
general manager of China operations of SINA. From June 2001 to May 2003,
Mr. Wang served as the president of SINA. From May 2003 to May 2006, Mr.
Wang served as the chief executive officer of SINA. Since May 2003, Mr. Wang
has served as a director of the board of SINA. From May 2006 to September
2012, Mr. Wang served as the vice chairman, deputy chairman and chairman of
the board of SINA. Mr. Wang obtained a B.A. in Public Law in July 1997 and a
M.A. of Public Law in September 2020 from the Université Paris Il in France.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin, being the executive Directors, are
also the senior management of the Group.
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DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in details
of the Directors’ information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020 are set out below:

RRESERED o HE

BIRGEM R BISE 17 50A(1)1E » RARFE
E-T-FFEXNA=1+HIEANERZHHR
L HEE  EEEREHFBIHIOT

Name Details of Changes

H®A BEFE

Mr. Victor Herrero appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 14 January 2021. Details of his appointment were
disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 14 January 2021

Victor Herrero%t 4 B_Z_—F-ATHAREZERIFNTES - FRREZENFBERARRIBH

BE-—F—AtTHBEZAERE

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange

R BLZ RIS AT _E 7
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Report of the Directors
EFSBIRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) production and
distribution of sports content, management and marketing of sports talents and
provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy services; (i) operation of
sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks; and provision of community
development consultancy; and (iii) development, design and sale of sports and
lifestyle consumables.

The principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the year ended 31 December 2020
is set out in the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review and the Financial
Review of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 109 to 220.

On 11 September 2020, a special dividend of HK$0.0265 per Share was paid
to the Shareholders and an equivalent amount of the special dividend was paid to
the holders of the issued and outstanding convertible bonds of the Company on
an as-converted basis. The Directors did not declare an interim dividend and did
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company recognizes the importance of maximizing return to Shareholders
and believes that driving growth creates significant value to Shareholders. The
Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective of achieving right
balance of the amount of dividend and the amount of profits retained in the
business for various purposes. The Board would consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividend:—

a)  financial results of the Company;

b)  Shareholders’ interests;

c)  general business conditions, strategies and future expansion needs;
d)  the Company’s capital requirements;

) the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its subsidiaries;

e
()  possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the Company; and

(g  other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable
laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 222 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 632,000,000 Shares upon conversion of
the convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$205,400,000 into shares.

Details of the share capital and the perpetual convertible bonds during the year
are set out in Notes 28 and 30 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, save for the Eamn-out Convertible Bonds
and the 2010 Share Option Scheme (as set out in the sections of “Directors’
Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” in this
report), the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement, nor did
any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the year.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders comprising share premium account less accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$274,730,000 (2019: HK$99,324,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 112 to 113 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers (including
LN Group) accounted for approximately 30.2% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 24.6%
of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
31.7% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 20.4% of the total purchases.
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As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to have
personal interest in 139 LN Shares and 3,938,774 unvested restricted LN Shares
under the restricted share award scheme of Li Ning Co, which in aggregate
amounted to 3,938,913 LN Shares and underlying LN Shares (representing
approximately 0.16% shareholding interest in the share capital of Li Ning Co as at
31 December 2020). Mr. Li Ning is also the executive chairman, the joint chief
executive officer and an executive director of Li Ning Co. As at 31 December
2020, Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the
SFO to have personal interest in 645,600 LN Shares and 430,400 unvested
restricted LN Shares under the restricted share award scheme of Li Ning Co,
which in aggregate amounted to 1,076,000 LN Shares and underlying LN Shares
(representing approximately 0.04% shareholding interest in the share capital of Li
Ning Co as at 31 December 2020). He is also an executive director of Li Ning
Co.

Save as disclosed above for the purpose of the Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing
Rules, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands in which the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year.

REDEMPTION OR PURCHASE OR CANCELLATION OF
REDEEMABLE SECURITIES

There was no redemption, purchase or cancellation by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of any redeemable securities of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Chunyang
Mr. Li Qilin
Mr. Chan Ling
(resigned with effect from 23 March 2020)
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor Herrero
(appointed with effect from 14 January 2021)
Mr. Ma Wing Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Qing
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin
Mr. Wang Yan

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Li Qilin and Mr. Pak Wai Keung,
Martin will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves

for re-election in accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the articles of
association of the Company and pursuant to Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Mr. Victor Herrero will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
in accordance with article 112 of the articles of association of the Company.
Further particulars of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent together with
this annual report. All other existing Directors shall continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 29 to 35 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the year are
set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company's or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its
connected entities had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
() Share Option Schemes of the Company
(A) 2010 share option scheme of the Company

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to
adopt a share option scheme (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives to participants to contribute to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit highcalibre employees
and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme include employee,
officer, agent, consultant, business associate or representative of the
Company or any subsidiary or otherwise contributes to the success
of the Group, including any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who, as
the Board or a committee comprising Directors and members of

the senior management of the Company (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human
resources of the Group based on his working experience, knowledge
in the industry and other relevant factors, and subject to such
conditions as the Board or such committee (as the case may be)
may think fit.
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The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition, the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme (the “2010
Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from
time to time, refresh the 2010 Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit
by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in general meeting.
Once refreshed, the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number
of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment

by the Shareholders. The 2010 Share Option Scheme Mandate
Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Shares following the approval of
refreshment by the Shareholders on 16 June 2017.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2010 Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by

the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Board or such committee, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the
Board may otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required
under the 2010 Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board
or such committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Shares on the date of grant of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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The 2010 Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on 29 June 2010 and expired on 29 June
2020. Upon expiry of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no further
share options should be granted thereunder. The share options
granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme which remained
outstanding immediately prior to the expiry of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme shall continued to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the terms of grant and the 2010 Share Option Scheme.

Movement of the share options under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme outstanding as at the end of the reporting year are as
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ERER = g_qi/\ﬁ T
BE®R RN _FT-TFEBRET
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$E<TFT‘*&1I¢M —E-FTF
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follows: FEHmT -
Number of Share Options
BRERE
Cancelled/
Balance as at lapsed during Balance as at
Date of Grant 1. 1 2020 the year 31. 12 2020
R=%= $ R=T= ¢
B —A— RER +ZA=t—
REBH ..Eﬁ% 2/ AW .%%ﬁ%
Directors
o=
LI Ning 20.01.2017 3,000,000 (1,500,000) 1,500,000 1@
LI Chunyang 20.01.2017 10,000,000 (5,000,000 5,000,000 (1)
55
LI Qilin 20.01.2017 43,500,000 (21,750,000) 21,750,000 (1
MA Wing Man 20.01.2017 3,000,000 (1,500,000) 1,500,000 (@
FH kX
59,500,000 (29,750,000) 29,750,000
Other employees
Hitg 8
In aggregate 20.06.2014 1,304,000 @ (1,304,000) -
=) Ef|'
In aggregate 20.01.2017 10,450,000 (5,225,000) 5,225,000 ©
|:| g
In aggregate 15.08.2019 26,000,000 (4,000,000 22,000,000 @
Gl
In aggregate 06.09.2019 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 ©
Gl
77,754,000 (10,529,000) 67,225,000
Other grantees
Hg &R A
In aggregate 20.01.2017 83,900,000 (54,450,000) 29,450,000 ©
A=
==
83,900,000 (54,450,000) 29,450,000
221,154,000 (94,729,000) 126,425,000
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@ The share options as at 1 January 2020 comprised the following: () (1)
1,500,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January
2018 to 19 January 2020; and (i) 1,500,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021,
The number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and
1,500,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020.

(b) The share options as at 1 January 2020 comprised the following: (i)
5,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January
2018 10 19 January 2020; and (i) 5,000,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021.
The number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and
5,000,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020.

(© The share options as at 1 January 2020 comprised the following: (i)
21,750,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January
2018 10 19 January 2020; and (i) 21,750,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021.
The number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and
21,750,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020.

Exercisable period: from 20 June 2017 to 19 June 2020. )

The share options as at 1 January 2020 comprised the following: (i) 3)
5,225,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to

19 January 2020; and (ii) 5,225,000 share options with exercisable period

from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021. The number of share options

under () and (i) of this note was 0 and 5,225,000 respectively as at 31

December 2020.
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The share options as at 1 January 2020 comprised the following: (i)
20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5 September 2019
to 4 September 2021; (i) 2,000,000 share options with exercisable period
from 15 August 2020 to 14 August 2022; (i) 2,000,000 share options
with exercisable period from 15 August 2021 to 14 August 2023; and (i)
2,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 15 August 2022 to
14 August 2024. The nunmber of share options under (), (i), (iii) and (i)
of this note was 20,000,000, 2,000,000, 0 and O respectively as at 31
December 2020.

The share options comprised of the following: () 20,000,000 share options
with exercisable period from 5 September 2020 to 4 September 2022; and
(i) 20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5 September
2027 1o 4 September 2023.

The share options as at 1 January 2020 comprised the following: (i)
41,950,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to
19 January 2020; and (iiy 41,950,000 share options with exercisable period
from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021. The number of share options
under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and 29,450,000 respectively as at 31
December 2020.

The exercise prices of the share options are as follows:

Date of Grant

R-ZE-ZTFE—H—8 - BRE
BEATEHE: TEHAE=Z
—NWERARBE-ZT=-—%N
A M B 2 20,000,00017 B A% #E
HITEHAE—_ZE-_FTFN\A+H
B2 \A+WmWBEZ
2,000,00017 & f& 1 mﬁﬁ%%
—E-—FN\At+HRHEZ
_Eﬂﬂ+mazzmmmﬂﬁ
fetE : RwiTEHE=-Z ==
NA+HREBEZE-_ZE-_WFENAT+
/9 B 22,000,0001) BEPILHE - BA—

T-TFE+-—A=+—8 KKt
S0~ (i) ~ (i) B v TE T BB RS
B % 311420,000,00015 2,000,000
D~ 0 015 o

BRESEATZIE ()T
AZE_TFNARAEC=ZT
_Enﬂ@EZNWNWP%%
o RiITERAE=ZSE=Z—FN
AEREZZT-_=FNLAMAZ
20,000,000/ BB A% #E -

R -_TF— A — B2 ERE

%uTxﬁ(mﬁ%% z
—NF—A=-+HZ— T
—ﬂ+nEZM%mwﬁﬁk
i RTERE-T—NEF—
A-+RAZ-—Z-—%—A+h
H 241,950,000 BB R4 - ARFfTsE
OB BREHENR = =F
FE+-A=+—HH R AR
29,450,00015 ©

BB ZTREENT

Exercise Price per Share (HK$)

R AH BRROITEEGET)
20.06.2014 0.80
20.01.2017 0.80
15.08.2019 0.478
06.09.2019 0.49

No Share options were granted, exercised or cancelled during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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2021 Share Option Scheme of the Company

On 18 January 2021, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
to adopt a new share option scheme (the “2021 Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions that participants have made or may make to the
Group, to provide incentives and/or reward to participants for their
contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
high-calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group. Participants of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or
otherwise contributes to the success of the Group, including any
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive director of
the Company or any subsidiary who, as the Board or a committee
comprising Directors and members of senior management of the
Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute
discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of the Group
who has made important contributions to the development of the
Group based on his work experience, knowledge in the industry and
other relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the Board
or such committee (as the case may be) may think fit. The 2021
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for period of 10 years
commencing on 18 January 2021,
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The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 20271 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition, the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the 2021 Share Option Scheme (the "2021
Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from
time to time, refresh the 2021 Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit
by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in general meeting.
Once refreshed, the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2021 Share
Option Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number
of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment by
the Shareholders. On the basis of 9,496,332,726 Shares in issue
on the date of adoption of the 2021 Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of
share options that may be granted under it is 949,633,272 Shares.
As at the date of this report, the share options available for grant
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme is 661,033,272, representing
6.96% of the existing number of issued Shares.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2021 Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
inissue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’” approval in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by

the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Board or such committee, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the
Board may otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required
under the 20271 Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ FL+E1ZRE R 7]

RITERE - - — F R 2
AR R GHE R E AL B AR T B AT %
HHE R ARITE Z BT B M AR TEE AR
MR TEITZRMEE EE
R AETEBBBIEFDEITR
EEB 230% ° toh - BEITFERE
TE - —FEREEI AR RME
MEMERETZE TRE A
%k%ﬁT%%”Zhﬁ%%v
I:l /\ ﬁ_ﬂ%ﬁz‘*‘— 7 _ 'E'EE%HX
%?ﬂ BErEEZTRMEEZ
10% ([ Z 2 = —FRER T 2 3
EBRI) - AR 7TThLﬂW&
BAG FESKRERENEF—
T FEREEIRELR o —
:—E%%%%Qﬁ%i@—ﬁ
B ATERE-_Z-_—FE
f% HERT 2l R ARR B T E A R A%
PRI TR 2B B A
TETBRMDBRE - BEBELEH
FRTESHBAEKREEENZEAE
BT ENE 2 10% » BIERA =
T - —FERETEIHBREETTY
9,496,332, 726R% f% 17 - 17{F Al gEI&
IR B ER AT RERITR RS
A% 1D 8 B /A949,633 272 %X BX 17 °
RAFRERE  R-_T-—FE
[REERTEITE TR TRE 2 BRES
661,033,272(7 + HHERIRAB BT
&8 B 26.96% °

AT ZTIH HAR AR IR B AR i A
BOY S - —FERETEET
ZEER2BEZRNHHEE @ &
QTT%EHE$ AR EFE T B H
BEITRMD Z1% o [EE—F&
AR U PR 2 BE AR B A AR SR K
SREGIRELE ©

RIBE—T— —FREAE SR LB
Ptz BHRTNE K B BIERT28 B
WIEZ @ - AR AZBRLIE ST
BHIBTZRBANRE - 2R
BRBEzTEHHEZTSNARE
EgET  MARHETSES
RO ABE+5 - RIFESES
STER T —FERE
B\ R E AT R A B
ZBRFEHR -



()

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board
or such committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Shares on the date of grant of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (ili) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary

Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”, which together with its
subsidiaries, the “Bossini Group”), a subsidiary of the Company and shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
592) operates a share option scheme (the “Bossini Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the operations of the Bossini Group and to
enable the Bossini Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Bossini Group.

Eligible participants of the Bossini Share Option Scheme include executive
directors, non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Bossini Group.
and the Bossini Share Option Scheme became effective on 12 November
2013 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.
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The maximum number of ordinary shares in the shares capital of Bossini
(the “Bossini Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Bossini Share Option Scheme and any
other future share option schemes of the Bossini (excluding share options
forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Bossini Share Option Scheme
or any other future share option schemes of Bossini) shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date

of the annual general meeting that the Bossini sought the approval of the
shareholders of the Bossini for the adoption of the Bossini Share Option
Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Bossini Share Option
Scheme was 162,077,939, which represented 10% of the Bossini's
shares in issue at 12 November 2013. As at the date of this report, the
total number of Bossini Shares available for issue under the Bossini Share
Option Scheme is 69,577,939, representing 4.23% of the existing number
of issued Bossini Shares. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each participant in Bossini Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of Bossini
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to its shareholders” approval in a general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of Bossini, or to any of their respective associates, are

subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of

the share options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of Bossini, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of Bossini in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Bossini's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted

is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the share options. Share options granted during the term of the
Bossini Share Option Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to
the end of the 10-year period of the Bossini Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within
the exercise period for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the
expiry of the Bossini Share Option Scheme.
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The following table discloses movements in the share options outstanding

Report of the Directors EESRE
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under the Bossini Share Option Scheme during the year: RITEBRE S E)
Number of sharg options
BREHE
Exercised Exercise price
Category Balance as at during the Cancelled Balance as at Date of grant Exercise period  of share options
of participants 1.1.200 year  during the year 31.12.2020 (note 3) of share options (notg b}
e 3.3 i
i ER: BHag  BBEGEE
SEALER -B-A2kH Exfif Ehit# Phii (Bita) BREARE (Mo
HiS
Der share
BRET
Directors and employees of
Bossini
BHEEERES
In aggregate 240,000 - (240,000 - 4 February 2010 4 February 2017 1o 3 February 2020 0456
a4 “E-FECAMA CT--FCfMAZCECRECACH
360,000 - (380,000 - 4 February 2010 4 February 2012 1o 3 February 2020 0456
CE-EECARMR CE-CECAMRECECRECACA
600,000 - (600,000 - 4 February 2010 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 0456
“E-TF-ARA -CEZAMAZCES-RECACH
2,654,000 - (2,694,000) - 5y 2010 (note cf]) 0503
“R-ZELARR (kc)
4592000 - (4,592,000} - 12 Qctober 2010 12 Qctober 2011 10 11 October 2020 0780
E-SEATIR CE—FTATZAECECEETAT-A
648,000 - (648,000) - 12 ctober 2010 12 Qctober 2012 10 11 October 2020 0780
E-RETATIA ZB-CETATCARCRCRETAT-R
7,320,000 - (7,320,000 - 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 10 11 October 2020 0.780
ZE-SEtATIR CE-CHETATZARCECEETAT-A
10,400,000 - (10,400,000, - 12 Qctober 2010 12 Oclober 2015 10 11 October 2020 0780
E-RETATIA CE-RETATCARCECRETAT-R
82,000 - (62,000 - 3 Janvary 2011 (note cfi) 0922
“E—5-f=H (Kt
54,000 - (54,000 - 4y 2011 (note cfi 0880
“E-—%tAmA (Bt c (i)
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Number of share options
BREHE
Exercised Exercise price
Gategory Balance as at during the Gancelled Balance as at Date of grant Exercise period  of share options
of participants 1.1.2020 year  during the year 31.12.2020 (note 2) of share options (note b)
H-%-%F
Hog-gr ] t=A=t-A BHAE  BBEGER
SEALER -B-A2&h ERfTR ERi# bi i (Bita) BREGRE (Mo
HKS
06 Share
§Rin
Dirgctors and employees of
Bossini
BhEEZRES
n aggregete 20,722,000 - (20,722,000) - 2 December 2013 (note i) 0570
At “F-=%#1ZAZH (Kiztdn)
248,000 - (248,000) - 2 Janvary 2014 (note dfi) 0570
“E-mE-AZA (Riska()
398,000 - (398,000) - 20y 2015 (note i) 0740
i iEal)
40,940,000 - (40,940,000 - 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 049
ZE-RETARE ZE-NETARBECRSETACA
620,000 - (620,000} - 1 June 2017 28 November 2019 fo 31 Mey 2027 0460
ZE-tERR-H ZT-NET-AC/IBE
ECtERA=T-A
816,000 - (816,000) - 3 Octooer 2017 4 October 201910 2 clober 2027 045
“5-+ETAZH “E-NETARAE-ECLETACR
780,000 - (780,000} - 1 December 2017 22 May 2020 10 30 November 2027 04%
Z5-tErZR- CE-RERACTOAE
“RCtET-AZ1E
620,000 - (620,000} - 3y 2018 26 December 20200 2 July 2028 0322
“T-)\§tA=H “TCEE-foABE
“ECNELACE
2500000 (2,500,000) - - 2 January 2019 19 June 2021 10 1 January 2029 0275
“T-15-AZH “E-ERATNRECECNE-F-A
2500000 - (2,500,000} - January 2019 9July 202110 1 January 2029 0275

2
“E-E-AZR CEC-ErANRECECNE-A-B
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Number of share options
EhegA
Exercise price
Gategory Balance asat Exercised during Cancelled during  Balance as at Date of grant Exercise period  of share options
of participants 11,2020 the year the year 312200 note of share options otz D)
R-2-3E ]
i _ t28=t-A BHa  BEEGER
SRALER -f-BekR ERAR EREH Pl (Hits) BRETRY (Hitb)
HKS
0 e
BiRER
Directors and employees of Bossini
BfiEEsRES
In aggregete 1,240,000 - (1,240,000) - 1 Mareh 2019 1 March 2022 1o 28 February 2029 0285
£k CENEZA-B 0 CECIECA-BECECNECAZTE
780,000 - (780,000} - 2y 2019 5 November 202110 1 July 2029 0231
ENECAZR CRC-Er-ARBECECNECA-B
880,000 - (880,000) - 20y 2019 10 December 202110 1 July 209 0231
IENECAZE CRC-ErIATBECECNECA-B
99,994,000 (2500000 (97 494,000) -
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding under the Bossini Share
Option Scheme during the year:

(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

(b)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Bossini's share capital.

(c)  Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual
performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year
corporate goals of the Bossini Group for the 3-year performance
period ended 30 June 2013.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i) From the next business day of publication of the
announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Bossini Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July
2020.

(i)~ From the next business day of publication of the
announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Bossini Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January
2021,

(i)~ From the next business day of publication of the
announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Bossini Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July
2021.
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Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual
performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year
corporate goals of the Bossini Group for the 3-year performance
period ended 30 June 2016.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.

(i)~ From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024,

(i)~ From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025.

Pursuant to the terms of the Bossini Share Option Scheme, in the
event a general offer is made to the shareholders of Bossini, the
share option holders may exercise the share options (to the extent
not already exercised) to its full extent or to the extent specified in
the notice to Bossini in exercise of his or her share options at any
time before the close of such offer (or any revised offer).

No share options were granted under the Bossini Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Shares options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to

vote at shareholders’ meetings.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed

or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors
as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture Eﬂﬁ’&ﬂﬂﬁfﬁ - HEROREREE 2

of the Company B
Number of Shares/
underlying Shares held
Fisks/ HRRHEAE
- Approximate
Nature of interests percentage of
BfitE Number of shareholding
Corporate share options as at 31
Directors Capacity Personal interest interest held © Total interests ~ December 2020
RZF-2F+
ZB=1+-H
P BRES FrsRERH
4 ) HARR AL B BHAE BAt
(a) The Company
LN
Long positions in the ordinary shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debenture of the Company
RARREER ([RG]) - HEROREEZ2HR
Mr. LI Ning Beneficial owner 879,508,000 - 1,500,000
FERE ERfEAA
Interest of controlled corporation - 5812443151 - 6,693,451,1511 70.48%
REGEE RS
Mr. LI Chunyang Beneficial owner 13,067,669 - 5,000,000 18,067,669 0.19%
FEH x4 ERBAA
Mr. LI Qilin Beneficiary of trusts 3,680,022,769 - -
FHEBEE XA
Beneficial owner - - 21,750,000 3,701,772,769 38.98%
ERBEA
Mr. MA Wing Man Beneficial owner 1,544,000 - 1,500,000 3,044,000 0.03%
Bk ERBEEA
(b) Associated Corporation - Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”)
REEE-ERERREEERAT ([8%5E])
Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of Bossini (the “Bossini Shares”)
RERESREEIEIZERR ([2FERYD] ) 2H#E
Mr. Li Ning Interest of controlled corporation - 1,093,839,246 - 1,093,839,246 % 66.54%
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Mr. Li Ning is interested in 6,693,451,151, among which 21,508,000 Shares, the share
options which are exercisable into 1,500,000 Shares and the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$278,850,000 which are convertible into 858,000,000 Shares
are held as personal interest, and is deemed to be interested in the long positions of
5,812,443,151 Shares in aggregate through his interests in Lead Ahead Limited (“Lead
Ahead”), Victory Mind Assets Limited (“Victory Mind Assets”) and Dragon City Management
(PTC) Limited (“Dragon City"), respectively as follows:

(@ the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is owned
as 1o 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of
Lead Ahead;

(b) the long position of 1,680,022,769 Shares is held by Victory Mind Assets which
is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader Holdings Limited (*Ace Leader”) and 38% by
Jumbo Top Group Limited (“Jumbo Top”). All shares of Ace Leader are held by
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee of a discretionary frust. Mr.
Li Ning is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of each of Victory Mind Assets and
Ace Leader; and

(© the long position of 2,000,000,000 Shares is held by Dragon City in its capacity
as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to 60% by TMF and as
to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of separate discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is
the 60% shareholder of Dragon City and a founder of the unit trust and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of
Dragon City.

See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders
and other persons in the share capital of the Company” below.

These represented the share options granted by the Company to the respective Directors, the
details of which are provided in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

Dragon Leap Developments Limited (‘Dragon Leap”) is interested in 1,093,839,246 Bossini
Shares. Dragon Leap is owned as to 80% by Viva China Consumable Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As such, Mr. Li Ning is deemed to be interested
in the same 1,093,839,246 Bossini Shares by virtue of his interests in the Shares of the
Company. As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued share of Bossini was
1,643,833,394.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2020, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to

be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors
as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 October 2012 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Victory Mind
Assets and Dragon City as the vendors (the “Vendors”), the acquisition by the
Company of 266,374,000 LN Shares, representing approximately 25.227% of
the then issued share capital of Li Ning Co was completed in December 2012, for
the aggregate consideration of HK$1,358,507,400, which was satisfied by the
issuance to Victory Mind Assets, one of the Vendors, 1,780,022,769 Shares and
to Dragon City, the other Vendor, unlisted initial convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$780,000,000 (the “Initial Convertible Bonds”) which are convertible
at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share, subject to adjustment
provided under the terms and conditions of the Initial Convertible Bonds. All Initial
Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Shares on 6 June 2014,

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement and the deed dated 30 August 2013
entered into between the Company and the Vendors (the “Deed”), the Company
issued unlisted earn-out convertible bonds (the “Earn-out Convertible Bonds”) in
the principal amount of HK$340,782,000 to Victory Mind Assets and the Earn-out
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$439,218,000 to Dragon City in
November 2013 subject to certain undertaking under which a portion of the Earn-
out Convertible Bonds may be returned to the Company in the event that certain
performance targets of LN Group are not met. The Earn-out Convertible Bonds are
convertible into 2,400,000,000 Shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325
per Share. On 10 April 2017, the condition for releasing the undertaking has
been met and the Company has released all the Earn-out Convertible Bonds held
by the Vendors in accordance with the terms of the Deed.
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Victory Mind Assets is indirectly held by the corporate trustee of two discretionary
frusts, the beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr.

Li Ning, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer,

his brother, Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director. Dragon City is
the trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned by two family trusts, the
beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr. Li Ning, Mr.
Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin. Mr. Li Qilin is the son of Mr. Li Chun and the nephew of
Mr. Li Ning.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Interests and Short Positions of Directors and the Chief Executive in the
Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporation” of this report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any holding company, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any contract of significance or any contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors, the interests
and short positions of the persons (other than the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company are set out below:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares REROREERDZHER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares/underlying shareholdings as at
Capacity Shares held 31 December 2020
R=F=F&F+—
FiERGHER A=+ —BfER
5% 7EE EEAE DL
Substantial Shareholders
FERR
Mr. LI Chun™ Beneficial owner 60,000,000
EmBEAA
S AN Interest of controlled corporation 5,812,443,151
RIEHEE R
5,872,443,157 61.84%
Lead Ahead®? Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382 22.46%
EmEAA
Victory Mind Assets®® Beneficial owner 1,680,022,769 17.69%
EmBEAA
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 1,680,022,769 17.69%
REHEEER
Jumbo Top® Ilterest of controlled corporation 1,680,022,769 17.69%
RIEHEEER
Dragon City® Eustee 2,000,000,000 21.06%
XFEA
TMFO@ Tdrustee 3,680,022,769 38.75%
ZFEA
Other Persons
Hip At
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo® Beneficial owner 288,000,000
B S A EnBA
Interest of spouse 700,000,000
[
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200
REGEEE R
1,000,963,200 10.54%
Ms. LI Ying® Beneficial owner 700,000,000
=y egund EnEBA
Interest of spouse 288,000,000
[ 2
ijerest of controlled corporation 12,963,200
REHEEER
1,000,963,200 10.54%
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Mr. Li Chun is interest in the convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$19,500,000
which are convertible into 60,000,000 Shares are held as personal interest, and is deemed
to be interested in the long positions of 5,812,443,151 Shares in aggregate through his
interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City, respectively as follows:

@ the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is owned
as 10 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun;

(b) the long position of 1,680,022,769 Shares is held by Victory Mind Assets which is
owned as to 57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo Top. All shares of Jumbo Top
are held by TMF in its capacity as trustee of a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Chun is the
settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such 1,680,022,769
Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of the trust and is also therefore deemed to be
interested in such 1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is also a director of each of
Victory Mind Assets and Jumbo Top; and

(© the long position of 2,000,000,000 Shares is held by Dragon City in its capacity
as trustee of a unit frust, the units of which are owned as to 60% by TMF and as
to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of a separate discretionary trust. Mr. Li Qilin is
a beneficiary of one of the said separate trusts and is also therefore deemed to be
interested in such 2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is taken to be interested in
40% of the shares of Dragon City and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is a director of Dragon Cily.

Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his brother, Mr. Li Chun. Mr.
Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.

See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief executive

in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” and note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double counting, it should
be noted that Ace Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are deemed to be interested in the
1,680,022,769 Shares which Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

See note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief executive

in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” and note 1(c) above. TMF is deemed to be interested in the 2,000,000,000
Shares which Dragon City is interested in.
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5. Mr. Zhao Jianguo has personal interest in 288,000,000 Shares and Ms. Li Ying, the
spouse of Mr. Zhao, has personal interest in the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$227,500,000 which are convertible into 700,000,000 Shares. Double Essence Limited
was interested in 12,963,200 Shares and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao and 50% by
Ms. Li respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed above, so far as was known to
the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interests or short position in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on the

basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and it is the Group’s policy

to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system

for measuring employees’ performance against agreed-upon goals with specific
performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an ongoing basis
and a formal evaluation is conducted once a year to review employees’ overall
performance, achievements, and areas in need of improvement. Salary review
would be based on individual’s performance and subject to Group’s discretion.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed
company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job responsibilities
S0 as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and
appropriate. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

The existing share option schemes enable the Company to grant options as an
incentive to directors and eligible participants. Details of the schemes are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” on pages 40 to 53 of this annual
report,

ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY

Pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into between Viva
China Consumables Limited (formerly known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings
Limited and hereinafter referred to as the “Lender”), a wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company and LionRock Capital GP Limited acting in its capacity as the
general partner (the “General Partner”) of LionRock Capital Partners QiLe L.P.
(the “Borrower”), the Lender has agreed to provide a facility of GBP54,000,000
(the “Facility”) to the Borrower at an interest rate of 4% per annum. The General
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Partner is wholly owned by Mr. Tseung Daniel Kar Keung. The single largest
limited partner of the Borrower is LionRock Capital Partners, L.P., the total
contribution of which is not more than 49%. Li Ning Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2331) is a limited partner of LionRock Capital Partners, L.P..

According to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower shall apply all amounts borrowed
under the Facility in or towards (directly or indirectly) financing the acquisition or
subscription of equity interests in any target company (the “Target Company’)
that may be acquired by LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (the “SPV”),

a company wholly owned by the Borrower, from time to time for investment
purposes and any related expenses. The Lender may, at any time in its sole
discretion, request the Borrower to grant security over certain proportion of the
equity interest in the SPV. The parties to the Loan Agreement may agree the
principal amount of a loan together with all outstanding amounts under the Loan
Agreement be converted and/or set off against any subscription amounts payable
by the Lender in order to subscribe for equity in the SPV.

The Borrower may utilise the Facility in no more than 5 drawings within the period
from and including the date of the Loan Agreement to and including 31 December
2020. The initial drawdown date is the date on which the first loan under the
Facility is made or to be made and the final maturity date is 12 months from the
initial drawdown date, or any later date as determined by the Lender in its sole
discretion and notified to the Borrower. The loan together with all accrued interests
shall be repayable in full on the final maturity date. If the Borrower is unable to
provide evidence of application of the loan within four months from the initial
drawdown date, or if the loan is not applied towards the purpose of the loan by
such date (or any later date as determined by the Lender in its sole discretion and
notified to the Borrower), all outstanding loan and other amounts accrued under
the Loan Agreement shall become immediately due and payable unless otherwise
agreed by the Lender. In the event of an occurrence of an event of default under
the Loan Agreement, the Lender may by notice to the Borrower, declare all or any
part of the loan and all outstanding amounts be immediately due and payable. The
Borrower may prepay the principal amount of a loan under the Facility at any time
and from time to time prior to the final maturity date, in whole or in part, together
with accrued and unpaid interests on the principal amount being prepaid, without
penalty or premium.

On 15 March 2021, the Lender entered into a subscription agreement (the
‘Agreement”) with the Borrower and the SPV pursuant to which the Lender
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 510 shares of the SPV at a subscription
price of GBP51,000,000 (the “Subscription Price”, and the “Subscription”,
respectively) and acquire a shareholder’s loan (the “Purchase Shareholder’s Loan”)
from the Borrower at a consideration of GBP51,000,000 (the “Consideration”,
and the “Shareholder’s Loan Transaction”, respectively). The Consideration payable
by the Lender to the Borrower shall be deemed to be satisfied at completion

of the Subscription (the “Completion”) by setting off an amount equal to the
Consideration against an outstanding amount of GBP51,000,000 which has been
drawn down and remains outstanding under the Loan Agreement (the “Outstanding
Amount”). Upon consummation of the Shareholder’s Loan Transaction at
Completion, the Outstanding Amount shall be deemed to have been irrevocably
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and unconditionally repaid in full by the Borrower to the Lender in accordance with
the terms of the Loan Agreement and all unpaid interest which has been accrued
pursuant to the Loan Agreement shall be deemed irrevocably and unconditionally
waived by the Lender. The Subscription Price payable by the Lender to the SPV at
Completion shall be setting off an amount equal to the Subscription Price against
the Purchase Shareholder's Loan, and the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan owed

by the SPV to the Lender (being the new lender of the Purchase Shareholder’s
Loan as from the consummation of the Shareholder’'s Loan Transaction) shall be
deemed fully paid and satisfied in full and the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan shall
be terminated.

The SPV holds a majority interest in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”) which is
principally engaged in wholesaling and retailing of shoes and trading in the brand
name “Clarks”. Upon Completion, the SPV and its subsidiaries (including Clark) will
become indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

For detalls of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 September 2020. For details of the Agreement, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 14 January 2021 and 15 March
2021,

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount of loan was HK$271,840,000
of (equivalent to GBP25,726,000) has been made by the Borrower. As at the
date of this report, the outstanding amount of loan was HK$568,305,000 of
(equivalent to GBP53,776,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is set out on
pages 65 to 77 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Li Ning whose biographical details
are set out on page 29 of this annual report. Mr. Cheung Chi is the company
secretary and the chief financial officer of the Company. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and has over 25 years of experience in financial
management, corporate finance and administrative management.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition to the discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance in the Business Review of this annual report, an environmental,
social and governance report which explains how the Company complies with the
environmental, social and governance reporting guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules is set out on pages 78 to 98 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year 2020 and up to the date of this report, according to the GEM
Listing Rules, the following Directors have interests in the following businesses
which are considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than those businesses where the
Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Company and/or the Group:
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Businesses which are considered to compete or likely to compete with the businesses of the Group

BRAEAEERBEBA AT TRERNRFNRE

Nature of interest of
the Director in the

Name of Director Name of Entity Description of the Entity’s Business Entity
EEnE ERER ERNELEN EENZERNE
b =1
Mr. Li Ning Li Ning Company  mainly engaged in brand marketing, research and development, director and substantial
Limited design, manufacturing, distribution and retail of professional and shareholder (within the

leisure footwear, sport apparels, equipment and accessories under — meaning of the SFO)
the LI-NING brand and other licensed brands
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Mr. Li Qilin Li Ning Company  as disclosed above
Limited
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director and substantial
shareholder (within the
meaning of the SFO)
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Note:

Mr. Li Chun, an elder brother of Mr. Li Ning, the father of Mr. Li Qiin and a substantial shareholder
(within the meaning of the SFO) of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares and
underlying shares of Li Ning Company Limited held by the Company.

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of the board of the above-mentioned
entity and none of the above Directors can control the Board of the Company, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm'’s length from the businesses of
this entity.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best of the Directors” knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, there was
a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Li Ning
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, save
for the disclosure below.

The code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer. Taking into account of Mr. Li's expertise and insight of the
sports field, having these two roles performed by Mr. Li enables more effective
and efficient overall business planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies of the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board, which comprises experienced
and high calibre individuals and adequate independent element in the composition
of the Board, with over one-third of them being independent non-executive
Directors.

In respect of the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors generally should attend

the general meetings of the Company. Due to overseas engagements, two
independent non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 12 June 2020 and the extraordinary general
meeting held on 16 July 2020. One non-executive Director was unable to attend
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16 July 2020 due

to illness, and one independent non-executive Director was unable to attend the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 18 January 2021 due to
overseas engagement.

The application of the relevant principles of the CG Code is stated in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s affairs and
activities with a view to develop its business and to enhance shareholders’ value.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the

management. Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the
Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
management. Important matters include those affecting the Group’s strategic
policies, risk management and internal control systems, major investment and
funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group’s operations.
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The Board currently comprises of three executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”), two non-executive Directors (the “Non-executive Directors”) and three
independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-executive Directors”).
The Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Li Ning has been the Chairman since 2010 and takes the lead to oversee the
Board functions and the direction of the Group. Mr. Li Ning took the role of Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 22 May 2013 to further align the management
expertise of the Board to complement with the Group’s core strategies to pursue
opportunities along the sports value chain.

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The current Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Li Qing, Mr. Pak Wai
Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan. The Independent Non-executive Directors

help the management to formulate the Group's development strategies, ensure
the Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance
with required standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate system
to protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The Company
received the annual confirmation from the Independent Non-executive Directors in
respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Board Composition and Board Processes

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the formulation of strategy,
policies and decision-making by attending the Board meetings in person or

via telephone conference facilities. During regular meetings of the Board, the
Directors discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performance and review the financial results of the Group. Additional
Board meetings may be convened for considering and approving other significant
matters. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval will be
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.
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The composition of the Board together with the information in relation to the EE2HENERARRR_ZE_TFRITL
number of meetings of the Board and each of its committees, namely, the %%ﬁﬁﬁxﬁ,\ =(AEZZEg([8%%

audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the g)) - FHNEE (f#ﬁ@ﬂi Bel) - ’#%
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination z8 %(Hr&%?ﬁﬁJ) ZEg((#17
Committee”) and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), and the ZEg))ERRERELE %/X%&Zﬁ?ﬁéﬂ
general meetings of the Company held during the year 2020 and the attendance UREESHREBRENTE :

of each Director are set out in the following table:

Meetings held in 2020
R-B-E2EET288

Annual  Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive General General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
) B BX
EZe ENZE% HWZEE RAZEE HTZEE  BEAE  BikE
Number of meetings Ve 4 4 1 1 1 1 1
Executive Directors YiTES
Mr. Li Ning ERE
(Chaiman & Chief Erecutie Offcer? (TEETREH) 44 i i i i 11
Mr. Li Chunyang %&aﬁ 44 10 0 i
Mr. Li Qiin? THBAE 414 i 0/ i
Mr. Chan Ling (resigned with effect REXE(B-S-%F
from 23 March 2020) =A _Jr_ H ﬁ_ﬁﬂ ) 0/0 00 00 0/0
Non-executive Directors FuiTES
W, Victor Herrero Victor Herero % 4
(appointed with effect fom 14 January 2021)  (B=EZ—%—A+THEA
EEZH) 00 00 0/0
Mr. Ma Wing Man Sk 44 44 1 0
Independent Non-executive Directors ﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
Mr. Li Qing IREE 44 44 i 0 0
M. Pak Wal Keung, Martin AR®LE 4/4 44 10 1 n i
Mr. Wang Yan i (k3 44 44 10 10 0 0
Notes: BdRE -
1. The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a Director is 1. HEABEERERERE 2B BRENE
entitled to attend. LEBIIRE o
2. Mr. LiQiinis the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an 2. ZTHBRERER  THAHFNTESZE
Executive Director. BHREZET °
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development
programme to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities under the legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has provided the materials on directors’ duties, corporate governance
and updates on regulatory development for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To
summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas to update and
develop their skills and knowledge during the year:

ESCRHEERERE

ARBEBEZ2HEPBERERAS - N
BRNENTERANARB EZRREER
ENZEE -RER - ARAAEZREHEE
MEFHE CXBARSIEARERZM
o SRR FEITREE 2 AN E R SRR
FEEERR -

ARABFEEFEXIFI 2Lk o ¥
T ESERFASEIU TN TENEINIAE
M h R A BRE S AN

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

relevant topics

EEER  ERARER

H i EEE

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) PEEE(FERTBAER) v/
Mr. Li Chunyang THBRE v/
Mr. Li Qilin = e v/
Mr. Chan Ling (resigned with effect from 23 March 2020) PREXE(BZTZF

Z A+ =HBET) N/A 3 BB
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Victor Herrero (appointed with effect from 14 January 2021)  Victor Herreroe £ (B —F = — 4

—At+mBEREZT) N/AT 3 BB
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bk kHE v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Li Qing FRGEE v/
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin SREE:D e v
Mr. Wang Yan RS A 4
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed compliance with the Required Standard during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the same Required
Standard. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee as integral elements of good
corporate governance and to oversee relevant aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The authorities and duties of the committees are set out in their respective terms
of reference. More details of these committees are set out in separate sections in
this report.

The terms of reference adopted by the Board for the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commitiee was established by the Board with written terms
of reference. The current Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Ning,
the Chairman and Executive Director. The other members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Under the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders every three years. A
Director appointed by the Board is subject to election by shareholders at the
first annual general meeting after his appointment in case of the appointment of
additional Director or at the first general meeting after his appointment in case of
filling of casual vacancy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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The Company recognises the importance of board diversity which is beneficial

for the enhancement of the Company’s performance. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with effect from 12 August
20713, which provides that the nomination and appointment of Board members
should be based on meritocracy, taking into considerations of the diversity of
Board members from different aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Nomination Committee’s role includes monitoring the
implementation of the policy and review the same as appropriate.

The Company also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with
effect from 1 January 2019. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to set
guidelines for the administration by the Nomination Committee of the nomination,
evaluation and termination of each member of the Board. The Board shall

be composed of members with balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business development,
strategies, operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the Board
shall possess, be recognized for and be able to exhibit high and professional
standard. The core criteria include gender, age, capability, experience, skill and
knowledge, integrity and ethics, independency and leadership. In the nomination
process, each new candidates shall be considered upon evaluation against the
criteria. According to the nomination procedure, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential new Directors and recommends to the Board
for decision. If appointment is considered by the Board, the appointment shall
be subject to the approval by the Board in accordance with the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Nomination Policy. If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if any) set out in the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy shall also be governed by other
additional and relevant rules under the Company's Memorandum and Article of
Association and the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the nomination, appointment,
election, re-election, retirement, and termination of Directors.

In January 2021, the Company was pleased to welcome Mr. Victor Herrero to the
Board. The extensive experience of Mr. Herrero in corporate management and

business operations in the consumable industry would boost diversity to the Board.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ FL+E1ZRE R 7]

ARBRBAEFELTTIL2ERN - BB
RIEAARRB2RE - EZGCRNESE
REZTBR(EFEZT/IBEK] B
Z—=—F)\A+T-BRER) BETHRETESF
EXREBZIRA LT ERAEAMES BELE
TEREZEXERTRSTEMNZTIL(BRE
BENEMER - Fik - MERHEES - &
Tk - XK - e MBNMREEH)
W imAEBEZBRARE LB RTER
Z  REZBEV/REBRERZIBRZE
FB 0 38 B R T XK ©

ARBNERMELEERR(TREBE]D - 8
“E-NAF-A-HEREXN - REBERAR
FEREQEE  EEREEEFEIKEZ
R’A - AIENMERRIUIES - BEEGAMA
BHEEE - KRN TRER 2K BAK
BYEmANGRE s EBHR - REE - 2E -
RBLEEMSEAE EFSENEAE
ISEEXRREWERSEN - BEEARTH
TEFEREMA - Fik BB - &R
REER AR - MENCERE - Bt REBEE
N e RIRRBIED  EFSREEHMEE
AZEBBRBFELTAERE - RIEIEBEF -
REZESREVEECHESRAESTS
BEAMORE - MEENKESSTARME
B BIREARBAR AESER A&
A GEMEMRBU MR BREE =S
JE o frfREARBCORIESR - BIIRB REER
BRANQBABEREAM LAY - GEMET
BAARREBRAE 2T (INA) - 124
B IFAS AR B EBEIE AWM N ARRI A K
GEMEMRB T EANERTZRSE - R
ER B REURBRZHEMEINAE
BARRIPTRE

RZEZ—F—F - K2 RAEVictor
Herrero B AEINAZE EE o Victor Herreroft &7
EMITH L EERRERELEFANES
KEEE— P REEEENZ L -



Corporate Governance Report IR¥EESiRS

Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity
Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition on behalf
of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In designing and
reviewing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee will consider from

a number of aspects. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board
from perspectives, including gender, age, professional background, business
experience, length of service and directorship with other listed companies. The
Nomination Committee considered that the Board possessed a balance of skill and
expertise and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will
review the composition and diversity of the Board if and when necessary.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2005 with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management. The Board has
adopted the operation model, where the Remuneration Committee has duties to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Yan (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Li Qing and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and one Executive Director, Mr. Li
Ning.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of

the Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by

a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job
responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages of two executive Directors and one independent non-
executive Director.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board with specific terms of
reference. The committee currently comprises three Executive Directors, Mr. Li
Ning (chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin.
The primary duties of the Executive Committee are to propose and implement
business strategies and plans for the Group, monitor the operations of companies
of the Group and approve matters relating to their day-to-day operations.

The Executive Committee is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include the development and review of the Company’s policies

and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors

and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report of the Company. During the year, the members of
the Executive Committee considered and reviewed the compliance of the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Executive Committee also has duty to design, implement and monitor the

risk management and internal control systems and to provide confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed on 17 March 2000 with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, half-year reports, quarterly reports and risk
management and internal control systems and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Li
Qing and Mr. Wang Yan and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Ma Wing Man. This
annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the committee members met together to review the quarterly
reports, half-year report and annual report before submission to the Board. The
chief financial officer of the Company was also invited to attend these meetings

in order to give a full account of the financial statements of the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed (i) the changes in accounting standards and their impact
on the Company’s financial reporting and (i) the risk management and internal
audit plan and reports.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Chi has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company
since November 2018. During the year, Mr. Cheung has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, approved
adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments and
estimates that are appropriate, and prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial reporting are set out
in the independent auditor’'s report on pages 99 to 108 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total fee paid and payable

to PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the audit and non-audit services for

the financial year ended 31 December 2020, amounted to HK$3,910,000

and HK$4,041,000 respectively. The sum for non-audit services included
HK$1,440,000 for the agreed upon procedures performed on the Group's interim
results and quarterly results, HK$2,369,000 for special purpose audit performed
on the acquisition and other agreed upon procedures and HK$232,000 for tax
services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to
review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or l0ss.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged KPMG Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited ("KPMG"), as its risk management and internal control review advisor for
the year ended 31 December 2020, to review the Group’s risk management
system.
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The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group
are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

° Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group's business and
operations.

Risk Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by
the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

° Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and

° Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures
to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

° Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that
appropriate internal control procedures are in place;

° Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in
case of any significant change of situation; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board
regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the
acceptable level and the management will continue to monitor the residual risks
and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment

of the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. KPMG was
engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance
controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management, comments
from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement
from external auditor and risk management and internal control review advisor,
the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the procedures
and internal controls to ensure inside information remains confidential until such
information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information is
made in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders
and the investors. The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with the Shareholders through various means.

Procedures for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting
and for putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with Article 64 of
the Company's articles of association, require an extraordinary general meeting

to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholder(s) may propose a candidate for election as a Director at any general
meetings of the Company by a requisition signed by the Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected in accordance with Article 113 of the Company's articles
of association.

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution at general
meetings and to propose a person for election as a Director are available for
viewing at the Company’s corporate website www.vivachina.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact is as follow:

Address of Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong: Room 3602—-06, 36/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong

Telephone: 37961111

Fax: 37961100

The company secretary of the Company shall forward the Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board, where appropriate to answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Communication with Shareholders

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 12 June 2020 (the
2020 AGM"). A notice convening the 2020 AGM contained in the circular dated
27 March 2020 was despatched to the Shareholders together with the Annual
Report 2019. The Chairman of the Board and members of the committees of the
Company (as appropriate) attended the 2020 AGM to answer the questions from
the Shareholders. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
attended the 2020 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence. The Chairman explained detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
All the resolutions proposed at the 2020 AGM, including (i) the adoption of the
audited financial statements and the reports of the Directors and the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019; (i) the re-election of certain
Directors and the authorisation to the Board to fix the Directors’ remunerations; (i)
the re-appointment of auditor of the Company and the authorisation to the Board
to fix its remuneration; and (iv) the granting to Directors the general mandates to
issue and repurchase Shares, were passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 16 July 2020
(the "EGM 1") to consider the ordinary resolution approving the very substantial
acquisition and mandatory cash offers on securities of Bossini International
Holdings Limited. A notice convening the EGM | contained in the circular dated
24 June 2020 was despatched to the Shareholders. The Chairman made himself
avallable to answer the questions from the Shareholders and explained detailed
procedure for conducting a poll. The ordinary resolution proposed at the EGM |
was passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

Moreover, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 18
January 2021 (the “"EGM II") to consider the ordinary resolution approving the
adoption of new share option scheme of the Company. A notice convening the
EGM Il contained in the circular dated 23 December 2020 was despatched to the
Shareholders. The chairman of the EGM Il made himself available to answer the
questions from the Shareholders and explained detailed procedure for conducting
a poll. The ordinary resolution proposed at the EGM Il was passed by the
Shareholders by way of poll.

The poll results of the 2020 AGM, the EGM I and EGM Il were published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Changes in the Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year 2020.

A notice for the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will

be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
despatched together with the Annual Report 2020 to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
CG Code.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Standard and Scope

This annual Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the ESG
Reporting Guide, Appendix 20 (the "ESG Guide”) of the GEM Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx"). The Group has
complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Guide.

It provides an overview of the Group’s ESG management approach as well
as sustainability initiatives and performance for the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “reporting year”).

To represent and cover operations which have the most significant impacts
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on the Group's environmental and social performance, the following REBRRERANEE  NBMEWNANU
companies are included in this Report: AT

Companies Principal Activities

AT FTEXEKED

Viva China Holdings Limited ° Principal Office

FEAFERERERAR TERER

BMNENLBAESEEBRATE e Man agemem and operation of sports parks and sports centres
BOTENBEEEFRAF BERKEHTLEEREE

BERAHEBEARLF
AEMEEEEXLERAT
AETHEREXLARQF
ARETHEREXCERAREELT

FANEEEERR (LT BRATF

Sports competitions and events production and management

BEESIHRMNER

E-sports club management and operation
EHRALNEERE R EE

Sports-related marketing and consultancy service

85 MARE T 5 1B M R S R TS

ERFENEEEESEELERERARQA

Undertake the overall operamon and management of sports stadiums

BESEERESRNAZRESERE

For a full list of ESG Aspects, respective key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
and their reference within this Report, please refer to the HKEx ESG Guide
Content Index on page 95 to 98 of the Report.

Given data availability, the reporting scope has been expanded to include our operations in
Nanning, Nantong and Tianjin to provide a complete account of our ESG performance.
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment R ASHERBEEMTM

Ongoing and two-way communication with stakeholders is crucial to Eﬁi%f}_&/\?ﬁgE’\J%F‘Eﬂ}ﬁLéﬂﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬂ’MFﬁ
understanding their perceptions and expectations of our ESG efforts, HEMOERE 2 RERIE KR
performance and future strategies. In preparation for this Report, we RARKBOEELNPLEERAEE - &
appointed an independent consultant to conduct a comprehensive MEAWE BMEERELERETS
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment to determine the most AR AR EZHTE  WER
material ESG topics for disclosure by following a three-step process: UT=ErXrBEETREENIRE 48

REGRBAEITIEE -

Stae 1: e Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.
Identification

BARRFEIRE g RECNREBER - LERILREEE -
s = e Conducted an online survey with internal stakeholders to rank the importance of different ESG issues.
F—HE AR ARITELBE  ARSES HeREAREZ EBMET

50 HEFp o

A

Stae 2: e Combined and analysed the results of the peer benchmarking
Prioritisation exercise and stakeholder online survey to develop a prioritised list
T &k — e - of ESG issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.

LR Y 5 SR R  E ARE LS
BEEBILAF a &EE&F%FEIJW%H ST-RIIMBE - e
NERRRBIAHIER

Stage 3: * The Group’s senior management convened a meeting with the
Validation independent consultant to confirm a finalised list of material KPIs
= — o B - for disclosure.
E L8 remsgEnREEvERSEeS  BaE
B & ANEAREIIEIENRLEE - LMERZEZA -
Suggestions and Feedback ERARKE
We welcome feedback on our ESG performance and disclosures. Please ﬁﬁ’?%ﬁﬁiﬂ BMTHHEMARE Lk
share your views by email (info@vivachina.hk) or by phone (+852 3796 BERRIBMPEERERE - 88 BT
1111). B E R B Zinfo@vivachina. hk‘kﬁlaﬁ+852
3796 1111 ©
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2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. BEHESEMFE
Focus Goal Mission
B1iE RE fEan

To create diversified sports and life To fully utilize the potential and value of To assimilate sports services and
experience as well as produce consumption the sports and consumer goods industry consumable goods into life for bringing
opportunities for the purpose of promoting in order to facilitate the progress of social  happiness, healthy, and leisure life

sports and a healthy lifestyle civilization

BIRE L L REB REERBRY FROMNARAETEERTENEN ERERS  HELBMAEEH -
HHOBBRM - IREEDRENE NEE  UMEELSHNXRAES  THEERRE  @RABOIEN

GV

Viva China remains steadfast in our commitment to promoting nationwide
sportive and healthy lifestyles. Over the years, we have proactively
leveraged our resources, expertise and efforts to provide the public with
integrated, fit-for-purpose and age-friendly sports destinations, including

our Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres. To encourage wider
participation in sports and fitness activities, we work closely with the local
governments and other business partners to offer a range of complementary
sports-related facilities and services. Through the provision of sustainable
sports hubs, we endeavour to nurture a sports-for-all culture across China
to enhance citizens' quality of life.

Recognising the potential of the sports industry, we capture every
opportunity to contribute to the positive development of the industry. Aside
from supporting and sponsoring an array of sports events and competitions,
we also invest in sports talent development in an effort to extend shared
value to a wider set of stakeholders.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

A robust governance framework is essential to ensure material sustainability
issues are appropriately managed and incorporated into the Group's
corporate agenda. The Board holds the overall accountability for the
Group’s ESG strategies and performance. Our management is directly
responsible for monitoring and regularly updating the Board on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
A dedicated ESG working group which comprises representatives from
different business departments has been established to plan and coordinate
sustainability initiatives on an operational level. For more details on our
corporate governance structure, roles and responsibilities, please refer to
our Corporate Governance Report on pages 65 to 77 of this Annual Report.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Our Environmental Policy communicates our approach to the sustainable
management of our environmental footprint, which applies to all operations
of the Group and is supplemented by relevant guidelines covering specific
sustainability aspects. To systematically manage the environmental impacts
arising from our operations, our focus remains on energy efficiency,
resource stewardship and cultivation of environmental awareness among our
employees.

During the reporting year, we complied with all applicable legal and
regulatory requirement® regarding environmental protection and there were
no non-compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes.

Resource Optimisation

With a significant presence across the country, we seek to contribute to the
collective action to combat the global climate challenge. Considering the
close link between energy consumption and GHG emissions, we actively
seize energy-saving opportunities and undertake hardware upgrades to
optimise our energy performance over time.

At our corporate offices, we prioritise products with Grade 1 Energy Labels
or better energy efficiency such as LED lights when replacing office lighting
equipment and other electrical appliances. We also adopted air-conditioning
zoning and installed sensors to maintain indoor temperature between

24°C and 26°C, which ensure a comfortable and energy-efficient working
environment. To reduce carbon emissions arising from business travel,
video conference systems were introduced to enable virtual connectivity.

Along our extensive sports network, we continue to adopt environmentally
responsible place-keeping. For instance, we installed solar panels and
electric vehicles chargers at our Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports
Centres to make renewable energy more viable in our operations. Taking
greenery into account, we made additional green spaces available in

the vicinity of our facilities. Furthermore, energy audits were conducted

to analyse electricity consumption patterns and identify improvement
opportunities.

QOur solar photovoltaic system can generate around 45,000 kWh of
clean energy every year

Including but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap.354), the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), and the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC.
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The operations of our sports destinations can be water intensive. To
efficiently manage our water use, we have introduced a water circulation
system where dirt particles are filtered to reduce the frequency of pool
water replacement, together with regular leakage tests on water pipes and
tanks. In addition, water-saving devices including sensor water taps, flow
restrictors and dual flush toilets were in place at our office premises to
further enhance water efficiency.

Waste Management

Proper waste management is an integral part of our environmental
stewardship. To minimise the amount of landfilled waste, we actively
promote waste reduction and foster a recycling culture throughout our
operations. Employees are encouraged to adopt double-sided printing and
reuse office supplies, such as envelopes and cardboard boxes, whenever
possible. Recycling bins with clear signage are placed at our offices and
sports destinations to collect waste paper, plastics and metals. We will
continue to explore and expand the types of items we can collect for reuse
and recycling.

This year, our Hong Kong headquarters continued to partner with Friends
of the Earth to recycle toner cartridges and to work closely with Christian
Action through their “Green Collection” campaign to gather used clothing,
stationery and electronic devices in good condition for recycling or
charitable donation. We also donated several previously used desktop
computers which were in good condition to non-profit organisations through
collaborating with Metro Good Engineering Limited.

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

To guide employees on the sustainable use of resources in their day-to-day
operations, we provided useful tips for green workplace practices relating to
energy, water and consumption of office supplies through internal notices
and our Information Wall. At our Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports
Centres, awareness-raising campaigns focusing on responsible waste
management were initiated with an aim to promote waste sorting and foster
a recycling culture.
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Environmental Protection Awards and Recognition RRBIERRT

Acknowledgements were given in recognition of the Group’s commitment to AEBEKEE _%fﬁiﬁﬁﬁéﬁ'\]ﬁﬁ% B
environmental protection: BERTHERA]

Operations Awards/Recognition

¥BEN #&1g R

Hong Kong Awarded the “Wastewi$e Certificate — Excellence Level” under the “Hong Kong Green Organisation

Certification” by the Environmental Campaign Committee

ESRREDHZECRBIFERCHBRE IPIRHEEE SRR IFE

Pamcwpated in “Earth Hour 2020" organised by World Wildlife Fund
SEERFRAESSARBN HIR—/NF2020]

Participated in “Hong Kong No Air Con Night 2020" organised by Green Sense
2 HRREEEBN BB ELRR2020]

ANNUAL REPORT2020 £3% 83



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRIE - HEREISIRS

Environmental Performance Data RIBEXRREE

Emissions BERLH)

Carbon emissions in total and intensity 2020 2019 2018
HRBEEREE “ECZFE ZE-NEFE ZBE-NFE
Scope 1 emissions® Tonnes 876.8 658.5 522.4
HENHHE® A

Scope 2 emissions* Tonnes 4,800.9 3,267.5 2,683.6
HE2HEWE 148

Total emissions Tonnes 5,677.7° 3,926.0 3,206.1
BBEE 148

Scope 1 emission intensity Tonnes/FTE® 1.6 2.1 2.0
HEHEREE WE,FTE®

Scope 2 emission intensity Tonnes/FTE 8.5 10.5 10.2
HEHNEE Wa,FTE

Total emission intensity Tonnes/FTE 10.1 127 121
REEEE Mg, FTE

Other Emissions

Ht B

Wastewater generated Tonnes 161,159 126,069’ 67,614
VEIKESE i1

NOx emissions Kg 25.6 12.4 6.0
AR T

SOx emissions Kg 0.2 0.3 0.2
it e R F=

PM emissions Kg 1.4 0.9 0.4
RERL ) BERR F=

3 Scope 1: Direct emissions from sources which are awned or controlled by the 3 HE: AAEEMESSIEH N SE

@Group, including the consumption of natural gas and fuels for vehicles.

4 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity and steam
by the Group as a result of its usual operations. The sources of emissions are owned

or controlled by other companies.

g The increase in total emission is partly due to the expansion of reporting scope in
2020.

B “FTE” refers 1o full-time employees.

¥ The data has been restated to reflect actual situation in 2019.
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Resource Usage B R 1EFHE

RIR - HEBREBHRS

Resource usage in total and intensity 2020 2019 2018

ERERAREREE BEEFE —E-HLEFE —ZE-N\EFE

Electricity consumption kKWh 6,158,4198 4,627,119 3,794,221
EE TR

Natural gas consumption m?3 184,942° 300,754 242,467

RARIBERE SR

Gasoline consumption Litre 9,906 17,467 10,969

R 7

Water consumption Tonnes 208,094 125,187 67,609

AKE g

Electricity consumption intensity KWh/FTE 10,939 14,926 14,372
RETE FRLBEFIE

Natural gas consumption intensity m3/FTE 328 970 918

RARBHRERE S J5 K FTE

Gasoline consumption intensity Litre/FTE 18 56 42

FUHEREEE Ft ./ FTE

Water consumption intensity Tonnes/FTE 370 404 256

RXEE g, FTE

8 The increase in electricity consumption is partly due to the expansion of reporting 8 AEEENNE AR - E-_TBFE R

scope in 2020. HHEREKX °
9 The natural gas was consumed by the subsidiaries in Beijing, Yangzhou Li Ning 9 AKAFBFERBILLRZOMEA T %

Sports Park, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park, Nanning Li Ning Sports Park

and Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre.

Y The gasoline was consumed by the headquarters in Hong Kong and the subsidiaries

in Yangzhou, Ningbo and Tianjin.

it Water was mainly consumed by the subsidiaries in Bejjing, Yangzhou Li Ning Sports
Park, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park, Nanning Li Ning Sports Park, Linyi
Li Ning Sports Centre, Tianjin Li Ning Sports Centre and Nantong Li Ning Sports

Centre.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRi% - H EREISHRS

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste 7 2 % #E Z EEZ )

Hazardous waste (Usage) 2020 2019 2018
EEEEY(RE) —EEFE —E-LEFE Z—ZE-NEE
Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery Kg 0 0 0
REZ N TS B B =

Non-hazardous waste (Usage) 2020 2019 2018
BEEEY(RE) “ECEFE ZE-hEFE —EB-NFE
Paper Tonnes 21 5.8 1.4
A& U7

Plastic Tonnes 0.08 1.6 3.9
BB 9

General waste Tonnes 22,212 2.4 3.1
—MREEEY) A

Metal Kg 24.0 N/A N3 A N/A N3 A
B Fr

Glass Kg 6.8 N/A N3 A N/A N3 A
W T

Non-hazardous waste (Recycled) 2020 2019 2018
BEEREN(EKRE) “ECEREE —E-hEE —EB-NEFE
Paper Tonnes 1.7 2.6 1.9
R4 U7

Plastic Tonnes 0.08 1.6 0.6
el WE

General waste Tonnes 0 0.3 2.6
—REEEY) Mg

Metal Kg 24.0 N/A A~ AR N/A 7~ 36 F3
Gl Fr

Glass Kg 6.8 N/A A~ AR N/A 7~ 36 F3
Wi Fr

Non-hazardous waste (Usage) 2020 2019 2018
BEBREY(HE) “ECEREE —E-NEFE —ZEB-N\EE
Tonnes/FTE Mg, FTE 0.04 0.03 0.03
Non-hazardous waste (Recycled) 2020 2019 2018
EEEEY(EHKRE) —EEFE —E-NEFE —E-NEE
Tonnes/FTE W8, FTE 0.003 0.01 0.02

2 The increase is mainly due to the improvement of the waste collection and sorting
system by the subsidiaries in Beijing.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRIR - HEREISHRE

OUR HUMAN CAPITAL

The Group is committed to nurturing a sustainable and resilient workforce
through our employee pipeline stocked with talented and experienced
individuals. In line with our people-oriented approach, we work to create an
inclusive and engaging work environment which protects the wellbeing of
our staff and supports their personal development.

Employment and Working Conditions

In an effort to attract and retain every talent, we offer our employees
competitive remuneration packages and fringe benefits, including medical
care, retirement schemes, discretionary bonuses and a range of leave
entitlements such as marriage leave and birthday leave. To strengthen our
branding as an employer of choice in the industry, we regularly review our
staff policies, benefits and facilities. In 2020, we installed a well-equipped
lactation room at our Hong Kong headquarters to better accommodate the
needs of working mothers.

The Group embraces equal opportunities and ensures a workplace free
from discrimination at all times. All employees are protected by our Equal
Opportunity Policy which sets out a fair recruitment and promotion process
based on experience, individual merits and qualification regardless of
gender, race, age, religion, disability or family status.

Additionally, we fully support our employees to maintain a good work-life
balance by organising a variety of recreational and sports activities outside
of work. Some highlighted events include:

EMWADER

AEBESTZENRERRENIE
RoBNEEARE  RPUMNETHE
Bk o B —BFTUARRBNTE
BWAHEEMEBER  BEEREEN TR
% REREBE IR - BB TERE
AEE -

BB R TG

B REEREARF DHFHMETER
PEHNETRN - BREBERR - RIK
e BBREAMERNERRESE
BREEH - ARSI RBE AT 2
IRE Btes B THGR - @A Ra&ie - 8
BIARMEAREBERINDETLR
—ToTF - RMETEANEERIL
= AERBEE - BREERERNE
= .

AEBREFERS  BRETHERE
EAIRRE P RIEAR - ROV PSS
BERREZEER  EPHITwmEE
A B FlR O FRE BRESH
REMI - BPIHALER - EATE
;ﬁ_ﬁé?ﬁﬁ’&%—w&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂﬁ)ﬂﬁ
% o

AN - BRI EB A RIFNT
TEEAETE S - IR TIELAINE B X B IR
LERERY - BNRPEHRELE

Operations Activities

EBEN SEE

Hong Kong Birthday Lunch

g8 EHFE
Year-end Party
F RIS
Festive Gathering
AR

PRC Staff Outing

HE 8 T B3

Chinese New Year Party
WERE

Sports Day

EEH

Team Building Event

EERES

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3R

87



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRi% - H EREISHRS

During the reporting year, there were zero non-compliance cases with the RBEFE  BRPOEBERER - RIE
relevant laws and regulations™ relating to recruitment and employment B B b R E AR FIFRE 7 E I AR
practices, anti-discrimination, diversity, and other benefits and welfare. RABEED AR CEIE SR o
Human Resource Overview 2020 2019 2018
ADEFRER —ECEFE ZE-NEE ZE-N\EE
Total number of staff BTHAY Number 28 B 629 314 266
Number of staff - by gender BHRESTET A Number 27 B

- Male -3 315 167 142

— Female - 314 147 124
Number of staff - by age group BRERARNEIETAZ  Number B8

— < 30 years old —<305% 275 127 106

- 30 - 50 years old —30-505% 299 136 125

— > 50 years old —>505% 55 51 35
Number of staff - by employee type RESERIEFETAZ  Number B

- Full-time -2 563 310 264

~ Part-time —#B 66 4 2
Staff Turnover 2020 2019 2018
BIRX —ECEEE ZE-NEE ZE-N\EE
Overall staff turnover rate ETHRAR % H 52 60
Staff turnover rate - by gender RURIBAPEIRAE %

- Male -3 42 62 62

— Female - # 40 58
Staff turnover rate - by age group ~ RERARIEPETRAE %

— < 30 years old —<305% 39 91 108

- 30 - 50 years old —30-503% 32 29 34

— > 50 years old —>505% 100 14 11

5 Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Minimum Wage ~ °  BIFETRRERBIEH) ($F57F)  (FIEL

Ordinance (Cap. 608), the Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487), the Labour BB (£608F) ~ CEEERIFARAEH) (55487
Law of the PRC, and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC. ) (FELSEEIMFRLEERE) o

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3EA A ERIZERER AT
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Training and Development

The development and personal growth of our employees is an essential
driver of our business sustainability. To this end, we encourage staff at

all levels to enhance their professional knowledge and tailor our training
programmes to cater to the needs of employees from different operations
and at varied career stages. In 2020, a wide spectrum of training was
offered, covering data analysis, sports management, customer service, sales
and marketing, and workplace safety. We also introduced different online
courses to support staff's self-learning, especially during the pandemic
outbreak when most in-person training activities were put on hold. To
encourage continuous learning, an external training sponsorship is available
to all full-time permanent staff with approval from the Department Head and
Human Resources Department.

Training Hours
ZHIREH

EIEBR

EEMBRMEAKRERMEE AT
BRRNEZHEE ) - BUt - BAI=E
EERAANBRAEEERME - WEHE
RIEBFI MB R BB THHRR - /K
FHEBIRE - R-FT_FF » HfA
RE—RFIFI - REBIBON - BB
B - BPRY - HEMTISERNAR
THERERZE - B ERTRM& L
W2 XHETEHSEE  LERER
BRERE  ABOERREHFIED
BEEE - REBHESE - TARRE
TRAFIEE R AN ERIBFIALER S
RSN DI E R -

2020 2019 2018

“E-BEE -2-NEE —B-N\EE

Percentage of trained employees -  RHEBIESZIEET AL %

by gender
— Male -5
— Female -
Percentage of trained employees - R ESEFIE S ZHES %
by employee category BAk
— Functional heads —HAHEE
— Management -EEE

——fR/RIMET

— General/technical staff

Average training hours - by gender  RtERIBIA FIIZHNREE  Hous /)N
==

- Male -3
— Female -
Average training hours - REBEREDFHZI  Hours )N
by employee category R
— Functional heads —HMEE
— Management -EEE

——fR/BWET

— General/technical staff

70 N/A RiE R N/A i@ A
68 NA TER N/A TEA

35 N/A TEA N/A &
61 N/A NEH N/A &
72 NA TERA N/A TEA

18 12 7
19 1 8
7 3 10
19 13 26
18 10 6
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Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring the occupational health and safety ("OHS”") of our employees

is always our top priority. We have taken a multi-pronged approach to
minimise work-related hazards across our operations. Going beyond
regulatory compliance, our business units have developed their own OHS
guidelines specific to their workplace conditions and business activities. Al
employees are covered by our medical insurance and they are provided
with free physical check-up services and complimentary access to sports
facilities in our Sports Parks and Sports Centres.

To nurture a safety-first culture internally, we organised talks and workshops
throughout the year, covering various OHS topics such as accident
prevention, fire precaution and first aid. Periodic inspections of work
equipment, firefighting supplies and workplace hygiene are conducted to
improve the general housekeeping. We are also mindful of workers who
carry out job duties with relatively higher safety risks by equipping them with
personal protective gear such as safety gloves, helmets and goggles.

Our COVID-19 Response

Acting swiftly since the initial stages of the Coronavirus Disease
(“COVID-19") outbreak, the Group has remained committed to
protecting our employees throughout the pandemic. Aside from stepping
up our cleansing frequency and disinfecting procedures, we have
provided staff with anti-epidemic supplies such as medical masks and
hand sanitisers. Following the Government's call to minimise social
contact, we have adopted special work arrangements by allowing staff
to work from home and work at flexible times. If colleagues feel unwell,
they are recommended to consult a doctor promptly and undergo a
COVID-19 test as deemed necessary.

During the reporting year, there were zero non-compliance cases with
the relevant laws and regulations™ relating to the provision of a safe work
environment and the protection of employees from occupational hazards.

15 Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509),
and the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases.
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Labour Standards

As a responsible employer, child and forced labour are strictly prohibited
within the Group’s operations and along our supply chain. During the
recruitment process, our Human Resources Department reviews and
examines all identification documents provided by applicants. We also
perform regular audits and internal reviews to ensure full compliance with
applicable laws and regulations' relating to labour practices. Any staff
member found to be in breach of our labour policies will be subject to
disciplinary action and may be liable to legal prosecution.

Anti-corruption

We uphold the highest ethical standards and accountability throughout our
operations and have zero-tolerance towards corruption or malpractice of any
form. All employees are required to follow our Employee Handbook which
outlines the guiding principles for ethical business conduct. In 2020, the
Hong Kong headquarters and Beijing subsidiary arranged onling training on
anti-bribery and corruption compliance in order to update employees of the
latest developments in anti-corruption enforcement and refresh best practice
procedures. In support of our policies on ethical behaviours, the Group’s
Whistle-Blowing Policy and grievance mechanism are in place to enable
employees to raise concerns regarding any misconduct. To ensure whistle-
blowers have the freedom to report grievances without fear of reprisal,

all cases are treated with strict confidence and submitted to designated
personnel for further investigation. During the reporting year, there were
zero cases of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations'®
relating to corrupt practices

OUR VALUE CHAIN
Supply Chain Management

While our operations connect us with a wide range of stakeholders along
the value chain, we leverage the opportunity to extend our sustainability
considerations to our suppliers and business partners and encourage
environmentally and socially responsible practices. To provide a clear set of
guiding principles of sustainable procurement, we have developed a group-
level Supplier Code of Conduct which communicates our requirements

for ethical behaviours, Occupational Health and Safety standards, labour
rights and environmental practices. We also conduct regular audits and
assessments to ensure our stringent requirements are fully met. This holistic
approach enables us to better manage ESG-related risks arising from

our supply chain, whilst building effective long-term relationships with our
partners.

ik Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Labour Law of
the PRC, and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC.

LS Including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201).
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Our Quality Services

With a large and diverse customer base across our operations, we place
great importance on customer health and safety. In addition to employing
well-trained security personnel to maintain order during different sports-
related events, crowd control measures for emergency evacuations are in
place with standardised procedures to handle unexpected incidents. Specific
to the COVID-19 pandemic, we have implemented several measures

to reduce the transmission risk at our sports destinations. For example,
temperature screening stations have been set up to monitor the health
status of visitors as well as individuals who enter our venues. Meanwhile,
visitors are required to keep their masks on at all times and people without
face coverings will be asked to leave our venues by security.

Given the increasing trend of digital transformation, we pay special attention
to ensure the confidentiality of personal data and information collected from
our customers. Our Employee Handbook provides clear privacy guidelines
covering the use and management of personal data in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements'”. Only authorised personnel can access
relevant information on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis, and all data
must be handled in a safe and secure manner.

During the reporting year, we complied with relevant laws and regulations
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to the products and services provided by the Group.

OUR COMMUNITY

At Viva China, we are aspired to promote sportive and healthy lifestyles
across China to enhance citizens’ quality of life. With this in mind, we have
been actively leveraging our resources and mobilising the collective efforts
to connect, grow and support the communities we serve.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRIE - HEREISIRS

BERK

HRRPINESEERAMZ TIEANE
FE  HRfERERTFPEREHEL S -
BRIERIZREEZNREZABETRE
EESHBERZREI - BRPISMERT
ST AR RS - B EZE
LR FREEINEMN o FECOVID-195%
1B BRACEHmZEEERERES B
R EENRE - BFME - RMAER
3 BE R ROBIAEE SR R A M A SRR R
ATHRERR - A - shENERZX
HEOS  R2FH FOSHALTBER
ZERBEFRBE -

ERHFEIB AFIEM - FAIEH
TERREFEPEENEAERMESR
RENE - FFIY B TFMIRHIFMAL
sl - BRERBEHBEERTEER R
EREAER T GEEZ AL TTRE
ERBENTMFREMRUEHMERE
B mABERBANRZEZZENT A
BRIB o

RBEFE - RIS ETERAEEM
REZERMBRBENRERZE &
F - BEMELFEENHEBERESR ©

BNt E

EATEHANEESBIEEED - 25
MAESR - MREmRMNEERE -
AZEEEE - B —EBEBN AR
MER  BHERBE N EE - HREA
SERFIFTRE R o

Number of Total Hours
Events and  of Community Number of
Activities Service Beneficiaries
Supported Contributed Served'
XEFENER HEHE PR 7% 3% &
RIRENRE PR 75 48 B 21 AN Epe
2020 TEDEFEFN 77 4355 20,835
2019 —T-NEFE 170 1,565 104,348
2018 —E-N\FE 88 1,490 55,388

1 Including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) and the
Cyber Security Law of the PRC.

i Refer to the number of people served or engaged during the Group’s community
Service programmes.

i Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, most community programmes were put on hold.
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Promoting Sports and Healthy Living EEREREERER

Following the Group’s commitment to nurturing a nationwide sportive AEBHNHEE2RES UL - BBAK
culture, we continue to provide the public with a wide variety of leisure and FERENTEEERRFEEYHT LT
fitness activities through our well-equipped Li Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning BEAANTZRESASEORBE LR SE
Sports Centres. These include training and interest classes, sports-themed g A pEIImAEEE BE R
carnivals, marathons and various sports competitions suitable for citizens of RFEE  BRNEEAZSEEETRESF

different ages.

RETR2MNEELE -

Our sports destinations also serve as community hubs to provide different BMEE B IMERLRIELR - &
welfare services for the public, including free check-ups, healthcare NBRETRNEIRE - BRE2EE
workshops and rehabilitation sessions. To encourage wider participation % RETERERES - ASE™
in sports activities, we implemented a Free Use Scheme allowing REEZLEEESEY  RMHETEE
complimentary access to our leisure facilities on designated days and FAE - AHEEERFRREHE2E
occasions. EABRMIKRERE ©
Creating an Inclusive Society HEERHE
As a responsible corporate citizen, we are devoted to supporting diverse ErR—EBEENEELR - HMBSD
social segments to create a more connected society. Apart from the XRZIEHAMSEE  BE—ERL
provision of in-kind contributions to the socially disadvantaged, we BEFEEMNLE o BT AHBLER
encourage staff volunteering and initiate various community projects. HEWIEBIN - BPIMBEE T2 HEE
ThRM RERESBERIER -
Highlights of Community Events: fIREBSE
Operations Events
¥REN JEE
Hong Kong To counter a limited and unstable stockpile of personal protective supplies, our Hong Kong headquarters
5B organised a campaign to collect anti-epidemic items such as disinfectant sprays and wipes, and hand sanitisers
of which were packaged as “Anti-epidemic Kits” and donated to Fu Hong Society for the socially disadvantaged
groups.
REHEAEARRFEEERETRENER - BMANSBEMER T —EHRENLEY @
BEE - IESES  HESREMKBERBRETFR - BRRIERIBETHRES - LEH
PRC Our Beijing subsidiary offered in-kind donations to Zhangjiakou Charity Federation in support of their community
FE activities benefiting the underprivileged and low-income families. \
BRI RMEARIRRXOMEASASREEDRE - UXHtefMOtEES  ERE
A M AEBAKE
We are deeply grateful to the healthcare workers for their professionalism and hard work in the fight against
COVID-19. To express our gratitude for their all-out efforts, our Nantong subsidiary joined hands with other
organisations to provide a range of sports-related offerings and discounts to Hubei's healthcare personnel as
well as their immediate family members. N
BT RO RN B A BEEHHI00VID- 1985 RIFH)FXRIG1R R F B THE - BRGNS
N B EENE AR REMEEETSE  MtaEZAEREERTBRE—R
5|88 B B RARR TS AT 40 o
Awards and Recognition RIFRAT
The Group has been recognised for its continual efforts on community ?%E?‘ilﬁ&;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%@
investment. Some of the highlighted awards during the reporting year HEHRY - RBEFEE - AEBEES
included: R EIEH AR EF -
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Operations Awards/Recognition

EKEN L3 |

Hong Kong Presented with the “Social Capital Builder Logo Awards 2020" by Community Investment and Inclusion Fund &
5B Labour and Welfare Bureau

Nantong Li Ning
Sports Centre

EEFEERTL

Yangzhou Li Ning
Sports Park
BNFERER

Ningbo Hangzhou
Bay Li Ning Sports
Park
BERMMNEFER
BE

Linyi Li Ning Sports
Centre

T ZEEF P

Tianjin Li Ning
Sports Centre

REFEERFL

FNEUEERE
(EF)ARAT

ERENEEERE
SHEEEERAR

L]

REMRREXZESNETRENBREHSE AR HRFL2020]

Honoured as “Advanced Unit” and “Advanced Venue” by Nantong Swimming Association
ErdEm i KESH e B Rl FEE R TESH]

Presented with a certificate of participation by Nantong Sports Industry Association
KEMBAMEEEXHERELMEFE

Honoured as “2019-2020 Yangzhou Outstanding Youth Volunteer Service Organisation” by Yangzhou Youth
Volunteers Association

BN EFERERGERI2019-2020F EHM AL E F& TIRGEE]

Honoured as “Advanced Unit of Social Security and Integrated Governance” by the Management Commitiee of
Guangling New City, Yangzhou
BENTEENMNEELZESERI ARG E RIS ]

Honoured as “Top Ten Excellent Venue” in Jiangsu Province by the Organising Committee of Jiangsu National
Fitness Games

ElsezRESEDHEEZTSERIHE TREF S

Honoured as “Excellent Unit of Social Charity Cooperation” by Rainbow Bay Social Work Service Centre, Ningbo
BEEEIETe TIERBEFR L ERA I L EERESIFEFEN

Honoured as “Excellent Organisational Unit”

WRERIBHEBEL]

Honoured as “Social Practice Base”
WERTEEREL ]

Honoured as “National Fitness Excellent Venue” in Xiging District by Sports Bureau of Tianjin Municipality (Xiging
District)
ERETASEREBEREBAASEI2RESES S

Presented with the “National Fitness Outstanding Contribution Award” in Xiging District by Sports Bureau of Tianjin
Municipality (Xiging District)
KEXETASREERREATRIZRESHEL TR

Presented with the “Most Supportive Corporate Organisation Award 2020"
KECTZ_TFERIIFEEMER]

Presented with a certificate of donation by Zhangjiakou Charity Federation
RERXOMASAEREREEE

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ FL+E1ZRE R 7]
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8. MXMRE - HEREAWMSE
R EEE]
Page Number/
Aspect HKEx KPIs Description Remarks
=] BERPT  HEut B Ea
BABEN
BE
A. Environmental
RIR
Al Emissions Al General Disclosure 81-82
B —fRIEFR
A1 The\ type of emissions and\ respective emissions data 84
e miE iR R AR B EUE
A1.2 Greenhouse gas Qmissions in total and intensity 84
BERERERERAE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity 86
MEXEERENEERTE
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 86
FEXBRERENEELTE
A1.5 Mgasureg fo mitigate emissions and results achieved 81
RIRBERRE MR i R FT1SACR
A1.6 How hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 82
reduction initiatives and results achieved )
RIEAENEEERZRMNITE  BIRELENTEIE
TSR R
A2 Use of Resources A2 General Disclosure 81-82
EREA —BE R
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and 85
intensity
REANESMEER SHEEEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 85
BFEKERERE
A2.3 Enqrgy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 81
BERE AR st 8l R E AR
A2.4 Issue in sourcing water, water efficiency initiatives and results 82
achieved . ‘
H?HX@FHK)JT??J:EJEEWFEJ% » A RIRF KR
REIGREIES
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products The KPI of the

SRR BREMHNEE

reporting scope is

considered not material
el
BERIEEWTEE
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Page Number/

Aspect HKEx KPIs Description Remarks
FE WA B s
BREN
BEE
A3 The Environment A3 General Disclosure 81-82
and Natural —RR R
Resources o ‘ o .
EIERRAARESE A3.1 Significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural  81-82

B. Social
e

B1 Employment
EE

B2 Health and Safety
RERZZE

B3 Development and
Training
R RIEI

resources and the actions taken\ to manage them _
EREHUBERARSRNEAYERERNE
BEBAZENTTE

B1 General Disclosure 87-88
— W

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 88
geographical region
LR - EEER - FRRARNRMEE D HEBE
£

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 88
region
IR - FERAE R Kb l@ B9 8 (E B Rt

B2 General Disclosure 90
—MEE

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Nil
ETEREML T AZ KL= =

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 19 days
ETHBEXTIEAH 19K

B2.3 Occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are 90
implemented and monitored
%%@mﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁé%m’u&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%
B

B3 General Disclosure 89
—MEEE

B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 89
category -
BHRIREBHEAEISHNXIEEBHLL

B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by gender and 89

employee category -
Eg%&ﬁ%ﬁ%%%’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% Z3t T
Ry
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRi% ~ H EREISIRS

Page Number/

Aspect HKEx KPIs Description Remarks
[EmE BT LY i
B2
i
B4 Labour Standards B4 General Disclosure 91
& TR —BRE
B4.1 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 91
forced labour N
IR RESIE B B0 FE b AR SR T fe s i 85 T
B4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 91
TR AR AR A MERARR SR
B5 Supply Chain B5 General Disclosure 91
Management —E =
HEEER
B6 Product B6 General Disclosure 92
Responsibility — MR
EmEE , . -
B6.5 Consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 92

implemented and monitored
%%%ﬁﬂ%%&ﬂ%ﬁ%’uﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRi% - H EREISHRS

Page Number/

Aspect HKEx KPIs Description Remarks
fEm BERPT B fHa
BAREN
BEE
B7 Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure 91
R&ES —MRIEEE
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices — Nil

brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting =
Period and the outcomes of the cases
RImEHANHBITASEEEREYEEENES
FARMHEE RFAER

B7.2 Preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they 91
are implemented and monitored

PrEifE e R BWIZF - ARMBEERITRERTA

B8 Community B8 General Disclosure 92-93
Investment —RR IR
HEAR B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 93
EIEREE
B8 .2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area  92-93

EEIBEMPDHAER (WEERERH)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e

pwc

To the Shareholders of Viva China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Viva China Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 220,
which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RV PR ST S

S ok i

BEAFEHAERERITRER
(RESEHSFME TR BRI A])

=

KM ETTNAR

FEAFBEZERABR A T@ﬂ?ﬂmiﬂib
REWBARI(ATHABIEEE DIIFHRE
109220 B MR E K - B -

e R-ZF-_TF+_A=1+—HWEAM
BRI

 HBERAULFENHFAREAHMEM@

s HEZHULFENGAHEZMAER K

o HRAMBHRWE  BREIZEFEK
MmE -
BPHER

BPRG  ZEEEUBBRREREFTES
J%AA%%#KE%W%ﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁaﬁ
TEHRRT ERER-_FT_FTF+_A
St BMEAMBRARABESZA LS
EREEMBRARGARSRELCBIR
BB R EMGEDDE R BER EZ BEE
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Impairment assessment of goodwill
o Inventory provision

° Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

ERNER
BPEREEEGTMASRMOAEEE
EQVETTERA - RPEZFER T AR
BECEARE ZEEN L ET 476 M %MK
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB B E AT

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements and Note 14 — intangible assets to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2 EMBWMERMEIERG A - BREAEB R
meﬁﬁﬁéo

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill of HK$79.4
million, net of impairment HK$156.5 million.
RZZEZZF+-_RA=+—H  EBEXEBEIHER
79,400,000 7T - B HIFR BB 156,500,000/ 7T °

For purposes of the annual impairment assessment of goodwill,
management determined the recoverable amounts of the Group’s
goodwill based on value-in-use (“VIU"), which is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the Group’s cash-
generating units ("CGUs"). Management's impairment assessment
involves significant judgements, including the estimation of budgeted
sales, gross margin and long term growth rate used in cash flow
projections, and the discount rate applied to determine present value
of the future cash flow.
HEBFEREN NS  BRERBEHAEE ([
EREE] ) BF SSEMAWMENAIKRESE (£
REBEAEHE EBESERCELSAN ( [REEAS
1_LJ ) FEE’J*PUE%WEE’JEETE ° EIEE’J/UME $1E
%&iﬁ%%*@%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%#ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁ%
B EMNXRRERAEREME WRAREEARKRE R
MEREEIRE -

Independent Auditor’s Report ¥&3zi% EbM¥R 5

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEFTNEEERENSE

Qur procedures on auditing management’s goodwill impairment
assessment mainly included:

BMSEREREREMETHNETETFIZEYE

- Understood and evaluated the internal controls and assessment
process of goodwill impairment and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- B REHEEERE AR KRG - WiBiE
%FﬁﬁzT%%l%m&F&Emlﬁﬂ RS
Bk (aaeERElt - E8E - @&ﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ﬁ%ﬁ%@@ﬁ)ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ@ LA & A R

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent external valuer engaged by the Group to
determine the recoverable amounts of a majority of the
Group's CGUs, based on VIU;

- My BEEBEZEBEINMEEMEEEND C BX
ZENEFEL  UBREERABEEE E5EKRE
DB EEEEMA KL S

- Assessed the appropriateness of valuation model adopted,
and challenged the reasonableness of the key inputs and
assumptions used, including assessing the reasonableness of
the discount rate based on relevant market data of comparable
companies, with involvement of our in-house valuation

specialist, mainly in relation to:

- EREMNABEEZRHN2HET %%%%%ﬁﬁ
REEEE N  WERTAF 28 ABE KRR
BEM  BEEBEAIELERA Tmmﬁm%%ﬁ%

EREREMAEN EEXEF N
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

We focused on this area due to the size of the goodwill balance, and
the significant judgment involved in estimating future results of the
CGUs in management's impairment assessment.
BAFTZEETHNEERBNRE - UREEER
&%ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁ@éiﬁﬁ*%%%ﬁ%&%%ﬁ%
e,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNEFUNAEEEARENSE

the budgeted sales and respective gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial data of
these CGUs. For budgeted sales, we also compared
to future market growth rate forecasted sourced from
external parties;
RBEZEReELBEUNERESLMBEE
BETHERSNEEHERE RS ENER
o ptEEEERAMS - HAITMEREINED
B HRRTIHIE R EFAHEITELR

i, the long-term revenue growth rates, by comparing
them with the relevant economic and industry forecasts,
including certain forecasts sourced from external parties;
and

i SRS R R EAREE BT R (
BIEREINDE T HE TR EITLHE
K

ii.  assessed the reasonableness of the discount rate
used based on relevant market data of comparable
companies and comparing them with costs of capital of
comparable companies.

il.  ARIBAIE LA AR AR RE T IS BUR Rk AT A
B EE S KRG IR R ER] B LR A A
BB ARKAEITLLR o

Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis over the
recoverable amounts of these CGUs, focusing on the key
assumptions, to which the calculation was most sensitive, we
calculated the degree to which each of these key assumptions
would need to change before an impairment conclusion was
triggered and discussed the likelihood of such a change with
management,

M EREYZER S E S BA B & A S
ENi  BINFERR > Mt BEHZERERR
SR BPETE AR ESWIZTIERERS
Eﬁ%%%kﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁkmﬂ
et °

Based on the procedures described above, we found the key
assumptions and estimates adopted in management’s goodwill
impairment assessment to be supported by available evidence.

ER iR F  BMEREEERNBREN T RAY

TERREMEAAABBES



Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

Inventory provision

FERE

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgments and Note 18 — inventories to the consolidated financial

statements.
BRFGAMEHRRMFIER ST - BRERHE X

MizE1877 8 -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net inventories of
HK$183.9 million, carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in the consolidated financial statements.
RZEZTF+A=+— EEENTFEFHEA
mmmmm%n &WAWWﬁ%$&$ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%@
BIEE SR

The apparel industry is highly correlated to seasonal factors,
economic environments, customers’ preferences and competitor
actions which affect the amount of inventory provision to be
provided. The Group has an inventory provision policy and such
provision is made for inventory items whose costs may not be fully
recoverable. The inventory provision is estimated by reference to
data such as inventory ageing, historical sales experience, expected
subsequent year-end sales.
RIS MFEIER R - EEIRR - BRI REFHTF
@MWWW ﬁ&ﬁl%gigk%%ﬁmrf%ﬁ

éi%ﬁ o BEBRAGFEBREEE - UMK AAEEXR

sERWERFEIAE R BREEE T BB NH2EF

%?ii%ﬁ CELHERR RRREFREERLFHIE
E_o

We focus on this area due to the size of inventories balances,
and the judgment involved in estimating the net realisable value in
management’s impairment assessment,

BME Iz ERN TERENRE  UREEBER
ARG ET A BRI ER TS R A6 -

Independent Auditor’s Report ¥&3zi% EbM¥R 5

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEFTNEEERENSE

Our audit procedures relating to inventory provision included:

BMBEREERENEITRFEE

- Understood, evaluated and validated relevant controls over
management’s estimation of net realisable value and periodic
reviews of inventory obsolescence and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- B HMEERETEEYAIERIFEN G RF
ERETHESMEBZET - BB REEM

HANE IR R e S KB B KK
¥ REEA G L EERR - B8R 5

MM RBRAE

- Tested the ageing of inventory items categorised into different
seasons by checking to relevant documents including goods
receipt notes on a sample basis, and recalculated the
mathematical accuracy of the provision made for the selected

items; and
-  FE@RBEREEEXY (BEEmiids) ARESLE
ARTRAZEHNFERERE - WENERETE

BETER R BEEREE - &

= Assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for
the remaining inventories, with reference to historical sales
experience and comparing the carrying values of inventories
items, on a sample basis, to actual prices for subsequent
year- end sales.

- FRBEREEEHANBERIATFERKNE
Al I%%Fiﬁﬁmﬁﬁmﬁkr =18 B AR E
EIfE{E M FRIHE N BERERETLR - FHEEE
HEEM -

Based on the procedures described above, we found that
management’s judgments in estimating the inventory provision to be
supported by available evidence.

EREMEF  BMOEREEEGATERENAEGE
R AEB S HF
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

¥ BERREREHEEEREFEG

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements and Note 12 — property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to the consolidated financial statements.
2GS M BRAMFEIERG T - BR&R&AE &
12  BMERREREAEEE -

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$92.6 million (after
impairment provision of HK$5.1 million), and right-of-use assets
amounted to HK$277.1 million (after impairment provision of
HK$23.4 million).
RZZ_TF+_A=+—H ' EBEENYHX-  KE
N R AR TEI1E /392,600,00078 7T (HIRRIR (B #85,100,000
Br) REREESEREMER277,100,00087T (BRI
B 1#23,400,0007T)

The operation of the Group’s retail stores was adversely affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and certain of the Groups'’s
retail stores were loss making during the year. Management regards
each individual retail store as a separate CGU and carried out
impairment assessment by determining the recoverable amounts

of the retail store assets which have impairment indicators. The
recoverable amount of the assets of the relevant retail stores

is determined by VIU calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on sales forecast prepared by management with
major assumptions including budgeted sales and gross margin,
revenue growth rates and discount rate.

IBECOVID-19% 158 EBESETEEMNEEENTHFE
Z mERN BEEENETZEELRER BRER
ERUTEEL—REERHRRCELSN - Wil
BEFTAARENRNETEEEE KBS EHEITR
Eilfh - AT EEEEZAINESENIREEEER
SNHERR (EEREBEBREHERENE - K=
BEEREAX) FAMRRESREBAETHERE
EFFEMERE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNEFUNAEEEARENSE

Our procedures on auditing management’s property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets impairment assessment mainly
included:

B EREME - MERRiEREAEEERERNG
EITNEAEFEZEE0RE

- Understood and evaluated of the internal controls over the
identification of relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and preparation of the cash flow forecasts and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

- BRUEEBRENERETRNEETEERE
IR e mETRRHANIPES - WEBERMGFT 2T
FARAR =AM H 4 BB A E =8k F (1048
M FEN  FPRUEEERRSRGFORUR
M) A EAREERER A E A R

— Tested the reasonableness of the data used and challenged
management's key assumptions adopted in the future cash
flow forecasts, mainly in relation to:

- AEFASENEENE  WHEREBERKRER
%%ﬂ¢ﬁ%%$%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ’$£%&MT
Vil g

the budgeted sales and gross margin, by comparing
them with actual historical financial data of the

stores and questioning business plans with senior
management;
ETEERHE R EFEEEHOEREL I
%iﬁ%}%éﬁﬁtb@ CWREREEEREER
Tl

i the revenue growth rates, by comparing them with the
relevant economic and industry forecasts, including
forecasts sourced from external parties; and

i BRERERXEARLERTERL (25
REIMNBETRITER) EITHER : &

ii. ~ the discount rate, by comparing them with costs of
capital of comparable companies;

il ?%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁi@ﬂﬂ%ﬁ$&$ﬁﬁm
s



Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

We focused on this area due to the size of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the significant judgement and
estimation involved in determining the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.

B TZBBEHNDE  BELAREREREEE
AR - AREEEEETRETGNEREEERN R
6] & P8 KR B & K HI B RO fd 5T o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEFTNEEERENSE

- Tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of the
recoverable amounts of these stores; and

- AIFAFEZEEHIAIRCSENHEEEE &

- Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain the extent of the
change in the key assumptions that would result in the retail
store assets being impaired and discussed with management
the likelihood of such a change in the key assumptions arising.

- AHMEBRBESN - UEERREHTEEEERE
WEBHRENECEE  WHERENREZRRK
BYEE LRI -

Based on the procedures described above, we found that the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets made by management to be supported by available
evidence.

RIBEA FRTRFr - BMIBREBELME - BE KR
R EAEEEREN LA ASHEE SR
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
Process.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

Htpfs 8

ERAREFRAHHEMESAR - HMESE
RERANAAEES - BEIEESFETHER
R BB ZBEI RS o

BB G BHRERNE R L NMREEME
B BT T HRZEFEMEERERTALA
HVEERE iEam ©

FBARMBEEMBRRNET - AMANE
TRHEEBEMES  FUBES - TEEM
EERREEAMBHRRKRMERTEE
P TROBRFEEAEBREUTFHE
BEARERRANBER

ERBPEATHITE - WREMRREA
ERREERFERRL  BHMFTEREZF
E-HEETE  BYRAEARS -

EERBFELEZEENGEUBHRRAE
ENEE
BERRBEREAAEREE LSS ASHEM
K E BT B E ER) R FBCR BRG]
BEREREEEMPBNEAMBRE
UHERRRESEVBHRERRORE T
AR HRAF S 88 SR T B B B R8RSR RO P 6
MAEEHIRE -

ERBEAVBHRERE  EFRANE B
SESBKENES  XYEERBR THE
HEQEEMNER  URERFELS
REHER  RIEZAEL BEEEEFR
HIFLEEE - KB EEMERNBERTSR -

BEVZEQRAREEE

B e

BEEENMBRE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do

not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

R R ET FEMBRREARNERE

BANER  EHGAMBEHRREBELS T
TrE RN ERFE S8 R T B B Y B A SR sRBR
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FHAEEREE - AEBRRBRSKFHR
& BTRERERR(EBEFELDETT
MBS AR —BAMRBR I TF £ BB %
B oo $HRMR A LA BXEF SR EERR Sl - 1
REEFAHY T M EFNE BRI AR ELR
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is Brian Ming Yan Choi.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 0ther Comprehensive Income

lllm

mRHhE OISR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE —ZT -_ZTFE+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FERT FAET
Revenue &= 5 819,036 625,004
Cost of sales HEK A (488,248) (501,795)
Gross profit EF 330,788 123,209
Other income and other gains — net E MU R H A a0 58 5 1,359,084 890,637
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAY (224,412) (47,658)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR EMEERS B (453,077) (273,346)
Net impairment loss recognised on financial assets B HERII IS EE 2 BERIEFHRE 39 (274) (82,483)
Finance costs Hﬂ%ﬁm 6 (65,140) (118,334)
Share of profits less losses of associates and DEEE AR REEREL
joint ventures i ) R B 18 15 266,393 342,112
Profit before income tax BRETBBLATRR 7 1,213,362 834,137
Income tax FriS %t 10 (13,767) (7,533)
Profit for the year F R F 1,199,595 826,604
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hth2mEmasE  (BE):
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HignEHos iEETE Z
profit or loss, net of income tax of nil IEE HIBRPTIS ()
— Share of other comprehensive (l0ss)/income DIREE D TZ/HJ’EEE
of an associate ( 518) /W e (1,906) 427
— Reclassification adjustment upon partial RELD ﬁﬁ Bl ASNE
disposal of an associate H%E 0 $R B 56,562 39,737
— Release of exchange reserve upon disposal - E—FHBARIRE
of a subsidiary BRI 54 (i = 10,437
— Exchange differences on translation of —REGINETE 2 IER
foreign operations Z=RA 335,956 (102,658)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the E—WE@%EU&Z%/(EE) ;
year, net of income tax MRS 390,612 (52,057)
Total comprehensive income for the year S R2HEKZEELE 1,590,207 774,547
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LUF AL LR (BR):
— Equity holders of the Company —ARRAERFEA 1,192,392 834,366
— Non-controlling interests — JEFE AR M = 7,203 (7,762)
1,199,595 826,604
Total comprehensive income/(loss) u"l:k:t@ﬁh‘éﬁl-lﬁlm
attributable to: /(E518) & 8
— Equity holders of the Company —AREEZFERA 1,573,387 784,347
— Non-controlling interests — IEIEARAE A 16,820 (9,800)
1,590,207 774,547
Profit per share attributable to equity RArERSE AEG
holders of the Company: BROER :
Basic (HK cents) EARCBL) 11 10.59 7.41
Diluted (HK cents) #5E OB) 11 10.57 7.34

The notes on pages 116 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

F1U6E220B FTE 2 M s A% ELRE IR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(S EIRRE

As at 31 December 2020 R—ZE-BF+-_A=+—8H

2020 2019
—B-8F —B-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FExT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S E L] 12 92,622 74,156
Investment properties B 13 203,700 =
Right-of-use assets EREEE 12 277,077 176,282
Intangible assets mEE 14 288,584 423,690
Interests in associates and joint ventures REtERA REEDE IR 15 3,031,604 2,939,730
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETFIE « e REMERGIE 20 55,245 33,628
Other non-current asset HA3EREEE 1,946 557
Deferred tax assets RIETIBE E 27 24,384 23,700
Total non-current assets EMBEEBE 3,975,162 3,671,737
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Stock of properties MEFE 17 - 290,557
Inventories T8 18 183,863 1,807
Trade debtors and bills receivable JrE U BR 3 B B U R AR 19 82,887 199,624
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTERIE ~ e REMEKIE 20 167,551 50,236
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss FEiBIBFIZAFEFEZ
MEEE 16 273,338 -
Restricted bank balances IR 61 SR 1T A5 54 22 3,627 3,342
Cash and bank balances He MIRITER 21 1,857,441 649,262
2,568,707 1,194,828
Assets classified as held-for-sale PERERIEREZEE 36 306,051 =
Total current assets MBEERE 2,874,758 1,194,828
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables FEASTBR 3R K EL A0 B A 5RIB 23 313,627 172,594
Contract liabilities aHAaRE 5 107,108 61,377
Accruals st E A 24 122,612 50,794
Deferred income PRIEBA 25 2,100 8,959
Lease liabilities HEAE 12 135,312 15,359
Financial liabilities at fair value through ERBREAFEFEZ
profit or loss WBarE 16 456 2,965
Income tax payable FERT TSR 13,610 15,503
694,825 327,551
Liabilities classified as held-for-sale PEARFIEHLEZAE 36 39 =
Total current liabilities M ERRE 694,864 327,557
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 2,179,894 867,277
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEAERABEE 6,155,056 4,539,014

110  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3R, B AR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4388 FEIRINE

As at 31 December 2020 R—ZB-TF+_-A=+—8

2020 2019
—E=BF —B-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FHBT FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBESE
Deferred income RIEI A 25 7,710 1,872
Other payables H b B AR 5,899 2,730
Lease liabilities HEaFE 12 273,476 169,279
Bank loan RITER 26 1,256,000 1,256,000
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 27 80,669 49,538
Total non-current liabilties FRBABERE 1,623,754 1,479,419
NET ASSETS BEEEE 4,531,302 3,059,595
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2N A BI4E 258 A B HERS
Issued capital BEITIRAR 28 474,817 443,217
Perpetual convertible bonds KA M AT E 5 30 933,646 1,139,046
Reserves i 31 2,920,908 1,439,034
4,329,371 3,021,297
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 201,931 38,298
TOTAL EQUITY EReE 4,531,302 3,059,595

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2021, KB HREC R " E - —F=H -+ —_HE
E=giE -

Li Ning Li Chunyang
Y- =5
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
FEFTHAAEH HITEFE
The notes on pages 116 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated FUNER0E B 2MTRZSHEE T BR
financial statements. RZHEKESD -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o =

SoESEHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARREREARL
(Accumulated
Share  Perpetual Exchange Convertible [ogses)/ Non-
Issued ~ premium  comvertible  Share option  fluctuation  Reserve  notes equity retained controlling
capital ~ account honds Teserve Tesenve funds TeSene gannings Total  interests  Total equity
TER (it
B3 B kTR ERE EXRER 2 B/ FER
Bx  EEE BB ik B GEES ERRE  REEW it BE ER4E
Notes HKS000 HKS000 S 000 HS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000
iE: TR Thr  Thr TR TEr  TEr TR TEr TR TEr TEn
1 Januayy 2019 “5-15-A-H 306 4199052 1139046 16911 (303819) 11,799 03% (186364 3891187 835 394462
Prft o te yar EmEd - - - - - - N T v N
Oter oompeterse comellosy o he. ERER2ERE/ (BE):
Jo:
Eue dfereces on trsin o~ RERSER Y 2R
foveign operaons - - - - [10060) - - - (10062 0% (10265
Recassicatin adusment upon MBSt E-BRENIRER
patel dgosdof & asodae MERE - - - -y - - -y - Ny
Reese et esnenon  REE-EHBATREREL
daposl o utsiday G - - - -0 - - - -0
Steof ober comperersie oo HEBERFZ M2 ANE
0f an asscie - - - - o - - - o - 7
Total comprehensive loss)income A2 (B1) /44
for the year - - - - (0019 - - 834,366 184347 (e —
Honision o sbsds YEHERT - - - - - - - 100 1849
hequstion o ron-aoncling erss MBSERRERTHENAE
wiiout & change i confol - - - - - - - 13917 13917 (13,726) 191
Sweisedymeeieo e EREEGERETIRG
aptions A il 11510 - (313 - - - - 9,19 - 919
Fouty-seted e opton arngemerts RS E 2 BRERH 24 - - - - - - K -0
Tenslr o e pin esne o e~ BRI RS E R E R E R
fofelue o epiy o e opions. B - - - B - - - 5349 -
St o asscess resene AMEBENR B - - - - - - )] - M
Redenmion o equty comporent ol BEMARZEMNERSH
converible nols - - - - - - (03%) 4972 (40,667) - (40,667
Diidend pad Bfifke i - (1667102 = = = = - - (1667109 - (1667100
s at 31 December 2019 MF-NETzA=1-H 3T 253460 113006 139815 (R3gd 1Y - (022067 301,297 8298 30095%
Pt for e ez R - - - - - - - iR e TH8 1199508
Ober oompeersie incomelfos) fr e EREB2ENE/ (BR):
Yoo
e dfereces on trslin o~ RERS ERE 2 2R
{orign aperaions - - - - 326,339 - - - 326,33 9617 335,956
Recassiaton st upon M E-FRENTRERDE
el disposa o a0 asscie E S - - - - R - - - AR - AR
S of o compenersie issof - HEBEDF EH2EEE
0 ascile - - - - (1,906) - - - (1,906) - (1,906)

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED A A ERZERER AT



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

CEV

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_TF+_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KNAREREARE
(Accumulated
Share  Perpetual Exchange Convertible logses)/ Non-
Issied ~premium  convertible Sharg opion  fluctuaion ~ Reserve  notes equity retained controlling
capital ~ account bonds Teserve Teserve funds Teserve gamings Totdl interests  Total equity
TER (gt
BEf R xakTg  BRE EXEEE B ER/ FER
ke EEE  hE% 1] fBEES EREE  RERN gt BE  EGEE
Notes HESOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKBODD RSO0 HKSOQO HESOOD  HRSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOND
Wi Tén  Thr TEn TEr TR TR TR TRt TR TR TR
Total comprehensive income for the. 2T iesa
year - - - - 30%% - CR A /X /R R X 16620 1590207
Acyitonof tbsidaes WENEA - - - - - - - - - 183 146813
Foutysefd e otim amgemers HRELE 2 BRER S 8 - - - 5,862 > > ° > 5862 o 862
Tl of e otin esve o e RERER AT ERG ERERER R
forlre or expry of share options = - - (17,834) - - - 17,834 - - -
St of a5l esene AEHENT G - - - - - - - n - a
Comesionof oot bonds b oy BT AR % B AR
el 3600 173800 (205,400) - - - - - - - -
Diidend paid EffRE i - (298505 - - - - - - (298505) - (298505
T o S resene ERTITRE - - - - - 10 - (1361 - - -
s i 31 December 2020 WoB-FET-A=1-H R T S N £ S/ [ LT 11 - w4408t 43931 2019 4531302

*

HK$1,439,034,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,920,908,000 (2019:

*

ZERBBREEEGREMBIRARANZ
1%2,920,908,000/8 7 (=
BIT) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ﬁ%

T — N4 :1,439,034,000

FH

113



114

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERENREER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—BE-_TEF+-_A=1+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associates and joint
ventures

Net gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate

Interest income
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties

Fair value gain on redemption of convertible notes
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets/liabilities at FVPL

Reversal of provision for inventories

Gain on bargain purchase

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Impairment on intangible assets

Impairment on investment in a joint venture

Net impairment loss recognised on financial assets

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
Impairment on right-of-use assets
Equity-settled share option expenses

EEEHRLRE

B A

A

B kA
SIEHERFARA SO E L
Fie 1A
HER— B ATZ
2 W F R

FIBIBA

BENE2 DVEER/
MBI AR AR B R 2 AT B
BBt A TEH 8 2 Bt
BEE/ B2 AFEK
),/ i

BB E R

5 (EURR 2

EWE  BERBEERY
B8

b7 86

ST

i — R B 2 7 2 598
A E 2 8
LA 2 (8
RSB R BE 2R
SRRHHAE 2 REBRT
W - B KR A RE
EREEE A

ARG 45 8 2 B PR B 2

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade debtors and bills receivable

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Decrease in derivative financial instruments
Increase in other non-current asset
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in accruals

FERL, (M)

JFE W B K I LA SR AR >

BNFOR - e R EAMEWRKIA
(1), m

OTER B T AR D

HAbIEREN B E IR N

R A B R e L At < RIS 0,
ORL)

BRBEENORL)

fEEtE A O, /150

Decrease in deferred income PR IE AR D
Cash generated from operations LEEHEHRS
Income tax paid AT TSR

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

LEFDRERSREFE

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

Notes

B &E

2020 2019
—B-%F —T-hFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,213,362 834,137
65,140 118,334
(266,393)  (342,112)
(1,022,999)  (817,352)
(18,250) (8,531)
1,400 (461)
- (67,122)
(3,623) 254
(5,798) -
(245,300) -
2,680 80
95,046 20,004
34,140 14,459
= 29,957
7,390 -
130,107 31,368
- 17,381
274 82,483
5,054 -
23,363 -
5,862 10,377
21,455 (76,744)
43,824 (358)
178,071 181,528
(1,440) 65,196
= 22,780
(1,358) -
46,055  (110,947)
36,336 (21,545)
(4,980) 17,184
(1,750) (15,490)
316,213 61,604
(21,834) (20,300)
294,379 41,304




GEelEHREE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_THFE+_—A=+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2020 2019
—B-BE —B-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH 2 RERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and HEME - BERZEEE 2
equipment 1FRIAR 2,750 330
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash & —FEME A Bz IS RIEF
HHKRESR) - 95,731
Dividends received from associates BUEE & AR 2 KB 15 68,058 50,523
Net proceeds on disposal of partial interest in an associate &R —EHE & A 2 # o #E
Z P RIR R 5 1,493,480 1,719,683
Interest received 2R 2 15,450 9,500
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WEAXREIER 12 (23,079) (10,590)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEREE 14 (7,322) (5,461)
Payment for financial asset at fair value through profit or  BBIBSIE A FEFEZMBEE
loss EZRIR 16 (271,874) —
Net proceeds from/(payment for) acquisition of subsidiaries, 425 HT & 2 B A5, (FT{sH) 5KI8
net of cash FEE(HBRES) 124,095 (264,597)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities KREESAS A REFE 1,401,558 1,595,119
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHZRERE
Interest paid EFLE (47,942) (124,032)
Proceeds from new bank loan FRITE RS IA - 1,256,000
Repayment of bank loan BBIRITER (54,829) (40,000
Repayment of convertible notes BEEBRREE - (778,000)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of  FBARIEEITE AT 1T EBAFTS
share options FIE - 9,198
Dividend paid ERIRE (298,505) (1,667,102)
Payment of lease liabilities HEAREBEZMR (103,685) (10,229)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling interest REFEERER EE 3,745 =
Net cash flows used in financing activities BREEHARESNE F5 (501,216)  (1,354,165)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERHRE&EEWIEINFEHE 1,194,721 282,258
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FUReRREFEY 649,262 380,654
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SN BE R B B 2 28R 13,458 (13,650)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR FRBEESRREZEY 1,857,441 649,262
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH BERBRESBYEHRIN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances H& MIRITHER 21 982,537 500,867
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of less ~ BRAZIHA B AR =18 R Z FEE A
than three months E BT K 21 874,904 148,395
Cash and bank balances as stated in the statement of R BRARYIR RS RIRTT
financial position KRR 21 1,857,441 649,262
The notes on pages 116 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated F16E220B FTH 2 M A% S48 6 M 153

financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

%n & Bl 75 $R B X

31 December 2020 —E-FF+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the ordinary shares of which are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Principal activities
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

° production and distribution of sports content, management and marketing of
sports talents and provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy services;

° operation of sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks; and
provision of community development consultancy; and

° development, design and sale of sports and lifestyle consumables.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co”"), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2331), is an associated company

of the Group, whose principal activities include brand development, design,
manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment
and accessories in the People’s Republic of China (the ‘PRC").

CITIC Land Co., Ltd ("CITIC Land"), a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability and a directly owned subsidiary of CITIC Group Corporation,

is an associated company of the Group, whose principal activities include
property development and operation; property management; hotel investment
and management; construction project and facilities contracting and equipment
installations; decoration units; landscaping; property development consultancy.

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd. (the “Double Happiness”), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, is an associated company of the
Group, whose principal activities include manufacture, research and development,
marketing and sale of principally table tennis and badminton equipment under its
own ‘“ALEE= (Double Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories.

These financial statements are presented in HK$, unless otherwise stated.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements also include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

° certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and
investment property — measured at fair value; and

° assets held for sale — measured at lower of the carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRS for the year ended 31 December
2020 has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these consolidated
results and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated results.

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

2. FEEGBREE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
The Group also elected to early adopt the following amendment:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16 on COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions provided lessees
(but not lessors) with relief in the form of an optional exemption from assessing
whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can
elect to account for rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not
lease modifications.

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions
are met;

° the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30
June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 on COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions is mandatory for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. The Group has elected
to early adopt amendment to HKFRS 16 on COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions for
the current reporting period as permitted by this amendment.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all rent concessions that meet
the above conditions in respect of lease arrangements for which lease liabilities
are recognised. The early adoption of HKFRS 16 on COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions does not have material impact on the consolidated financial statement
in the current year.

(b)  New standard issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting period and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has

control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights

to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset and liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

It the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling

interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity

interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired

is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling

interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value

of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.

() Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

It the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment

to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group'’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

When the most recently available financial statements of an associate is different
from the Group’s reporting date, the Group may take advantage of the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share
of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in an associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is not individually
tested for impairment. Accounting policies of the associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the

profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment primarily consist of buildings, leasehold
improvements, machinery and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and
motor vehicles. They are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as

a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% to 5%
Shorter of remaining lease term or 33.3%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

7.5% to 33.3%
9% to 33.3%
9% to 33.3%

Machinery and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income and other gains — net’ in
the profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at

fair value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date

by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property under construction or development for future use as an investment

property is classified as investment property under construction. If the fair value

cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under construction will be

measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction

is completed.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss as part of a valuation
gain or loss in ‘other income and other gains — net’. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

(@  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, represents the excess of

the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Impairment reviews of goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are
undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b)  Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to

be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually

either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets

are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is

reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to

be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to

finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks and membership

Separately acquired trademark and membership are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks and membership acquired in business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and membership that have finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of trademarks and membership over their estimated useful lives.

Operating rights

Acquired operating rights are shown at historical cost. Operating rights acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of operating rights over their estimated useful lives
of 15 to 20 years.

League Qualification

League qualification has a definite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. It is initially
measured at fair value of the consideration given to acquire at the time of the
acquisition. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of league qualification over its estimated useful lives of 9 years.

Players’ registration rights

The costs associated with the acquisition of players registrations are capitalised
as intangible assets at the fair value of the consideration payable, including

an estimate of the fair value of any contingent consideration. Subsequent
reassessments of the amount of contingent consideration payable are also
included in the cost of the individual's registration. This assessment is carried out
on an individual basis. The costs are amortised over the period covered by the
individual's contract of 1 to 3 years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using the straight-

line method over the following periods.

° Trademarks and membership 5-20 years
° Operating rights 15-20 years
° League Qualification 9 years

° Players' registration rights 1-3 years

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also

included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments
based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance

cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset's useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

2. TESHHEBE@)

BEHENRDOEEAS MFERA - Bt
BRARBHAEEENG - ASHEHZH
B B E SR E E B R -

ERREERKATE @ BREATEA
e HMEAEMVIHESR

e REHBMZAMIENEAEERN
R ORESHEAEEESE

o  (EMIIHRERKA - Rk
o BERA -

EREEE—MNEEMNAERFH AN
(ABRESE)RRERETUINE - HA
SESERETEREESEE  AERESR
EREREENAIERFHATURE - &
SEHRYE - BMEMREBEAZIIN L
BFETER  HEETHAKERENRE
REETETER -

MR MEEAREN N RAEE
BEEENHEAERENERPHER A
X o RHHERAENR12(E A K R121E
HHMEE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate

that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and those
to be measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on ftrade-
date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial
recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business

model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt

instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses

associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment

methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For further details on the Group’s accounting policies for management of financial
assets, see Note 39 credit risk.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency
contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Perpetual Convertible Bonds

Perpetual Convertible Bonds issued by the Group gives holders the right to convert
these Perpetual Convertible Bonds into a fixed number of the Company’s ordinary
shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share, subject to adjustments

as provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Perpetual Convertible
Bonds have no maturity date and are not redeemable. They are treated as equity
instruments and are not remeasured in subsequent years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net

realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised and

the anticipated costs to completion.

Costs of properties include acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing
costs and other direct costs attributable to the properties. The carrying values of
properties held by subsidiaries are adjusted in the consolidated financial statements
to reflect the Group’s actual costs incurred where appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables

Trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts due from customers for goods sold
and services rendered in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
debtors and bills receivable and other receivables is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade debtors and bills receivable with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 19 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade debtors and bills receivable and Note 39 for a description of
the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been

acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are

classified as current liabilities it payment is due within one year or less. If not, they

are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will

be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the

profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the

carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or services is

transferred to the customer. Depending on the business model, terms of the

contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods and services may be

transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation, depending
on the nature of the good and service to be transferred, is measured based

on one of the following methods that best depicts the Group’s performance in
satisfying the performance obligation:

o direct measurements of the value of individual services transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

° the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods followed by related services,
or multiple services, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When either party to a contact has performed, the Group presents the contract

in the statement of financial position as a contract asset or a contract liability,

depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s

payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that the Group has transferred to a customer. Contract assets and assets
arising from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract that are recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 15. The Group uses practical expedients to recognise the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred as the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

It a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers a good or service

to the customer, the Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is made. A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue
streams of the Group:

(@)  from providing services including integrated sports content production

and distribution, sports talent management, community development consultancy
service and sports park facilities and ice-skating rinks hiring, in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is
recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period
as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously;

(b)  from the sale of goods, when control of the goods has been transferred to
the buyer, which is upon the acceptance of the goods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the

Group is a principal if it obtains control through one of the following way:

o Control the good or services before it transfers to the customers;

° Has the ability to direct another party to provide the service to the customer
on the entity’s behalf; or

° Providing a significant service of integrating services and obtains control
of the inputs to the specified good or service and directs their use to create the
combined output that is the specified good or service.

If control is not clear, the Group will analyse the three indicators (1) who is the
primary obligator; (2) who has the inventory risk and (3) who has the discretion in
establishing the price to assist the analysis of control. Sometimes, control are not
always clear and judgement are need in analysis of whether the Group is principle
or agent.

If the Group is principle, revenue will be recognised at the ‘gross’ amount paid
by the customer for the specified good or service and record a corresponding
expense for the commission or fee that it has to pay to any agent, in addition to
the direct costs of satisfying the contract. If as an agent, will record revenue the
commission or fee earned for facilitating the transfer of the specified goods or
services (the ‘met’ amount retained).

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease terms;

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of other
income and other gains-net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on a time proportion basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all

attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares granted on
grant day:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that

are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly atiributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement

benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made

based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit

or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an

independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are franslated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings
used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
franslation dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the

exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates

of the translations. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEiREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group'’s entire

interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a

subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control

over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss

of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all

of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that

operation attributable to the owners of the company are reclassified to profit or

loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-atiributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s
equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group'’s financial statements requires management to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and

the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

() Impairment of gooawill and intangible assets

Indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill are tested for impairment annually

and at other times when such an indicator exists. An impairment exists when

the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in

use. Both calculations require the use of estimates. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in-an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In estimating the value in use of
assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated with the
non-current assets (such as future sales forecast, expected capital expenditure and
working capital requirements) and discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to be revised,
and this may have an impact on the Group’s results of operations or financial
position.

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU with goodwill. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs with goodwill have been determined based on
value in use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal calculation, which use
cash flow projections as at 31 December 2020. These cash flow projections are
derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast covering a period of
5-10 years and have incorporated necessary updates. The key assumptions used
in the value in use calculations are set out in Note 14.
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31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.3. This requires an estimation of the value
in use and fair value less cost of disposal of the asset. Estimating the valug in
use for the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the asset using key assumptions such as the estimated future
store performance, economic environment and the sales growth rate and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 were HK$92,622,000 (2019:
HK$74,156,000) and HK$277,077,000 (2019:HK$176,282,000), respectively.

(i) Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of
each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The assessment of the
provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by considering
historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based on internal budgets
and certain market factors. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/writeback in the period

in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts on all
inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether
provision needs to be made in respect of any obsolete inventories identified.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period and

is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has
been made in the consolidated financial statements. The carrying amount of the
Group’s inventories as at 31 December 2020 was HK$183,863,000 (2019:
HK$1,807,000).

(iv)  Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired through business
combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations,
which requires the Group to record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their
fair values on the date of acquisition. Significant judgment is used to estimate the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired, including estimating future cash flows
from the acquired business, determining appropriate discount rates, asset lives and
other assumptions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. The management
reviews the Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service perspective. The
management separately considers the different products and services offered,
and for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group is organised into three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the sports and lifestyle consumables segment engages in development,
design and sale of sports and lifestyle consumables;

(b)  the sports team and event management segment (previously known as
sports-related business segment) engages in the production and distribution of
sports content, management and marketing of sports talents and provision of
sports-related marketing and consultancy service; and

(c)  the sports destination development segment engages in operation of sports
parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks, development of communities, provision
of sports destination development consultancy services; and property development
for sales and investment; and

From 1 January 2020, sports-related business segment information was presented
as sports team and event managements segment due to the development of the
Group’s business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax. The
adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
or loss before tax except that interest income, finance costs, equity-settled share
option expenses, fair value changes on investment properties, share of profits
and losses of associates and joint ventures as well as head office and corporate
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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31 December 2020 —E-F&#+—-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

S il 35 #h 2= i 5

reE5EER (|)

Sports
and Sports team Sports
lifestyle and destinations
consumables  event management development Total
BE-ZCEF B8R BERAR
Year ended 31 December 2020 TZA=t-HLEE EENRBEER EZEE BEENMHEE @it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TARL A Fhr FEr
Segment revenue: A -
External OB 438,994 210,889 169,153 819,036
Segment results %A (93,454) (6,006) (12,300) (111,760)
Reconcilation: A -
Interest income MEWA 18,250
Fair value loss on investment property RENE L ATEFR (1,400)
Fair value gain on financial assets/labiities at FVPL BBBRRATENEZHEEE/
BEATERE 3,623
Net gain on disposal of parfial interest in HER—FBE AR BrEE
an associate e 1,022,999
Gain on bargain purchase EEWENE 245,300
Equity-settled share option expense IRERS 2 BRER Y (5,862)
Impairment on Intangible assets BYEEZRE (130,107)
Net impaiment loss recognised on financial assels B R EE 2 REBEFHE (274)
Cororate and other unallocated expenses PEREMRIRRR (28,660)
Share of profts less losses of associates and joint  HMEBE AR KA E 2 HEHH
ventures i3] 266,393
Finance costs FBRA (65,140)
Profit before income tax BRETEHATR A 1,213,362
Other segment information: HitpHEs
Depreciation e 57,224 1,801 27,067 86,092
Ad: depreciation related to corporate meECEEEME 8,954
95,046
Capltal expendiure BEARY 4,215 155 18,698 23,068
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate m: BrEARERREY 1
23,079
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31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4, REHIER(E)
Sports
and Sports team Sports
lifestyle and destinations
consumables  event management development Total
BZ-Z-hE BB BERAR
Year ended 31 December 2019 +ZB=t-HLLEE EEREEER EZEE EREMNEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TE FHT
Segment revenue: A
External oM — 356,413 268,591 625,004
Segment results PRES - 22,939 (70,729) (47,790)
Reconciliation: FEE
Interest income HEKA 8,531
Fair value gain on investment property RENE 2 DB 461
Fair value gain on redemption of convertible notes BB ATAIRE B v A FEUE 67,122
Fair value loss on financial assets/liabilfies at FVPL B BBHIEATE 22 HKEE/
& ATEESE (24)
Net gain on disposal of partial interes in HER—HBELRA BI#E L
an associate e FE 817,362
Equity-settled share option expense IIRIELEE 7 R IER S (10377)
Impairment on investment in a joint venture R-HaEtEREAE (17,381)
Impaiment on intangible assels BYAE L RE (31,368)
Net impairment loss on financial asses HBEELRERETE (82,483)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RRELFZEE (29.957)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREMRARRR (63,497)
Share of profis less losses of associates and joint - PMEBE R FIRA S0 2 HFIR
ventures B 342,112
Finance costs BIRRAR (118,334)
Proftt before income tax BRATE R ATE R 834,137
Other segment information: Ht D HEH
Depreciation & - 5,047 10,971 16,018
Add: depreciation related to corporate m:EERE NE 3,986
20,004
Capial expendiure BARRAX - 2,004 7519 9523
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate m: AEEE ERRY 1,067
10,590
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4, REHFIER (&

Information about major customers FEEFZER

Revenue of approximately HK$201,180,000 was derived from an individual REBEEZE-_EF+_A=T—HLEFE -
customer, which is a related party as disclosed in Note 34, for the year ended #9201,180,0008 Tz =R B —RERIE P
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$316,249,000). There is no other customer (BT EBENEEAT) (ZE—NEF -

contributing more than 10% of total revenue.

Geographic information

316,249,000/8 7C) - M EE M R F(h U=
10%BA ko

EER

The Group's revenue from external customers and non-current assets other than \?%@Efﬁgﬁﬁﬂa D2 RE %tjﬁ%}f'zqg
interests in associates and joint ventures and deferred tax assets, by geographical HRIERHEE(NBAATIRALNE S &

location, are detailed below:

@S PEEF BB ERIN ZFBWT

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-h#F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

i) Revenue from external customers i) RENPEE 2=
The PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau) PR (BIEEERRM) 778,371 625,004
Singapore EADIIE S 40,665 =
Total A=t 819,036 625,004

ii) Non-Current Assets i) ERBEE

The PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau) PR (BEEERREF) 900,654 708,307
Singapore EADIIE S 18,520 =
Total st 919,174 708,307
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31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET 5. WH >~ Bt AR E R FEE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and other gains-net are as AEBEWZ - EfWAREMKS FE LD
follows: T :
2020 2019
—ECRH —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FET FAET
Revenue Wz
Sports content production and distribution BERARMEREITHRA
income 193,054 338,747
Sports talent management income BEAAEERA 17,836 17,666
Sale of goods HEEm 447,978 199,766
Community development consultancy service 1 & 25 & &% 58 IR S AL
income 1,223 1,053
Sports park facilities and ice-skating rinks hiring £ & B 5% 58 M /8 7k 35 2 1
income and other service income B WA M E A AR A UL A 150,856 57,943
Gross rental income e A BzE 8,089 9,829
819,036 625,004
At a point of time TR 447,978 199,766
Qver time iz 371,058 425,238
819,036 625,004
Other income Hpug A
Government grants TR 47 B 33,187 20,291
Interest income FEMA (a) 18,250 8,531
Others Efh 11,950 9,619
63,387 38,441
Other gains-net H i &5 /558
Fair value gain on redemption of convertible  B& B AJ#R AR =2 4% ~ A FE
notes Wz - 67,122
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets/ BREREAFEFELZ
liabilities at FVPL MIBEE,/ BlE2RY
Bl (EiE) 3,623 (254)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment property &% 2 A A (B
18),/ W (1,400) 461
Net loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - MERREZ
equipment [EriE 5 R (2,680) (80)
Foreign exchange gain/(10ss) PE 5 ez, (E518) 27,855 (2,448)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fENEB AR ZEE = (29,957)
Gain on bargain purchase T E 245,300 =
Net gain on disposal of partial interest in an ~ HER—FHME R A2
assoclate DR 2 W F 58 1,022,999 817,352
1,295,697 852,196
1,359,084 890,637

Note: BiaE -

@  Total interest income on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost for the year was @ FRNREERKAGTENTEEENETE
HK$18,250,000 (2019: HK$8,531,000 at amortised cost). I A 218,250,000 T0( =B — NL4E « IREE AR
8,631,000/87T) °

(b)  Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liability balance at the b EFHAFTEHEBEEHRZFRNEDHERAKES
beginning of the year was HK$52,657,000 (2019: HK$20,102,000). 52,657,000/ 70 ( —ZZ— 14 : 20,102,000/ 7T) °
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET 5. W& > HtR AR EMb = FEE
(CONTINUED) (%)
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities mENEERIAN KSR
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEBERRTIEEFPENEHEHNERE
customers:
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T TFET
Contract liabilities — receipts in advance BB E-TARFIE 107,108 61,377
As at 31 December 2020, included in contract liabilities was an amount of RZE_TEF+_A=+—"H8 BB22Q
HK$24,589,000 (2019: HK$2,618,000) received from associates, which is AIUEY 2 5} I8 24,589,000 T ( — &2 — N4 -
based on normal commercial terms offered by the Group to major customers. 2,618,000/ 7C) Jist AS M EE - IR AR
SEMETEXFRBZIEFEEKRREE -
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. B
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T F& T AT
Interest on bank loans RITEFH B 47,942 5,061
Interest on convertible notes I E 7 FiIFER - 106,984
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNS 12(B) 17,198 6,289
65,140 118,334
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7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group’s profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

7. PFRFTSBIATRF
AEEZRAAEHRANAREME, (GFA)
T BTER

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P& FExT FHET
Cost of sales SHERAR
— Cost of inventories sold —BEEFEXRAR 221,135 190,077
— Reversal of provision for inventories —BEFERE (5,798) -
— Cost of services provided — PR AR A AR AN 272,911 311,718
Depreciation e 12 95,046 20,004
Amortisation of intangible assets B & E 14 34,140 14,459
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N &
— audit services — ZE RS 3,910 3,517
— non-audit services — IEZERTE 4,041 3,022
Employee benefit expense EERNAX(BREES
(including directors’ remuneration (Note 8)):  BH< (FizEs)):
— Wages and salaries —TIE&ENES 184,851 76,784
— Equity-settled share option expenses — DAL E 2 AR
g 5,862 10,186
— Contributions to defined contribution — EREHIRKEE 2
retirement plans R 9,056 5,679
Impairment on intangible assets | EEZRE 14 130,107 31,368
Net impairment loss recognised on financial B MR B EE 2 RIEE
assets pi=peko] 39 274 82,483
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  #1% - FE MEREZ BE 12 5,054 =
Impairment on right of use assets EREEERE 12 23,363 =
Impairment on investment in a joint venture ~ R—REIA K EIRE Y
A 15 - 17,381
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment KREWMEZ N TE
properties )Eﬂé/(ukﬁ))%%ﬁ 13 1,400 (461)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss PEH (Wes) 518 (27,855) 2,448
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREEZ
plant and equipment B 1855 5 2,680 80
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets HEBTLEE I F5E 14 7,390 =
Fair value gain on redemption of convertible EE@—_H:&]HXZRTEZL\EF1E
notes g 5 = (67,122)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets/ BBERRATEFEZ
liabilities at FVPL BigEE,/BE2AF
E(UkzE), B8 5 (3,623) 254
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR ZEE 5 - 29,957
Gain on bargain purchase EEWERE 35 (245,300) =
Net gain on disposal of partial interest in an Hj%)‘ﬁé\—F‘EJ 5.%*5*’/3 Bz
associate B #E a2 Was FRE 5 (1,022,999) (817,352)
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

8. EEHS

RIEE S 2 A 0 B33 R AR (REE
EREER) R Z B RE FEEEHS
T

2020 2019

—E-%% —B-hE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET AT

Fees we 1,595 1,848
Other emoluments; Eiil< -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REMER 15,609 17,606

Equity-settled share option expenses IR A E 2 BB AR F S = 257

Pension scheme contributions R ETEIEER 91 173

15,700 18,036

17,295 19,884

During the current and prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of

the Company, further details of which are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements. The fair values of such options, which have been recognised in profit
or loss over the relevant vesting period, were determined as at the respective
dates of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year are included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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31 December 2020 —E-F&+—-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEM=uW)
An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, is as follows: EEMestieT :
Salaries, Equity-settled Retirement
allowances and  Discretionary  share option scheme Total
Fees henefits in kind Bonus expenses  contributions  remuneration
 BE IR NRELE? RKEHHR )
e ENEN BETAL  BRERY Ay Medst
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TEn TEn TER TER TER TEn
2020 “BIEE
Executive directors: YrES:
Mr. Li Ning FELE 200 11,733 - - 18 11,951
Mr. Chan Ling RELE ] 45 663 - - 4 m
M. Li Chunyang ZEBRE 200 537 - - 51 788
M. Li Qifin FERE 200 2,316 360 - 18 2,804
645 15,249 360 - 91 16,345
Non-executive director: FYTES:
M. Ma Wing Man Stk 200 - - - - 200
200 - - - - 200
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
directors:
r. Wang Yan TEE 250 - - - - 250
M. Pak Wai Keung, Martin AEELE (o 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Li Qing ERiE (e) 250 - - - - 250
750 - - - - 750
1,595 15,249 360 - 91 17,295
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEMEw@
Salaries,
allowances and Discretionary - Equity-settied share  Refirement scheme
Fees  benefits in kind Bonus  option expenses contributions  Total remuneration
\ e *i@ﬁ R WREEE, RAEIEH \
we ENER REEL  BRERX o M asr
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 ThL ThT TATL TATL ThL ThL
2019 “E-hE
Executive directors: HTEE:
M. Li Ning FEEE 200 11,714 - 9 18 11941
Mr. Chan Ling BEEE 200 2,240 - h8 18 2,016
N, i Chunyang SEBLE 200 1,388 - 2 119 17%
Mr. Li Qifin TEELL 200 2,264 - 126 18 2,608
800 17,606 - 202 173 18,801
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
M. Ma Wing Man BRULE 200 - = 9 - 209
M. Chan James REILE ) 9% - - 8 - 106
298 - - 17 - 315
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
directors:
M, Chen Joinny BERLE o) 30 = = 9 - 39
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent ARIEEE (0 U2 = = 9 - 51
Mr, Wang Yan TiERE 250 = = = - 250
M, Pak Wai Keung, Martin ARSELE (d) 20 = - - - 20
M L Qing ik (d 8 - - - - 8
750 - - 18 - 768
1,848 17,606 - 2b7 173 19,884
Note: MoaE -
(@  Mr. Chan James, resigned with effect from 28 June 2019, @ FREBEENR-Z—AF AT NBEIT -
(b)  Mr. Chen Johnny, resigned with effect from 13 February 2019. b BRERLER-Z—AF_A+=HEIT -
(©  Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, resigned with effect from 20 December 2019. © EREEER-Z-NFT_AZ+THET -
(d)  Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, appointed on 13 February 2019. O BEEEER—ZT—hAF_A+=BERT -
(©)  Mr. LiQing, appointed on 20 December 2019. ® FPEERZT-NFT_A-THESRFE -
(  Mr. Chan Ling, resigned with effect from 23 March 2020. H REEER-Z_ZF=A-T=HFHE -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FARRESHRAFABTARTAME 22
remuneration during the year (2019: Ni). B(ZF—NF 8-
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two directors (2019:
three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019: two) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

9. AERSHMAL
FRAEEREFMALEEMEER(—T—
NEF:=ZR2EZF)  EMSFBHIIN XM
A8 FRHMB=R(ZZF—NF : MB)ER
RAEERTRERZESFMALTZHME
BT

2020 2019

—EEF —E-hE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYER 9,328 5,663
Equity-settled share option expenses AR 2 BEARER 5,862 9,868
Retirement scheme contributions IRKEET BN 44 35
15,234 15,566

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals

FENE A THE 2 FEE RIFTTHAREL 2 &R

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: SHMALTZ AZT :
Number of employees
EBEAH™Y

2020 2019
—B-BE  —B-AF
HK$1,500,007 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7L 23,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$10,000,007 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7C £10,500,0007 7T 1 =
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,001 7C 213,000,000/ 7T = 1
3 2

In prior years, share options were granted to the non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid individuals remuneration disclosures.

REBEFE  CRFESTRIFTRAR
&= F A T SAKE RS MR EE L ER
& - ARE—TH BN M BHRRME29 -
ZEBRELAFERFBHE LRGSR
R WRREBREE - Mt ARFER
WRZHACF A LXFAWE 2 FESMIF
THREHzESFMALTZHER -
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX

10. FriB5%

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHExT FET
Current tax — Hong Kong AEFIE - BB
Charge for the year FAZ M 1,134 -
Current tax — other jurisdictions AEBIE -H LA E
Charge for the year FRTH 13,285 21,069
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 3,880 842
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary differences & B 2= &8 HY 2 4 & 78 Bl 27 (4,532) (14,378)
Income tax expense FrSHiF 2 13,767 7,533

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The PRC
corporate income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated
mainly based on the statutory tax rate of 25% on the estimated assessable profits
for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof (2019: 25%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax charge is as follows:

EBNEHERFARE BRI (H5TER
B FILATE = 16.5% (—ZF— NLE : 16.5%) 12
BEG - P BEEBELZPBECEMSH
BEZBRBEMRBIRITER « 2EMEN
R ARFEE A ERBOERIA25% 2 AT Rt
B(ZZ—NF:25%)  EHMMEEZRE
MR ZIE - DIREAEBERKETER
RAVEERZIBIIHERAE -

RRBRERES W E R B R ADEERZ
38 PR DA B BT 1525 A g M) 2 P 5 75 5 S B 3 1R
B ZHRIT

2020 2019

—E-EF —Z-h#F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Profit before income tax B Fr 15 %% Bl 2 A 1,213,362 834,137
At the statutory/applicable income tax rates of &R BIARER 2 A E, A 55 =R

different jurisdictions HE 185,056 134,705
Tax effect of profits less losses attributable o N A RE SRR EER

associates and joint ventures B e (45,534) (63,302)

Tax effect of income not subject to tax BERRBA Z R E (238,879) (147,888)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR MMAL 2 T2 54,978 45,403

Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 3,880 842

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBBECHETE 53,031 41,077

Tax effect of tax losses utilised EERAMIBEBECHETE (1,837) (3,304)

Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differeneces KR E F =58 2 MG & 3,072 =

Income tax expense FRSRiR S 13,767 7,633

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

11. PROFIT PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31

December 2020 and 2019 is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue and participating equity instruments during the years.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company after adjustment to the dilutive effect of share of profits in
an associate arising from its potential ordinary shares; and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares after adjustment for the effect of deemed exercise

or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares at no consideration at the
beginning of the year. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the effect of the
outstanding share options were included in the computation of diluted earning per
share as they were dilutive. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the effect

of the outstanding share options were not included in the computation of diluted
earning per share as they were anti-dilutive.

S il 35 #h = B 5

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

. AREEEFEABEESREF

BE_Z_ZTFR-_FT—NF+=-_A=+—
HEFEZEREAEISEREARRDA
BEEEAEBGFRENEFRAESREITLR
i% N 2 BN AR T A e o 8t & o

BT ZFR_F—NF+_HA=+—
BIEFESREERFSHENBERNDR
EaFE AELAFRRF(EREEEL B
EEZoE—HEBENR R 28 E 21k
) RE R NEFSE(ERRIERE
MZEREBTERE R EEEBEE LB
R EERAR)GE - BHE-_ZT-_TF+
“A=Z+—HIFE  ARERTEMER
EEEENE ARt EEREER T
EsfRERITEEREZFE - BE_T—
NF+—A=+—BLLFE AR EEXTHE
BRI A R EEME - ARt E SIS
SBRASTEA RS RITEBREZFE -

2020 2019
—E-TF —E-hE
Profit attributable to equity holders of the AR:TESRERERN Z AR A fERE
Company, used in the basic earnings per share B A FEMHFI(FB7T)
calculation (HK$'000) 1,192,392 834,366
Adjustment to the share of profits in an associate /7 858 @ % F8 8 5 (h — R &
arising from its dilutive potential ordinary shares A &2 % A (F#5 7T )
(HK$'000) (1,218) (7,975)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the AR:TESREERAN 2 AR A
Company, used in the diluted eamings per BARERF(FET)
share calculation (HK$'000) 1,191,174 826,391
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ~ FARFTE SREAREF| 2 B 3217 E B
issue and participating equity instruments used R R ERRR AR T B 7 hntE 58k
in the basic eamnings per share calculation (000) (TFA%) 11,264,333 11,260,786
Equivalent dilutive shares arising from potential ~— EVE7E E@AR AT E 4 2 BE S RIAR
ordinary shares ('000) (FR%) 579 =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and FRRFHE SAREEE R F| 2 L @Ak &%
potential ordinary shares used in the diluted B INFE T E(FR%)
eamnings per share calculation ('000) 11,264,912 11,260,786
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREEARZFBL) 10.59 7.41
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) EREERF B 10.57 7.34
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31 December 2020 —E-F&#+—-A=+—H

S il 35 #h 2= i 5

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12(A) M - BERRE
Machinery
Leasehold and office Furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
HEMEE HERED \ .
% ERfE HAREE HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET TEr TEr
31 December 2020 ZE-EFf+ZA=1-H
At T January 2020; RZE-TE-f—-H:
Cost A 11,106 54,279 67,017 4,390 5,561 142,353
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHMERAE (61) (24,878) (35,838) (3,791) (3,629) (68,197)
Net book amount e el 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
Opening net book amount ENREFE 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
Acquisition of subsiciares KEHBAR - 12,630 11,546 364 53 24,503
Additions NE - 1,255 14,057 1,684 83 23,0719
Disposal RE - (5,066) (248) (1,312) ) (6,629)
Depreciation charge e (246 (10138  (10,907) (592) (503 (22,386)
Impairment PR = 2,775) (2,202) (30) (47) (5,054)
Currency translation differences ERES 729 1,818 2,204 1 111 4,863
Closing net book amount FREEFE 11,528 33,125 45,629 4 1,626 92,622
At 31 December 2020: RZT_TE
tZAZt+-R:
Cost AR 11,854 53,222 97,228 2,163 3,864 168,331
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHTERAE (326) (20,097) (91,599) (1,449) (2,238) (75,709)
Net book amount EmFE 11,528 33,125 45,629 714 1,626 92,622
31 December 2019 ZE-NETZA=t-H
At T January 2019: RZZE-nE—A-H:
Cost KA - 23,002 17615 769 5,249 47,625
Accumulated depreciation and impairment L MERRE - (13,703) (8,870) (660) (3,993) (27,226)
Net book amount ERFE - 10,289 8,745 109 1,256 20,399
Opening net book amount ENREFE = 10,289 8,745 109 1256 20,399
Acquisiion of subsidiaries WEEHB A = 20,820 24,056 916 86 45,878
Additions NE - 4,229 4673 182 1,506 10,590
Transfer from investment properties (Note 13) ERARENE (F13) 10,977 - - - - 10,977
Disposel EE - - (3,457) ] 1438) (3909
Depreciation charge FES (61) (5,070) (2,900) (562) (461) (9,054)
Currency transltion differences EHER 129 (867) 62 (38) (17) (731)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 11,045 29,401 31179 599 1932 74,156
At 31 December 2019: RZT-NE
+=A=1-R:
Cost AR 11,106 54,279 67,017 4,390 5,561 142,353
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERRE (61) (24,878) (35,839) (3,791) (3,629) (68,197)
Net book amount EmFE 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the management of the Group
considered that certain leasehold improvements of the Group were subject
to impairment because of the challenging retail market due to the spread of
COVID-19 worldwide.

The management estimated the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit
as follows:

“bossini” cash-generating units

The respective recoverable amounts of HK$16,647,000 of the “bossini” cash-
generating units have been determined based on a value in use calculation
which was approved by senior management using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the respective items

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

12(A) M  BERSRE@E
@zi_?_2¢+—ﬂ—+ BIEFEE @ K
SEEEERAASERIHEYEEEL
BRE J?JEEE"COVID 19N 2EREST -

EREMARELBM I REISENAT:

[bossini IR S EAEE

[bossini |ZR S EAEE LLX—MQIEIiEEm 647,000
BLERESREBANEESREIEEN
EZFEREEETT fﬁfi\miiﬁ BIERRE
B ﬁ%& 1%IEH§?TT1§%$HHZ

of property, plant and equipment. Key assumptions used for the value in use BI7GTEEE R -_EBE-—T&E+—-—fF=+—
calculation as at 31 December 2020 were as follows: At TE?H{EfEFﬁTmﬁH SIBE/RBOT :
2020
—B-EF
Sales growth rate HERRR 0%
Gross margin rate FEFIE 42%-69%
Discount rate AL3R X 9%-12%

The management determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate
based on the expectation of future market development.

Impairment provision of HK$5,054,000 (2019: HK$nil) was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.

12(B) LEASES

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases
when the Group is a leasee:

ERERBEMARDRFRET LIHE
BEEREHE -

B BES,054,0008 L (- E—NF: TBL)
E?E"Et 9@_?$+_H_+ BILFEE
ZTE WEEWL,\ °
12(B) HE

() RUBIRRRERHRIR
FBRRRINRATHE(REEERAH
A)HREAFIRA

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-SHF —E-hEF
+=ZA= ‘I' H +=—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings BgF 277,077 176,282
277,077 176,282

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current E 135,312 15,359
Non-current IERE 273,476 169,279
408,788 184,638
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

12(B) LEASES (CONTINUED)

Increase in right-of-use assets through addition and acquisition of subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were HK$192,043,000 (2019:
HK$155,238,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s management identified certain retail

shops which continued to underperform and estimated the respective recoverable
amounts of HK$103,570,000 of their right-of-use assets. The recoverable
amounts of the “bossini” cash-generating units have been determined based on
value in use calculation which was approved by senior management using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining lease terms.
The pre-tax discount rate applied for the cash flow projection with a range from 9%
t0 12%.

An impairment provision of HK$23,363,000 (2019: HKS$nil) was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.

(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

128) MHEw@)
Eﬂzi_v_qi-f— A=+—BL%FE &
BAERWENEB AR mIEMMEREEE

#3192,043,000/8 7T (= F — N4 : 155,238,000
ABTT) °
RZZF_TF+-_A=+—H  AEEETE

EBHEANETHERRRENTEEH I
EM&‘GZ@W&*%F%HREZ‘M&Z@@%’E
103,570,000/ 7T fbos&mji%é%FZEE S v Y A]
U 6] & 58 TH IR 15 & EEEMEZFRAE
@n"’ﬁ#i Ei/}lb;%ﬁ H'J%EA/@%—ﬁ%Tfﬂ
EFHHsPREENE - BRARBESRETE
B2 BRFHATALIR R E N TO9%E12% ©

VB B 4523,363,0008 TT( —E— NF « T8
)EEA%& ?_?¢+ A=+—HI%
B2 B8R NiER

(i) REZRBERHOR
Eﬁ%ﬂmMTﬂﬁmﬁmﬁr

2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENER 72,660 10,950
Impairment on right-of-use assets FEREEERE 23,363 =
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FERZ (GTAMBRA) 17,198 6,289
Expense relating to short-term and variable %2 E e r] M E AR S (Gt ASHE K
leases (included in cost of sales, selling and AR~ $HE Ko SR X DA R AT R B At
distribution expenses and administrative and KERY)
other operating expenses) 39,896 4,505

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$143,581,000 (2019: HK$15,147,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases various offices, sports parks, ice skating rinks, retail stores

and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to
20 vyears. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

BT ZTF+-_A=+—HItFE - #
EEHMIRL R H BT A143,581,0008 7T (=
T— N5 : 15,147,000/ 7T) °

(i) AEBZHETBRAEARLGE
AEBHEZRRAGA  BER - BIK
% ZTEEMEEKBIES  HESHBEIR
12205 2 BIEHIBRET 7 » M ERFILERIE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

12(B) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales
generated from a store. For certain stores included fixed and variable payment

terms, the variable payment terms are with percentages ranging from 1% to 26%

of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

(v) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases
across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

12(B) HE @)

(iv) AIEBEEAF
ETMERERcHEBELNEEEEHY
B Al A RSN o BB T B 18 B E K& al &t
FIERREREME - AN BUERN TEE
AR 1% 226% o FRAAENRIKERESER
A BEFEHFREHEOEERASEHRK/N
1t - BURR SHE R A] S5 & 1 R 8 2 5%
SIS N AN B RER -

(v FEHEHBRERNALILESRER
AEENETRHERES B HEEEN
RIFAEEERE - EEAREZETHE
EME @ wSEEENEMENERSRE
BEEMEER K -

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYX
Land use
rights held
for future
development
of industrial
Completed buildings Total
B EAR KB
BT
BFEztib
=T fERE wat
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FETT FET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZFE—-NE—H—HBZ
BRTE(E 81,345 58,593 139,938
Fair value gain N ERE 461 = 461
Disposal B (b) (68,911) (57,305) (126,216)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB Z W% - WE R EE @)

(Note 12) (PfF5E12) (10,977) = (10,977)
Currency transaction EHR S (1,918) (1,288) (3,206)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R-_Z—hF+_-_A=+

and 1 January 2020 —Bk-_ZE-_FF—H

—HZERHEEAE - - -

Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BB A R) 205,100 = 205,100

Fair value loss N EEBE (1,400) — (1,400)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZFF+ A=+

— B 2 fRE(E 203,700 - 203,700

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for 2020 2019

investment properties MBREYEZBERERAZSE —E-EF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Rental income WA 3,338 4,430
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations
for future repairs and maintenance (2019: Nil).

The Group’s investment property was valued as at the end of the reporting

period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$203,700,000 (2019: HK$nil). Each year, the Group’s management decide
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of
the Group’s property. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group’s
management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation result when the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment property are included on page 222.

Notes:

(@ At 1 October 2019, the Group transferred an investment property to owner-occupied property
with fair value of HK$10,977,000.

(b) At 3 December 2019, the Group sold a subsidiary which held investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$126,216,000.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s
investment property:

31 December 2020

Quoted prices
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A BREE 41262160008 TR EWERNMB AT -

ATELRS \ \
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Fair value measurement using

A2 A PENE
Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

BX BX

TE I GIR RS AT B
miFHRE WARE HWABE #Et

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(5—F8) (F=F) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FHET

Recurring fair value measurement for: &R EM A FEFE ¢

Industrial property TEME - - 203,700 203,700
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

As the investment property is measured initially at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value, there is no movement of
fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct
comparison approach, fair value is estimated by using the direct comparison
method on the assumption of the sale of the property interest with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment property,
which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion

and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market price. The fair value
measurement is based on the above property’s highest and best use, which does
not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price (2020: approximately HK$3,300 per sq.ft
for industrial building and HK$2,400,000 for car park). A significant increase/
decrease in the market price will result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the investment property.

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

13. BREYX@) ) R
FR - FE-ERF_EHETEATETR
ZER  TEEASEBHE=EZIER -
AR RAMERAARR ST EREERE
JEBEBENSHE  WEATERBE=E
HEANZ ATEFEWEES) -
DNFELERAEZLBIAG REBEEEL
BE - RFEDMERLBE - BRWER
B XEHEVELEGHTISZ A LR
ERX S MmIEME
EITHERSZEREVEZFIL - B
B KD IR 28 BE - ERFNR
EMEE - UWSHEMLTISER - AFER
ERRBEMYERERARERNGE X
ERBEE -
TERABBREMTSER(ZE_TF
TERERTFHRAZI00ET @ MEES
#32,400,000/8 7T ) - ETHIBEEAE LA T
&ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ&§%¥@$@kmiﬂ/T
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

S il 35 #h 2= i 5

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BILEE
League
Qualification
and Home
and Away Players
Operating Co-operation Registration ~ Member-
Goodwill  Trademarks Rights  Agreement Rights Ship Total
BEERR
IESAE
HE [ EER E] Eeg Lt ] gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT THT THT FEL
At 1 January 2019: RZZ-NE-A-R:
Opening net book amount ENERFE 17,470 12,251 = = - - 29,721
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK BAR 208,255 63,832 16,249 112,809 - 25,845 426,990
Additions NE = 1,426 = = 19,825 = 21,251
Amortisation charge gye = (631) (724) (11,008) (2,006) - (14459)
Impairment charge REE (17,087) (11,355) (2,926) - - (31,368)
Curency translation differences ERES (1,896) (265) (754) (5,289) (245) = (8,445)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 206,742 66,258 14,771 93,600 17,574 26,845 423,690
At 31 December 2019: RZZE-NE
TZA=+-R:
Cost PR 223,829 17,600 15,495 107,524 19,580 25,845 469,873
Accumulated amorfsation and 2R LRE
impaiment (17087 (12.342) fo4) (14,024 (2,006) - 46183
Net book amount FEFE 206,742 65,258 14,1 93,500 17,574 25,845 423,690
At 1 January 20200 R-Z-ZF-A-R:
Opening net book amount FNREEE 206,742 65,258 14,1 93,500 17,574 25845 423,690
Acquisiton of subsidiares Wk B AT - 14,000 - - - - 14,000
Additions RE = 144 = = 1178 = 1,322
Amortisation charge BHE - (6,854) (956)  (11,740) (9,398) (5192)  (34,140)
Disposal RE - - - - (7,390) - (7,390)
Impairment charge (note i) EE (i) (130,107) - - - - - (130,107)
Curency translation differences ERES 2,725 3,992 934 5,560 583 1,415 15,209
Closing net book amount EREEFE 79,360 76,540 14,749 87,320 8,547 22,068 288,584
At 31 December 2020; i
+=A=1-A:
Cost B 235,843 96,978 16,527 114,739 15,047 27,585 506,719
Accumulated amorfsation and SR RRE
impairment (156,483) (20,438) (1,778) (27,419) (6,500) (5,517) (218,135)
Net book amount REFE 79,360 76,540 14,749 87,320 8,547 22,068 288,584

During the year, additions to intangible assets were mainly acquired as part of

business combinations (see Note 35 for details). They are recognised at their fair
value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently amortised on a straight-line

basis over their estimated useful lives.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED A A ERZERER AT

RER  RENEHAELEREEAME
RISEIE R E05) M — B Ul - AR A
MU B ATE - BT R A
G BRI o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations are mainly allocated to the
following cash-generating units (“CGUs"), which are separate business operations,
for annual impairment testing:

Sports parks CGU
Esports CGU
Ice-skating rinks CGU
Other CGUs

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU with significant amount of
goodwill;

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

14, BEEE@)
[k AR

BREGAHESNEEIEZLEE TIIBE
VEKLENRSELBMN(RSELE

f21) » RETFERERR -

EEEREELEN
ERREELEM
BKGHReELEMN
Hp R e EE BN

BENRAENKESHESRRANRS
EAEN

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Sports parks CGU EERReELEN 5,410 5,410
Esports CGU EHRASEEEN 32,684 30,622
Ice-skating rinks CGU BKGEIR e EEEN 40,550 169,994
Other CGUs HaIReEABM 716 716
79,360 206,742

(i) Sports parks CGU

The recoverable amount of the sports parks CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a ten-year period approved by management. Management considers it

is appropriate to apply a financial forecast covering a ten-year period in the VIU
calculation based on the factors including: (i) predictability of the trend of operating
scale; (i) expected sustainability of business growth; and (iii) length of period

to achieve business targets. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 28.7%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
sports parks CGU beyond the ten-year period is 2.5%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the sports parks CGU
for 31 December 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill;

2.5%-52.4%
3.7%-30.8%
28.7%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the ten-year forecast period. The cash flow
projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of ten years and have incorporated necessary updates.

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the ten-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

() BEERSELBEQ
BERReEAEMMNAKESEEIIRES
FAEEFEFARSREEN(ERETEEH]
AERNERETFPNTEEE)METE - E1EE
RAE - ERUTHEEZ  WMEREETETRE
BRETFHREzUEBEIBES @ Z25HR
=B ((EERBEBE 28RN ; () FEHA
¥BREE2AEEN  RINBREKBEZZ
B - EARARIESRETEA KT RTEIR R
B287% c AR HEREERERSEASLMNBB
10FEHMIRSREMNIER R A25% °

EE T _ZEF+_A=+—HHEEHEH
AeELSENNEREERERTHRR - )
TME T EREETEEREANANRER
EFRAMERNSERERERR

W R =R 2.5%-52.4%
EBITDAFIE =R : 3.7%-30.8%
BT AT RLIR 2 28.7%

WeniE R XTI B FRBMBE - BenE
BRI A ER A ] - At EIEE
ETFHNBERLEHALZERER -

EBITDAMR W s 2 B 4 bt A&+ F T8 R HAfE A S 15

Bkt - ThER B B AE R K F I H A
MAIRBRIE AR SR T 54RO
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of the sports parks CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

(ii) Esports CGU

The recoverable amount of the Esports CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using discounted cash flow projections. The discounted
cash flow projections are based on financial budgets covering a seven-year period
approved by management. Management considers it is appropriate to apply a
financial forecast covering a seven-year period in the VIU calculation based on
the factors including: (i) predictability of the trend of operating scale; (i) expected
sustainability of business growth; and (iii) length of period to achieve business
targets. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17.7%.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Esports CGU beyond
seven-year period is 2.5%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the Esports CGU for
31 December 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

-0.5%-131.9%
29.6%-57.9%
17.7%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the seven-year forecast period. The cash flow

projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of seven years and have incorporated necessary updates.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

14. EXEE @)
T A BIR R AR FATLL R - Wik E IR
SEEBMNZEERR

BE_T-_ZTHF+_HA=1+— EIJJ:@J*
EEJEMEJ:LEHEQ%L%F“ ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁ
%Eﬂﬂﬁ?\@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁlfﬁéFiﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
ERBEAKEEHE

(ii) ERRSEEEN
BERASELEMMAIKNE SR IRERE
B EFERMBEREREEIMETE - SR
REMEBANEREBEEMENRELF
HHNPHEE - EBERAE  ERUTE
= HRNEAEBEAETEARECFHMA
FRENBEE  ZEREEE  ((KERE
@%ZﬂEMH:mﬁ%%%%EZTﬁﬁ
M RNVEREFBZ2ER - EARRE

mETRIR R AIAEIRER17.7% » ARHEE
Eﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁi fitﬂ‘tiﬁﬂmfﬁﬁumim
BRER[25% °

EE T _TFA+ _A=+—HWEHRHA

CTELBEUNFEREERFERTHRR - AT
HiTEREEETEEREIRANESRE
TERIFTER S ERRER

Weaig R =K -0.5%-131.9%
EBITDAFI B 2 - 29.6%-57.9%
BREGATRAIR K - 17.7%
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ETFHNBRALEHALBETHER -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the seven-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of the Esports CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

(iii) lce-skating rinks CGU

The recoverable amount of the ice-skating rinks CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 19.1%. The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the ice-skating rinks CGU beyond the five-year
period is 2.5%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the ice-skating rinks CGU
for 31 December 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill;

5.0%-55.8%
22.8%-27.2%
19.1%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the five-year forecast period. The cash flow
projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of five years and have incorporated necessary updates.

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the five-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

31 December 2020 —E-_F&F+-_A=+—H

14. BREE @)

EBITDAMG Wz 2 B 7 bt At a8 HifE & ¥ 5
Bt o HER B RIFERKEW (L T
A R TE BRI R R T IG AR o

FIER AR R SRR R - WRIRARIR
TELABENZBERR

BE_T_THFEL+_A=1+— Eiﬂ:ifg'%
ERERA EAE AR REATELRNEIE
“ﬁ%HﬁT@%ﬁ%%ﬁEiFE £ ALY AR B
AlEBBE R e e

(iii)y BAKBHREELEN
BIKISIREEE BRI YE 2B IIREE
REEFEERABSRENE EU(%E/\ EEH
EHRERTFHNPKEEZE)MERE - BAR
e METRAARRATAIEEA101% - AR
HEB KSR e EE B BBSFHNE SN
ERIEREF25% °

EAE T _ZF+ " A=+—HWBKS
ReELEUNEREBERER TRE - K
TH T EREETRERENANRER
EFRAMENN SERESRERR

Wi R 5.0%-55.8%
EBITDARI B =R - 22.8%-27.2%
Br TR RTRLIR 2 19.1%

Waig kX HRFRASE - RERE
TER T B R A RST8] - AT EIEE
ENFHNEATVEHABBREHRER -

EBITDAME Wz 2 B ot AR F 18 B HIM A F 15
B THERE RFERKEILEL A
VA= BRFE HA AR SR T3S AR ©

PRERAREIR R RIRIATEL R - S RRB BEER
TELBEMZBERR -
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of approximately
HK$130,107,000 was recognised (2019: HKS$nil). Impairment was made on
goodwill primarily due to the unpredictable poor performance of the business
and slower pace of generic growth as a result of outbreak of COVID-19. The
impairment loss recognised for the year represented the difference between the
carrying amount of the CGU including goodwill and its estimated recoverable
amount.

(iv) Other CGUs
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no impairment loss was recognised
on goodwill and other intangible assets of other CGUs in profit or loss (2019:

14. B EE#)
HE_ZT_TF+_-_A=+—RHLFE -
TR E E5 48 49130,107,000/8 T( Z&E — jL
F:THT) c mERENEEZERACOVID-19
RIEERERRREBRZITEERBRA
BIZRNE - FARRNBEBEERSE
SEM(BERE)NERmESREE MR
TRZENESE -

(ivy HttBRESELEN
REBEE—_ZE_ZF+_A=+—HLEFE -
MERNERRRINEEREELENNT

HK$28,442,000). B EMELEEANREESR(ZE—NF
28,442 00078 7T,) ©

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 15, REENTREELEZER
2020 2019
—ECEE —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FBT
Associates ik /NE]| 3,031,113 2,939,185
Joint ventures SEE 491 545
3,031,604 2,939,730

Interests in associates
The following is a movement of interests in associates during the year:

S T U
DT AFRRBE AR ERES

2020 2019

—EB-EF —Z-h#F

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5T FET FAET

At 1 January w—A—H 2,939,185 3,577,938

Share of profits less losses for the period A5 AR S TR ES 18 267,175 342,419

Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income SEEMEE(BE), KRS (1,906) 427

Share of reserves DI FEE 27,330 20,090

Dividend received BUR B (68,058) (50,523)
Change in interest in associate due to partial MR E D B EE BN E Q)

disposal KR = 2 B (a) (413,568) (862,594)
Reclassification to amount due from an associate ¥ DB EEUW —EHE A F

g - (5,522)

Currency translation differences MEHZRE 280,955 (83,050)

At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 3,031,113 2,939,185

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]




15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)
(@)  The Group entered into a placing agreement (“the Placing”) with The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (*HSBC”) on 31 March
2020 to sell 70,000,000 Li Ning Co Shares. The Group's investments in
Li Ning Co is considered as investments in associate and accounted for
using the equity method before and after the Placing. Upon the completion
of the Placing on 3 April 2020, the Group derecognised the carrying value
of the associate proportionate to the percentage reduced, reclassified a
proportionate amount of exchange fluctuation reserve previously recognised

to the consolidated financial statement, resulting in net proceeds of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

HK$1,493.5 million and gain of HK$1,023.0 million. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 13 May 2020.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates are as follows:

Name

=1

Li Ning Co
$ aony /‘\

CITIC Land
FEEXE

Double
Happiness
HEE

Notes registration

B &

Place of

incorporation/ Percentage of ownership interest

directly attributable to the Group

AL rEBEREAERERERZ

= 1 it Bh Bat
2020

—E-EF

Cayman Islands 13.3%

EEEE

The PRC 29%

h

The PRC 10%

A B

2019

ZE-hF

16.3%

29%

10%

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

15, REMERRAIREE LR RS
=

Q:":§¢EHE+ H $E
%DJ4M%% Gm%$ﬁbuﬁ
70,000,000l FE QR GD - ANEE
5““7%&&%%%%%%@7%
KRERRREESEEFERAEREZA
cHRZE_ETFNMAZHENESE
%Iﬁ?é ’ $%. l]:ﬁﬁuu ﬁ%‘@jﬁ
16 BT mZ$EE 1 4% B 1
WZER&@%ﬁzmmﬁﬁiﬁ 2R
BIFEEUBHRE Fiﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
1,493,500,0007% 7T & Wz 1,023,000,0007%
TC o BEAFE  F2MARRRHAS
Z-EFA—HMRAERARQGE HE
AT _TEFA+=ZHNAEK

s 345 7% I

AEEZ T EMERR ZFBOT

Principal activities

EREHK

Brand development, design, manufacture, sale and
distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel,
equipment and accessories in the PRC

Rt EEE S AEREESE - ARED - 330 R
frzmhEFRE - REt - RE - HEKDHE

Property development and operation; property
management; hotel investment and management;
construction project and facilities contracting and
equipment installations; decoration unit; landscaping;
property development consultancy

BHEME KL WXEE  AEREE
2 BEIEBETIREHELE  RBIEEMm
T2 : EM&Et : BHERBRS

Manufacture, research and development, marketing
and sale of principally table tennis and badminton
equipment under its own "4 #Z (Double
Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories

gE R SEREEEEEmEI A
-%MEEEEﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁ%%&EM%
BB
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the market value of Li Ning Co’s listed shares

was HK$53.25 (2019: HK$23.35) per share. The number of Li Ning Co

ordinary shares held by the Group as at 31 December 2020 was approximately

331,202,000 Shares (2019: 263,405,000 Shares) and the number of

convertible securities held as at 31 December 2020 was nil (2019: 137,797,000

units).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s
principal associates extracted from its financial information or financial statements
after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of acquisition
and adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any (the ones exiracted
from Li Ning Co and Double Happiness are after adjusting for the impacts of
adjustments made at the time of acquisition and adjustments for differences in

o
P
&§
g
>
ju ]
X
o>
T
e
ME
N
o
Qk
i

PR
B
el

tmkﬁZmEﬁth%%%mL:-jl
E 23.3587L) c RZE_FEF+_A=+—

CAEBBRAEZTEQARETRAREBEL A
331 202,0000% (== — N4 : 263,405,000/%) -
EA_?_?EJr AZ=+— B #pgE
A ZEEB AZH(ZZ— N4 :137,797,00019 ) °

TERMEAAEEETRHENB CMETHE
B BB E M B E NS R
T(BERRNWBREL 2 ABZEFEHARK
REHABRREZMAMELAR) (REFHEX
BFERANAEE 2 ER T E R U B
Rz ABEEELHRBELRASEEF =

accounting policies, if any, and for non-coterminous periods between the Group AAZEGHBERNEZE(MA) KT HES
and Li Ning Co): STHAREL SR %) -
2020 2019
ZECRE —E-nF
Double Double
Li Ning Co CITIC Land Happiness  LiNing Co  CITIC Land  Happiness
FENF HEBEE A8 ZEQR PEEE 0 AEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEx FEx AT FTET  TExn
Gross amounts of the associates BE ARz BLE
Current assets TEEE 11,923,332 339,995 1,456,900 9,016,426 288,991 1,293,849
Non-current assets EREEE 7,996,079 1,181,174 1,108,038 6195262 1,193,583 1,060,418
Current liabllities mBaE 6,625226 160,866 610,127 5264440 165342 549,445
Non-current liabiliies ERBEE 876,369 280,236 153,415 788117 317,686 150,662
Net assets attributable to the equity holders BniBARGEETE 12417816 1,080,067 1,801,396 9,159,131 999,546 1,654,160
Revenue for the period HRthas 15,790,515 155,094 789,217 11770738 118280 756,303
Profit for the period HRE 1,771,367 12,447 150,758 1,492,344 10,859 763,679
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEthzrEkE/ (B1B) (14,134) = = 2,958 - =
Total comprehensive income ﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ#@ 4] 1,757,233 12,447 150,758 1,495,302 10,859 763,679
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in the A& A B & A R MR
associates 4 iR
Gross amounts of net assets atirbutable o the B 2 TT’éﬁn%*ﬁ_ N3
equity holders of the associates BEFEEE 12,414,778 1,076,302 1,784,000 9,156,290 995,888 1,641,029
Group's effective interest i El‘%—?% i 13.3% 29% 10% 16.3% 29% 10%
Group's share of net assets of the assoclates AEEREHERFINE
EFE 1,651,165 312,128 178,400 1,496,138 288,809 164,102
Goodwil RS 751,426 80,221 57,173 859,777 75,160 54,339
Carrying amount in the cansolidated financial R e RRNERRE
statements 2,402,591 392,349 236,173 2,355,915 363,969 218,441
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15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 include the Group’s share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the
twelve months ended 30 September 2020 and adjusted for any significant events
or transactions for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
include the Group’s share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the twelve
months ended 30 September 2019 and adjusted for any significant events or
transactions for the period from 1 October 2019 to 31 December 2019. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to
include the attributable share of associates’ results based on accounts drawn up to
a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. There is no non-coterminous period end for other associates and joint
ventures.

Interests in joint ventures
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no impairment loss of investment in a
joint venture was recognised in profit or loss (2019: HK$17,387,000).

Commitments in respect of associates and joint ventures

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

15, REMERRAIREE LR RS

AEBEBE_ZT-_TF+_A=1T—HIHF
B eMBERREEAEEDHTERR]
BE_ZT-_THEAA=FTHIt+t-@AZ%
BERFEYRE S _FF T+ A —HREZ
E_TFE+_AZ+—HIEHBRZEREKR
EHIRGELEAE - AKEEE_T—
NEFE+—A=+—HLEFEZHEEMBEHRE
BREASESEEZTERFHE-_TE—NLFAN
A=+tHRIE+-Z@EAZEERFHIHEZ
E-NEFt+A—BRE_FT-HAFE+-A=
+—RAIPRZERNERAESHRR S ELH
B o AEECRMNE BT ERFE285RFTH
A i o HE R AR E A RN AR
EHRAR(BEEEETSBB=EA)ZKE
BAREEYEEBENRZEE - Hible
NEIREEREETEERER -

REELENER
BE—_ZE-TF+-_A=1+—HILtEE - #
ER—HEECEREZREBENRERNR
BR(ZZE—HF : 17,381,000/ 7T) °

FARBERRARESEDENEE

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Commitment to provide funding for associates’ — BLEf & A Al A &b E AN AIE
and a joint ventures’ capital commitment* R E ¢ 2 A&IE - 571,504

*

Included in the total capital commitment disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

EEARPBRKRM EBRE 2 BEARIE
H oo
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

S il 35 #h 2= i 5

16. Finanical assets/liablites at FVPL 16. EBREBERRAFEFEZHMEKE
E/afE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF

Notes Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

B 5 EE =R EE =N

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'OO_O HK$'OO_O

THET FExT FHT FHT

Options HA#E (a) - - - 2,965

Forward currency contracts REEEEX (b) 1,464 456 - -

Loan receivable FEWE R () 271,874 S - =

273,338 456 - 2,965

(@) The options are accounted for as financial assets/liablites at FVPL in the consolidated @ EBREAGEUBEKIRAARASZERER

statement of financial position and were lapsed on 22 December 2020. BATENECHBEE BE  WR=F
“EEF AT AR -

(b)  The carying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The b ZEHEBESGOCEEERFESEZAFERE
above transactions invalving financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are B o BiF RBEBEREATETEZHE
conducted with creditworthy financial institutions with credit ratings from A-1 10 A-1+. BE/ARZRPTREEFLEAAMEAT+

ZEERITSRIMERETT
During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency coniracts to manage its FRN - AEEFTVZERAEEESHUER
exchange rate exposures. These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge HEXRR - xSRI EB A HOWIEEENE
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The net gain in the fair value HhAG  WERBEREATENZ - F
of these non-hedging foreign currency contracts amounting to HK$458,000 (2019: HK$ nil A ZEFHHINE SN R TFEF RS SR
were credited to profit or loss during the year. 458,000/ T( ZE—NF « TET)ERER
A e

(©)  Amount represented a loan of HK$271,874,000 (equivalent to GBP25,726,000) at an © ZEBA—FMULionRock 2 271,874,0007 T
interest rate of 4% per annum due from LionRock. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the ($E?.’E.?ﬁ(\‘25,726,000§i§%)%??§( K B4 o
parties to the Loan Agreement may agree that, at any time, the principal amount of the loan REERZ - BEXBRZFTOFTIHER
together with all outstanding sums accrued under the Loan Agreement may be converted into FREHEBERESERERBZEEBE T 2H
and/or set off against any subscription amounts payable by Viva China Consumables Limited Mo et R BB IEEIA T K IE AL
(formerly known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings Limited) a wholly owner subsidiary of SHEMRABRA R (BITEIE BRI AR
the Company, in order to subscribe for equity in the SPV, therefore, the balance is accounted RNAE])  ARRIZEWB AR - B ZERR
for as financial asset at FVPL in the consolidated statement of financial position according to BERUE - AREBSPVAIE - Eit - IRIEER
the results of assessment of business model. BAFEER  ZERNEEMBRRERA

NEBEREATEFTEZMBEENRE -
For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated BRERWHEARE  B2HAARBHAC
28 September 2020. E-FFAA-—FTNBZRAE o
17. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 17. MERFE
2020 2019
—B-BE  —B-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Properties under development for sale BERPFEME - 290,557

The properties under development for sale are held in the PRC with medium to
long term lease. The development is expected to be completed after more than
one year from the reporting date.
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31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

18. INVENTORIES 18. &

2020 2019
—E-BE —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAR TR
Finished goods BN G 183,863 1,807

19. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 19. BEWERRREWEE
2020 2019
— 7 —_ ﬂE :E—nf‘i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade debtors and bills receivable JE UL BE TN K B UM ZE i 99,239 220,382
Less: loss allowance R EEERE (16,352) (20,758)
82,887 199,624

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, generally

one month, extending up to six months for major customers. Each customer

has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade debtors and bills receivable balances. Trade debtors and bills
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

AEBIERCETAEELRS @ FEH

—MRA—EA  TEFFARZAIEREE
HEXREA - BREFHUERSEERE -
SREEETHRNBBES  AEELE
st E U BR R K B M SR AR 45 R 15 A (AT HE AR
M H IR EE 2 RIE o FEUAR R R FEUL
ZEBRATEFE o
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

19. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 19. EWRARREKREE @)
An aged analysis of the trade debtors and bills receivable based on the payment FEUR BR Fh K R N IR AR IR SR EIHA B 2 BR R
due date is as follows: DT -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Current Bl HA 61,478 108,145
Less than 3 months past due B LR =EA 13,518 66,852
3 to 6 months past due mE==]EA 5,549 13,937
More than 6 months past due B HEB BN E A 2,342 10,690
82,887 199,624
Information about the impairment of trade debtors and the Group’s exposure to BREEWEZTORMENEAEEDREER
credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest risk can be found in Note 39. G AN S R AR E S 2 B R - B2
39 ©
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified customers b 7k 360 BA 35 (B 2 FE U S T8 B %% 4% 3 HA NP 4
with no recent history of default. R RFAR -
Included in the Group's trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts of FAREBZEWER R EINZIE AEW
HK$3,861,000 (2019: HK$1,082,000) due from associates. Bt 48 /X B 7 IE 3,861,000 ;L ( —F — L4 -
1,082,000/ 7T) °
20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FAIRIE - RERHMEWRIE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
Prepayments SEUNE O] 85,413 44,168
Deposits and other receivables L& & E M EWGRIR (@) 232,219 127,862
Less: loss allowance for deposits and other W 1R e R E M EWGRIE 2 B
receivables B 39 (94,836) (88,166)
222,796 83,864
Less: current portion B OREE S (167,551) (50,236)
Non-current deposits and other receivables MBI ® K& H M FEUGRIR 55,245 33,628
Note: MisE -
(@ Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. The detail information about @ e REMEWGEZEBEKAGTE - B
the credit risk and impairment analysis of deposits and other receivables can be found in Note Ze REMERFIBEERRKBRESTZ
39, BB 2RI ©
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(@) Cash and bank balances comprise

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

21. BERBITHEE
(a) BL2RBTEHEIE

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FH T T T

Cash and bank balances other than time deposits & BB 7F FUASN 2 IR & M IR1T 4584 982,537 500,867
Time deposits — less than 3 months FEHFEH— VPR =18A 874,904 148,395
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH R 1,857,441 649,262

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$459,196,000 (2019:
HK$336,955,000), approximately HK$385,718,000 (2019: HK$330,892,000)
of which was domiciled in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies in the PRC, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks other than time deposits earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one and three months depending on the short-term cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

(b) Net debt
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

RBEEER  KEBUARBFEZEES R
SR1T 4582 495459,196,0008 TT( — T — h & -
336,955,000 7T ) -+ E A £9385,718,000% 7T
ZF— 14 : 330,892,000 7T ) IF R E o
ARERPRATIERLBAEMER - R
i BECREINESIBIEH ) REE &
ERMNEETERTE)  ANEERESBERE
ﬁﬁ&lﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁH%/\E%m;@z%ﬁméi

RITRECERFHERINRES BRITHER
M RIZZ BRI REREUF B - MEEHERS
H—=2=—@ATE  RIELXKEEHREH
SKE - WIRE B 52 HAE H37F 5K0N) == SR ER A
B o |RITEREFRNBOBEENCEZAEE
R ZRIT o

() EEFEE
AHBEHE_ T _TFER_FT—NF+=
A=+ HBIEFENEBFEZ T NER

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T FHET

Net debt B F5
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 1,857,441 649,262
Restricted bank balances PR I SR 7T A5 84 3,627 3,342
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-R—FrEE (1,256,000) (1,256,000)
Lease liabilities HEARB (408,788) (184,638)
Net debt B FEE 196,280 (788,034)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 1,857,441 649,262
Restricted bank balance PR 6l 1% SR 1T A5 i 3,627 3,342
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEFSRRE-[E 7 | & (408,788) (184,638)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B RREF B (1,256,000) (1,256,000
Net debt B 55 196,280 (788,034)
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 21. BERBITHEER@E)
Liabilities from financing activities Other assets
REMETBH2EE HitEE
Cash  Restricted
Bank and Convertible Lease and cash bank
other loans notes liabilities  Sub-total equivalents balance Total
BITR BeR PR i

HtEm TRERE HERE it REEEW  ROTER st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT

Net debt as at 1 January 2019 R=Z—NF—A

—BZEBRFE (40,023) (819,602) (40,057) (899,682) 380,654 - (519,028)
Cash flows Bene (1,215,977) 859,464 10,229 (346,284) 282,258 3,507 (60,519)
Interest expenses FMERAX ~  (106,984) (6,289)  (113,273) = - (M32n3)
Fair value gain NEEY = 67,122 - 67,122 = - 67,122
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR = - (154,666)  (154,666) = - (154,666)
Termination — leases BIE—HE = = 5,338 5,338 = = 5,338
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEFEEE - = 807 807 (13,650) (165) (13,008)
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 R=F— N5
and 1 January 2020 +-B=+-EBR
—TC-TH
—A—R2
BHEFE (1,256,000 - (184,638)  (1,440,638) 649,262 3,342 (788,034)
Cash flows Beng 54,829 - 103,685 168,514 1,023,968 - 1,182,482
Interest expenses FERX = = (17,198) (17,198) = = (17,198)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEE B AR (54,829) - (273,064) (327,893) 170,753 57 (157,083)
Additon — leases RE—HE - S 38954 (38.954) - - (38.954)
Termination — leases BIE—HE = = 12,623 12,623 = = 12,623
Foreign exchange adustments  SMNEBEE - S (11249 (1242) 13458 208 2444
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 R=FE T4
T-A=t+—HZ
B (1,256,000) - (408,788)  (1,664,788) 1,857,441 3,627 196,280
22. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCGCES 22. PRFIMIRITEER
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FH&ET
Restricted bank balances PR Bl M BRTT AS BR 3,627 3,342
The restricted bank balances were pledged as security for the operation of two REIMEIRTTEBEERIEAMERE B it
sports destinations, namely Nantong Li Ning Sports Centre and Tianjin Li Ning (BlmmE=EEH /B\&ii%?@@iﬁqj )
Sports Centre and as security for bank guarantee for overseas subsidiaries of the K& B 2 BRMEAAEBEINGE R RER
Graup. TR ZIER -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The trade payables of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were mainly
aged within three months, as determined based on the invoice date. They are
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from 30 to 60
days.

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

23. ENRAREMMESFIE
BREREHHHE  AEER-_S-_TEK
TE-hFEt_A=t—HZENERZE
BMIFEALN=MA - ZERBEARER—
AR 30ZE608 Z HARR RIS o

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables FERTER K 112,493 57,873
Other payables o AN 201,134 114,721
313,627 172,594
24, ACCRUALS 24. FELIEM
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Accruals EETER 122,612 50,794

25. DEFERRED INCOME

The movements in deferred income as stated under current and non-current

25. EZEWA

SIARBMIERBDABERT ZBEERA 2 &

liabilities are as follows: BT :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEEE 10,831 25,743
Government grants received during the year FREWBAT R, 32,372 5,867
Credited to profit or loss FFABR (33,187) (20,291)
Currency translation differences PE N = &E (206) (488)
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HZEEE 9,810 10,831
Less: current portion B OmENER Y (2,100) (8,959)
7,710 1,872

Deferred income mainly represents government grants obtained for the purpose
of subsidising subsidiaries’ operation. Government grants received are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred income
and are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the grants are intended to compensate.

BIEWA T BRI R B A A 2 & M AR
B2 BRAFFAL o CUWERTFRL SRR A B

BARRKRAERBBELEWA - W IRAFEE
R R ET 8 TR E 2 IRN B S s -
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_HA=+—H

26. BANK LOANS

26. RITER

2020 2019

—ECEE —E-hE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET F&T

Bank loans, secured IRITE - Bk 1,256,000 1,256,000
Less: Current portion B mENER D - =
1,256,000 1,256,000

Bank loans bear floating rate of HIBOR plus basis.

As at 31 December 2020, loan represented collateralised bank loan which

is secured by interest in an associate with an estimated carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,315,718,000 (2019: HK$1,065,055,000), and the loan
is subject to certain covenants requirement relating to the quoted price of the
associate.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has bank facilities of HK$1,256,000,000
(2019: HK$1,648,500,000), of which HK$nil (2019: HK$392,500,000)
remained unutilised at 31 December 2020.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

RITERRBEBRITAZFEMEEEERZ
/?@Jf”fu‘l’ 2 o

N—_E_TF+-_A=+—H ' BExIEMH
R—HEERRzER(EHFERELN A
1,315,718,000/& L (= ZF— ﬁﬁ 3 1,065,055,000
/Em))?ﬁfﬁﬁzmﬁﬁfﬁ T - BEZER
PR B % 5%%*/\72%%@?%6@%?;@?&
HIE °

R-ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H  AEEEEF
$R1T 8 & 1,256,000,0008 T(—ZF — hF :
1,648,500,00087T) + EFZET(ZZE— N1
4 1 3925000008 L) R BE-_ZEF+ A=
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31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 27 EEMRBEERERE
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RirE M BRARBER ZELEFHIREETF
position are as follows: TEZZDT
2020 2019
i —B-N%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets BRI IR & B 24,384 23,700
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEBE (80,669) (49,538)
(56,285) (25,838)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows: FERNELERIBLAERABZEHNT

Revaluation Impairment and
of investment  other temporary

Deferred tax assets movement properties differences Lease liabilities Total
Eff REREM

ELHEEEST RENE ERES HEaE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEL TET TET FAT

A1 January 2019 R-Z-h&—Hf—H 7,307 5,136 - 12,443

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR = 10,559 = 10,559

Credited to profit or loss RBRETA = 5,536 45,306 50,842

Disposal of the subsidiary HE—FHRBAR (7,031) 429 - (6,602)

Set-off of deferred tax liabiifies REELTERE = = (43,260) (43,260)

Currency translation difference EHER (276) (6) = (282)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE-NE+ZA=+-8Bk

“E-TF-F—H - 21,654 2,046 23,700

Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR = 389 - 389

(Charged)/credted to profit or loss RBZNR),/FA = (2.502) 1,440 (1,062)

Currency translation difference ERER = 1,357 = 1,357

At 31 December 2020 W-_E-ZF+-fA=1—H - 20,898 3,486 24,384
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

27. EERBEEREE @)

Revaluation
of investment Intangible Right of use
Deferred tax liabilities movement properties assets assets Others Total
Bt
FEREEEST REME BEEE FRREE Hitr @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAL TAL AT AL

A1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—-8 (114 (3,064) = = (3,178)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR = (54,684) = (53) (54,737)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss REZFA/ (1K) 110 6,686 (43,260) - (36,464)
Set-off of deferred tax assets HHEEHREE = - 43,260 = 43260
Currency translation difference ERESR 4 1,574 = 3 1,581
At 31 December 2019 and 1January 2020 R=T—hE

TZA=+-BR

—E-TE-f-A - (49,488) - (50) (49,538)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR (31,652) (2,118) = = (33,770)
(Cherged)/credited to profit or loss REZ(NR)/FA (481) 6,075 = - 5,594
Currency translation difference RS = (2,952) = (3) (2,955)
At 31 December 2020 NZE-ZF

+-A=+-8 (32,139 (48,489) - 59 (80,669)
Notes: BfsE

@ At 31 December 2020, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,150,637,000 (2019: HK$778,634,000), subject to the confirmation of tax losses from
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. These tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$398,275,000 (2019: HK$63,545,000)
that will expire within five years to offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liability has not been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on certain
portions of the unremitted eamings that are subject to withholding taxes of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC as all of those profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]
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31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRA
Shares i &vil
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Nominal value Nominal valug
HE HiE
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
RO EE TiT BnE ! T
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each (‘Ordinary Shares’) BHAXEIE0.05/ 1t 2 @R
([E3@R% 1) 20,000,000,000 1,000,000 20,000,000,000 1,000,000
Redeemable convertiole preferred shares of HK$0.01 EFARTEIEO.01/8 7T < AT fE B AT 82
each (‘Preferred Shares’) mELR(MELR]) 6,000,000,000 60,000  6,000,000,000 60,000
Total st 26,000,000,000 1,060,000 26,000,000,000 1,060,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
Ordinary Shares L@ 9,496,332,726 474817  8,864,332,726 443217

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued capital during the years

BE_ZT_ZTFR_FT-NF+-_A=1+—

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows: BIEFEARBBETRAZSHHMMT
Issued Capital BRI
Number of
Ordinary Share
Shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
BT
EBREE CSRTRE RORER At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FTAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-h&—HF—H 8,847,924,726 442,396 4,199,052 4,641,448
Issue of ordinary shares BITEEAR ) 16,408,000 821 11,510 12,331
Dividend paid ERRE - - (1,667,102)  (1,667,102)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NF
+-A=+—H 8,864,332,726 443217 2,543,460 2,986,677
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBAR (b) 632,000,000 31,600 173,800 205,400
Dividend paid BERRE = = (298,505) (298,505)
At 31 December 2020 i
+-A=+—H 9,496,332,726 474817 2,418,755 2,893,572
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31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@ 16,408,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options during the
year of 2019 for proceeds totalling HK$9,198,000. The proceeds of such issues had been applied
towards general working capital of the Group.

(b) 632,000,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon conversion of part of the perpetual
convertible bonds during the year of 2020.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

() Share option scheme of the Company

(A) 2010 share option scheme

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a share
option scheme (the “2010 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the 2010 Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant,
business associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive

or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary, who, as
the board of directors or a committee comprising directors and members of the
senior management of the Company (as the case may be) may determine in its
absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of the Group based
on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors,
and subject to such conditions as the board of directors or such committee (as the
case may be) may think fit.

The overall limit on the number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2010 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,

in aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue from time
to time. In addition, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted together with all options to be granted under
the 2010 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Ordinary Shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2010 Scheme (the “2010 Scheme
Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time, refresh the 2010 Scheme
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in general meeting.
Once refreshed, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Scheme and all other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed
10% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment by the Shareholders.

The 2010 Scheme Mandate Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Ordinary Shares
following the approval of refreshment by the Shareholders on 16 June 2017.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

()  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(A) 2010 share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of Ordinary Shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the 2010 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the Ordinary Shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2010 Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the board of directors or such committee, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board
may otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required under the 2010
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Ordinary Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Ordinary Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary
Shares.

The 2010 Scheme was valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 29 June 2010 and expired on 29 June 2020. Upon expiry of the 2010
Scheme, no further share options should be granted thereunder. The share options
granted under the 2010 Scheme which remained outstanding immediately prior

to the expiry of the 2010 Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of grant and the 2010 Scheme.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(B) 2021 share option scheme

On 18 January 2021, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a
new share option scheme (the “2021 Scheme”) for the purpose to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions that participants have made or may make to the
Group, to provide incentives and/or reward to participants for their contributions
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and/
or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group. Participants of the
2021 Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business associate
or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise contributes to
the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who, as the Board

or a committee comprising Directors and members of senior management of

the Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute discretion, is
regarded as valuable human resources of the Group who has made important
contributions to the development of the Group based on his work experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors, and subject to such
conditions as the Board or such committee (as the case may be) may think fit.
The 2021 Scheme will remain in force for period of 10 years commencing on 18
January 2021,

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2021 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition,

the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options

to be granted under the 2021 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all
the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2021 Scheme (the “2021
Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time, refresh the

2021 Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting. Once refreshed, the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2021 Scheme and all other
share option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must not
exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment by the Shareholders. On the basis of 9,496,332,726 Shares in issue
on the date of adoption of the 2021 Scheme, the maximum number of shares
that may be issued upon exercise of share options that may be granted under it
is 949,633,272 Shares. As at the date of this report, the share options available
for grant under the 2021 Scheme is 661,033,272, representing 6.96% of the
existing number of issued Shares.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

()  Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(B) 2021 share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the 20271 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2021 Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the Board or such committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may otherwise
determine, there is no minimum period required under the 2021 Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the 2010 Scheme during the
year:

At 1 January 2019 R-—E—N&F—H—H
Granted during the year RERIR D
Forfeited/expired during the year REREUL FIHA
Exercised during the year RERNTTHE
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZ—ZT—h4F
+—A=+—8k
—E-FF—HF—H
Forfeited/expired during the year EAEW/XJ%Z/ 1| &5
At 31 December 2020 KRB -_TF
‘1’ )EJ +—B

Notes:

@ The fair values of the share options granted under the 2010 Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2019 were HK$868,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as at the respective
dates of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted, the valuation of which was performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal
Limited. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) B (%)

Expected volatiity (%) TEERR 18 (%)

Expected life of options (years) FEIETE AR A ()
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 5 PR 2R (%)

Equity-settied share option expenses of HK$5,862,000 (2019: HK$10,377,000) was recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of the share options granted
under the 2010 Scheme.

(b) 94,729,000 (2019: 283,814,000) share options granted under the 2010 Scheme were
forfeited/expired during the year ended 31 December 2020 upon the resignation of certain grantees
during the year.

© Nil (2019: 16,408,000) share options granted under the 2010 Scheme were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

(d) As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 126,425,000 share options outstanding under
the 2010 Scheme, which represented approximately 1.3% of the Ordinary Shares in issue as at 31
December 2020.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)
(€) The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding under the 2010

Scheme as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020

Number of options
IBREHE
('000)

(F1)

64,425

20,000

2,000

20,000

20,000

126,425

2019

(000)
(F2)
1,304
76,925
76,925
20,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
20,000

20,000
221,154

*

Exercise price*
TEE>

(HK$ per share)
(ER%ET)
0.8

0.478

0.478

0.49

0.49

(HKS per share)
(BlR#ETT)
0.8

08

08

0478

0478

0478

0478

0.49

0.49

Exercise period
TEHARA

20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021
5 Sep 2019 to 4 Sep 2021
15 Aug 2020 to 14 Aug 2022
5 Sep 2020 to 4 Sep 2022

5 Sep 2021 to 4 Sep 2023

20 Jun 2017 to 19 Jun 2020
20 Jan 2018 to 19 Jan 2020
20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021
5 Sep 2019 to 4 Sep 2021
15 Aug 2020 to 14 Aug 2022
15 Aug 2021 to 14 Aug 2023
15 Aug 2022 to 14 Aug 2024
5 Sep 2020 to 4 Sep 2022

5 Sep 2021 to 4 Sep 2023

The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of any

capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share capital of the
Company (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect of a transaction)
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the exercise in full of the outstanding share
options under the Scheme would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 126,425,000 additional Ordinary Shares and
additional share capital of HK$6,321,000 and share premium of HK$75,335,000,
before taking into account any transfer of share option reserve to the share
premium account,

() Share option scheme of a subsidiary

Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 592), operates a
share option scheme (the “Bossini Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the operations of the Bossini Group.

Eligible participants of the Bossini Share Option Scheme include executive
directors, non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors),
and other full-time or part-time employees of Bossini, and its subsidiaries. The
Bossini Share Option Scheme became effective on 12 November 2013 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Bossini Share Option Scheme and any other future
share option schemes of Bossini (excluding share options forfeited in accordance
with the terms of the Bossini Share Option Scheme or any other future share
option schemes of Bossini) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue on 12 November 2013, the date of the annual general meeting that Bossini
sought the approval of the shareholders of Bossini for the adoption of the Bossini
Share Option Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Bossini Share
Option Scheme was 162,077,939, which represented 10% of Bossini's shares

in issue at 12 November 2013. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each participant in the Bossini Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of Bossini in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject

to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(I1) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
Bossini, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of Bossini, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of Bossini in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of Bossini’'s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by

the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share
options granted during the term of the Bossini Share Option Scheme and remain
unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the Bossini
Share Option Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of grant within the exercise period for which such options are granted,
notwithstanding the expiry of the Bossini Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of Bossini's
shares on the date of grant of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of Bossini’s shares for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of Bossini's shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders” meetings.

At the time of acquisition of Bossini by the Group, all outstanding share options
of the Bossini Share Option Scheme were cancelled or lapsed under the Offers,
which the Offers were closed on 14 August 2020. As at 31 December 2020,

there was nil outstanding share option under the Bossini Share Option Scheme.
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30. PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The perpetual convertible bonds issued are as follows:

30. KAMAHBRES
BT KAMTREERNT -

2020 2019

—EEF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Perpetual convertible bonds KA PR E A 933,646 1,139,046

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into the Deed with Victory Mind Assets
Limited and Dragon Gity Management (PTC) Limited to advance the timetable for
the possible issuance of eamn-out perpetual convertible bonds in relation to the
acquisition of approximately 25.2% equity interest of Li Ning Co in December
2012. The execution and performance of the Deed were approved in the
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on 4 November 2013. The earn-
out perpetual convertible bonds with a fair value of HK$1,140,000,000 were
issued in advance in November 2013 and were classified as equity and the related
derivative financial liabilities were derecognised at the same time, the financial
impact of which was based on the fair value of earn-out perpetual convertible
bonds upon the Deed becoming effective.

Perpetual convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$205,400,000 were
converted into 632,000,000 Ordinary Shares during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: nil),

31. RESERVES

(i) The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) The share option reserve represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of
share-based payments in Note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-owned enterprise, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s wholly-owned-subsidiary which is established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.
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EEAXRIBEZHRHES ©



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT
As lessor

As at 31 December 2020, the Group leased sports park facilities and investment
property to independent third parties under operating lease arrangements, with

each lease negotiated for a term of 2 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

32. KEMERH

ERHAA

R-Z_FTF+_A=+—8 ' AKERE
REEERNBLE =7 HHBEERE
éﬁ&éﬁ'«?’/ﬂ% BERMELERRA/H2E0

‘c_?_gi)} E-NFT-_HA=+—
- SR AR A 5 3T 37 A B A

follows: %ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ,ﬁﬂz =Ry Yeseliwicken
wEmr

2020 2019
—E-TF —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Within one year —FR 11,394 4,684
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFLF(BIEEERT) 6,389 9,650
Over five years AEL L 2,726 3,216
20,509 17,550

33. COMMITMENTS FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT/CAPITAL

EXPENDITURE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had the following commitments

for property development and capital expenditure:

33. EHERE EARMHIAIE

RZE_EFER_ZFE-—NF+_A=+—
H AXEBBRAUNTEHERZENERNFS
A

2020 2019
et et ¥:3 —E—_hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4MBRBHE ¢

Property development/construction work FHERZE ZETE 10,026 18,576

Capital contribution/acquisition of joint ventures/  JE% EEHBER
associates 17,349 571,504
27,375 590,080
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with related parties in the ordinary
course of business during the year:

34, EXBAEALRS

BRIt B M ok E FF 0 Praf il 2 X Z5h
AEBEAREXRBBRIETEEEEALTE
TTATEARRS :

2020 2019

—B-%% —B-hE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5T FExT FHT
Marketing service income received and B U K JEURES & X B) 2 TG 1

receivable from associates & BRFS U (i 199,695 318,998
Cost of purchases paid and payable to an 21+ R FEA — B A 7] 2 R

associate BEA (il 7,543 6,237

Sales of goods to a subsidiary of an [ — A B 8 R B) 2 — R P /BB

associate NEHEE m (i) 3,974 -
Office and car-park rental expense paid Bt REMEZE AR ZHPHAE

and payable to associates RizsHEizHEMAX% (iv) 1,947 1,987

Dividend received from associates AL =l/NC] i $) (v) 68,058 50,523
Consultatory fee received and receivable B U & FE UL —FREIBE &2 A B 2 7%

from an associate ARG E (vi) 586 -
Consultancy fee paid to an associate BT —REBEE R R 2 B AR

b=y (vi) - 7,820

Compensation cost paid to an associate 24— & A & 2 BER (vii) - 15,506
Trademark assignment fee paid to an EfN—MBE AR 2 HiZEE

associate = (vii) - 1,455

Acquisition of a subsidiary I iE— MM B AR (ix) - 290,000

i) Marketing service income in relation to some sports events and competitions and the
endorsement of brand products of LN Group and Double Happiness managed by the Group received
and receivable from LN Group* and Double Happiness®, was charged in accordance with the terms
negotiated between the related parties.

(il Cost of purchases in relation to brand products of LN Group™ paid and payable to LN Group*,
was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and LN Group*.

(iif Sales of goods in relation to brand products of the Group received and receivable from LN
Group®, was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and LN Group™.

(v)  During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group leased certain offices and

car-parking spaces from LN Group™ and Double Happiness™. The lease rates were determined after
am's length negotiations between the related parties with reference to current prevailing market rate.

v) The dividend received were made pursuant to the dividend rates proposed and declared by Li
Ning Co and Double Happiness.

() The consultancy fee was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement entered into
between the Group and an associate.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

) HEHARBEEZETRERANEERS
BEEERAEE s mRERREMATERE R
S WE R TS HEEREUARBERAL
B IE Z AR UER ©

i) EBENfEREMEEEENZEEE REEME
BB E R E E =L E E A EFURER -

iy BREREKFEEENAKEREERE D
$HE SRR AN SR B BR A B R )10 T M R R MR

vy REEZZFEZZFRZZTE—NF+ZA=
+—BHLFE AEEHATEEE RAEE"
ZETHAEREEM - WBRESTIHABTNA
2ERITHIH KA FERERERT -

() CBREEDREFEATAMMIEERZEIE
IR Z BB ERMETE ©

V) FEARGEREANEEE-RBEZE QR
2 W Y BN URER
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(vii)  The compensation cost was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement entered
into between the Group and an associate.

(vii)  The Trademark assignment fee was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement
entered into between the Group and an associate.

(X} Acquisition of Rise Mode Investments Limited which is engaged in the business of
management and operation of ice skating rinks from Lion Woods Limited (“Lion Woods")™, was
completed in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and Lion Woods.

* Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin, the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, are common directors of the
Company, LN Group and Double Happiness.

* Lion Woods is wholly owned by Mr. Li Chun who is an elder brother of Mr. Li Ning and the
father of Mr. Li Qilin. Lion Woods and Mr. Li Chun are associates of Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qiin and
are therefore connected persons of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The transaction also
constituted a connected transaction and the Company has completed with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. For details of the transactions, please refer
to announcements dated 22 July 2019, 9 October 2019 and 22 November 2019 and the circular
dated 27 November 2019.

(@) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as included in revenue, other
income and other gains-net, trade debtors and bills receivable are disclosed in
Notes 5 and 19 to the financial statements.

Included in prepayment, deposit and other receivables (2019: interest in associate)
was an amount of HK$nil (2019: HK$5,522,000) due from an associate. The
amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest-free, had no fixed terms of
repayment.

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

3. ERBAEALTRS (&)
(i) B EAR B AN g H B — R A A FIET S
B IESZUER o

i)y  PREEBERBEASERE MBS QAR
B 1555 O 1R SR URER o

() ELion Woods Limited ([Lion Woods]) *UtiE F 1=4&
EAERAR(MEERREEBKSNER)NSE
T8 - THARHR NS B ERLion WoodsFE B AU IEFRARR ©

. FELERFHEBEIE(ZTELENET)S
ARR) FEEERAEEZHRAES -

** Lion WoodsFEZ# 4 (AL L 2
BABRSCAE 2 ) 2B A © Lion Woods & 23 5L 4 5
TEAEREEBAE CBE A - WAL AGIME
MREBTIARARZHEBAL - XS IVEKEER
% BARBERIBECGEM LR FE20E TR E
Tk - BER SR FRMABHMA-Z—INF
tA=Z+=8 2 NWF+ALEERZ=ZZT—NF
+—AZ+=ZAMAERABMAE=ZE—NE+—A
—t++BREEK -

(a) BIEALZR{MAEE

REBG ARE - Bl A R E bl =%
B RBURERRERERZBEBEALTESRZ
B RERM TR E -

FEU —FE Bt 2 R B RIETBT( T~
% : 5,522,000/ 7C) It AR TR - BE M
Hip R IR ( —F—NF  REE QA2
g73) o BB E QRN RIBESEER - %
S REEEERHAR -
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Details of directors’ emoluments and highest paid individuals are included in Notes
8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

Apart from the transaction disclosed in Note (ix), the other related party
fransactions set out in this note did not fall within the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In July 2020, the Group acquired 1,093,091,098 shares of Bossini, representing
approximately 66.6% of the entire issued share capital of Bossini as at 21 July
2020, for consideration of HK$46,620,000. Following completion, the Group
made a mandatory unconditional cash offer for all the issued shares of Bossini
and an offer to cancel all outstanding share options of Bossini. The Offers were
closed on 14 August 2020 and additional 748,148 shares were acquired for
consideration of HK$38,000. The Group holds approximately 66.5% of the total
number of issues shares of Bossini immediately after the close of the Offers.
Bossini and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the retail and distribution of
casual wear garments.

The Group believes that the apparel consumer market in the PRC has immense
market potentials given the increasing public awareness of health and well-being
lifestyle of the population across all ages. With the profound experience possessed
by the management team of the Group and also the long-established household
name of Bossini in the region, the Board believes that there would be much
synergy between the business of Bossini and that of the Group in penetrating the
PRC markets for Bossini's products, and the crossover of intergroup products and
sales after completion of the acquisition.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and gain on bargain
purchase are as follows:

BENE
BEfNHE

Purchase consideration
Cash paid

34. EXBEALRS (#)

(b) FAEEEFEEEASZHMH
FREEMEMESFALZFARE - 2RIH
R F R I RES 9

BRETREMPTIR BB Z N - A EPTEl 2 B
RE A LRSI NBNGEM E MR AIFE20E
HTEEIBERS X FHERERS ] -

35. EKEH

R-ZE-TF+ A AEENUNR(E46,620,000
75 T Uk B R BE A9 1,093,091,098 R AR 17+ 49
HERMER S _ZTF+A-+—H2IE
EITIRANEY66.6% » MTEKE © ANEBETEM
BRI EETRMOELBHIMEEIKHERE
BAREHEERMBERNFTA M ATTEERED
T REBON-_E_ZTFENA+UBEE
1F - LARR{E 38,0008 T B8 IR BE 748,148 AR i%
D - BEZFENERE  AEEHEEM
BEC B 1TARID HA BN #966.5% - RIRE R E M B
NAIEERERERMGZTER D

PEE B FiIRERN AR B MBI ERKER
EEAN  ARERRTBEREEEM ST
EERNMHESN  MEAKENEEEE
BHEAEELR  ARFEEEAENE X
WMEEE EFERS  EMEMNRBEASK
BOXK(HEMENERZSBTEMSM
SIZHEREBARREEMREIE - AN
WiEEREHNHERELRENHEEM -

BEAE - TRECEEFEREEWER
mZAFB

HK$'000
TAT

46,658

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 35 EKESst@)
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows: AWEEEERACEERBENT ¢
Fair value
AFE
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMASEEY 170,753
Investment properties REYSE 205,100
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 24,593
Right-of-use assets FREEE 153,089
Trademark L 14,000
Inventories FE 219,960
Prepayment, deposits, trade and other receivables TANFIE e  BRERERX
H th & WK I8 184,975
Restricted bank balances PR I 1 SR T A5 B 57
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRBREATFENECYEEE 546
Deferred tax assets BEETIBE E 389
Trade payables, other payables and accruals FERERER - EfENRIERETEA (173,021)
Borrowing BE (54,829)
Lease liabilities HEAE (273,064)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss FRBREATEFEZHKEE (7)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMIBA G (33,770)
Net identifiable assets acquired P i o] 28 51 & = 558 438,771
Less: gain on bargain purchase B BN (245,300)
non-controlling interest FEPERRAE 2 (146,813)
46,658
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the acquired intangible assets, investment properties and
inventories of HK$14,000,000, HK$205,100,000 and HK$219,960,000
respectively and deferred tax of HK$32,997,000 has been provided in relation to
these fair value adjustments.

(i) Acquisition-related costs
Acquisition-related costs of HK$6,548,000 are included in administrative expenses
in profit or loss.

(ii) Acquired receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is HK$63,022,000 and includes
trade receivables with a fair value of HK$42,129,000. The gross contractual
amount for trade receivables due is HK$15,563,000 of which nil is expected to
be uncollected.

(iii) Non-controlling interest
The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interest at the proportion
of net assets acquired shared by the noncontrolling interest.

(iv) Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$421,026,000 and net loss

of HK$72,724,000 to the Group for the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2020. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2020, consolidated
revenue and consolidated profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2020
would have been HK$1,262,282,000 and HK$912,789,000 respectively.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

35 EKSOt@E)

BWBETEE REVERGFEZAFE
2 Bl A14,000,0007 7T -~ 205,100,000 7T &
219,960,000 7T ki i E A FEFAEFTIRE
FEFRIE32,997, 0005 T ©

() WEBHERERZS
Yt B 48 A A 486,548,000/ TT B 5t AR &R A9 1T
BT °

(i) FrURiBREURTRIE
EWREFREREMERZKBEBZAFES
630220008 T EF RELAFEAE
42,129, ooo;‘%ﬁé@ﬁ@ﬂ&iﬂﬁm FIHR IR BR SR 2
A #4E{E A15,563,000/ T © BRI EFBET
AR El &5 o

/

(i) FeiEBRAERS
AEEERILIEERESGMEEEETE
2 LB R IEIE IR i 2 ©

(iv) U RinF SR
RSN WERE S -_TF+ A=
+—BHRAAREB BB U421,026,00078
TC R EE A B8 R B 72,724,00058 7T ° fHURESE
IEBA_v_QE A—B%4  AIEE—-Z

TFE+ A=+ HILFENGRAKRENR
i*/\[ﬁ%%mé,ﬁnfrlJﬂﬁ’“ﬂlJﬁ 262,282,000 7T &
912,789,000/ 7T °



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

36. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR- 36. THEASEEEREAE

SALE
The management of the Group decided to sell a parcel of vacant land adjacent to 21x EEEREATHE BRI G MNETEE
Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park which was originally acquired for commercial and EENZEE i - 2T RVIBKEBIES

residential development of Yangzhou sports community. The Group has initiated an MNEBHROBELTEERRE - A&EEEE
active program to locate a buyer for selling Yangzhou Viva Property Development e E) — I E  MEERNUNEESMNIE

Limited (the “Target Company”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group NEMERZER AR (BEEAR])  ZA

holding the vacant land. The associated assets and liabilities were consequently A AEEREE TN AERIEEEHBA

presented as held for sale in the financial statements. 7 RHIt c MEEAENBERUMBHREFTE
P RIFERE -

On 16 March 2021, Viva China Yangzhou Community Development Holdings E’\_E:—E_ B+7xB &R TiEiﬁﬁﬁ

Limited (the “Seller”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered NEIZEALF G ML RFABIZERERA

into the share purchase agreement with Yangzhou City Huacheng Property (faﬁJ)Eﬁi%—)llﬁﬁéi&%ﬂﬂFﬁ?‘ﬁBﬁ

Development Limited (the “Buyer”), pursuant to which the Seller agreed to sell and (B H DT XD B B sk - 1Bt - EEH
the Buyer agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital in the Target Company ﬁﬁﬁ CMEAREBKRBEEARZEEE

at a consideration of RMB313.69 million. TRA - RERAKKE313,690,0007T °
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 March BB BR2HARARBHA-ZT——F
2021. ZA+ARBZRE -
36(a) Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale 36(a) P EASELESEE
2020
—ECEF
HK$'000
FET
Stock of properties YERFE 305,411
Other receivable H b U FRIR 640
Total FEE 306,051
36(b) Liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale 36(h) 7 ERBELASRE
2020
—EEF
HK$'000
FETT
Other payables HEMATEH 39
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020:

Company name

RAREH

Viva China Development Limited
(previously known as Viva China
Holdings Ltd)

ERFEERFRAF
(B17& Viva China Holdings Ltd)

Winner Rich Investment Limited

AMEREBRRAT
Viva China Sports Holding Limited

FRFEBEERERAR

Viva China Community Development Holdings
Limited

ENFBEHRAZEZERARA

Viva China Community Development
(Yangzhou) Holdings Limited

IE R A A I B 3 (M ) 1R
BRAT

Viva China Yangzhou Community
Development Holdings Limited

N BEGMNH RFEERERLD
5

BMEREHEREBRAA

Wm#ﬁ EELEXBRAR
]

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

AL, R

RERBE

BVI

RERAES
Hong Kong
B0

Hong Kong
B0

BVI
RERLHE
BVI

RERIES

Hong Kong

BB

PRC
P

PRC

HE

Issued
ordinary
shares/paid up
capital

BITE ﬁﬂﬁ/
HERK

US$1 &
HK$2,079,000,000

137t % 2,079,000,000
BT

HK$1
1787

HK$520,000
520,000 7T
US$1
(EH
US$20

20%7T

HK$10,000

10,000 7T

RMB210,000,000
ARE
210,000,0007C

RMB500,000

(Note i)

AR E500,0007T
(P

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

A 55 ¥ 22 Pl 5

37. MBATFHIE
_7_%$+ A=
SHIRUNT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
FRREERETBDE

Direct Indirect

=% %
100%

100% -

100% -

100% -

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 100%

T—BXEMBARG

Principal
activities

IBRE

— Investment holding

REZR
Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding and sports
talent management

REZRRBEATER
Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Property development

i ER %

Sports event organisation and
operation

BERDAEGBREZE
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

DRER

BNFENBEXLARRDT

BrENBEEEBRAAF

ERBURELARRAA

KEREERREEEARAAF

FNEURERRAULRERAF

TR BBBESEELERE
BRDA (AL RN RMEL
E#AFRAR)

KERZEEERUEHERLA

KEREREEHERAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

AL R
SEESE
PRC

e

PRC

P

PRC

e

PRC

P

PRC

P
PRC

HE

PRC

HE

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
ERTEER
BRERAE
RMB300,000

AR ¥300,0007C
RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

AR
100,000,0007T

RMB102,100,000
(Note ii)

AR
102,100,0007T
(B zEi)

RMB25,000,000

AR #25,000,0007T
RMB150,000,000

AR
150,000,0007T

RMB38,000,000

(Note iv)

AR #38,000,0007T
(B &Eiv)

S il 35 #h = B 5

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

37. KB ARFE@E

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

KAREGRREAT DL
Direct Indirect

Hi e
= 100%

= 100%

= 80%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal
activities

EX:3 )

Sports park management and
operation

BEEEREREE

Sports park management and
operation

EERERNEE

Sports park management and
operation

EERERNEE

Project investment and property
development consultancy
services

EH%E&%WE%%%%
i

Sports talent management,
competition and event
production and management,
and sports-related marketing
and consultancy service

BEATER  BERE
HREREEREER
M5 B XA SRS

Provision of development
consultancy services

PR RS AR

Marketing and sales of
construction materials

Mz S EENREE

Marketing and sales of
construction materials

Mz EEREE
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

RREH

KBEZFNRREE ULERR
BRAEEDLEREGY)

KEFAREREERERAA

KEREFAZEREERARD
Gl

FLEBCRS) REPRERARA

A

HEMREREULAERRA

HETEEREULERRA

REmEERE UL EREARAL
/NG

=

~ S

EBAIRRERERRA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

AL,
SEESE

PRC

i

PRC

i

PRC

P E

PRC

P E

PRC
ki
PRC

e

PRC
ki

PRC

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
ERTEER
BRERA
RMB125,000,000

AR
125,000,0007T

RMB12,000,000
AR #12,000,0007T

RMB3,500,000
(Note iii)
AR#3,500,0007T
(i)

RMB2,000,000
(Note v)

AR%2,000,0007
(Bittv)

RMB300,000
ARE300,0007T
RMBO (Note vi)

AREOTT
(Bt aEi)

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,0007T

RMB100,000

AE#100,0007

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

S il 35 #h 2= i 5

37. MBATFHEBE@

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

RATEMBRAT A
Direct Indirect
HE %
- 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 70%

= 100%

= 100%

= 70%

= 80%

Principal
activities

FERE

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REZK

Provision of scientific physical
rehabilitation training and health
management services

REUEIB R RE R KRR
RERRS

Sports park management and
operation

BEEERREE

Sports park management and
operation

BEEEREREE

Sports park management and
operation

BEEERREE

production and distribution of
sports content, management
and marketing of sports talents

BENDRUERET - 8
BEATBRRMSHE
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

DRER

LERERERBRAERAA

fREBRE(ER)E

RRBRE (L8)BKELETER

3

REMRERAREBEARBRLTF

BOTEARABEEREBRAD

MNEEEEXLERRA

#HMNTRAZBABEULER

3

HEMEPERKES
=

RYIMIEN BB

REEBRNEXARD

BERBRA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

AR
REXRH

PRC

i
PRC
T
PRC
T

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
Gl

PRC
i
PRC
o

PRC
i

PRC

HE

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
ERTEER
BRERAE

RMBO (Note vi)
AREOT
(B &vii)

RMB14,312,160
AR¥14,312,1607T

RMB5,000,000
AK#5,000,0007T

RMBS5,000,000
AR5 000,0007T

RMB500,000
AR#500,0007T

RMB500,000
AR #500,0007T

RMB500,000

AR #500,0007T
RMB5,000,000
AE#5,000,0007T

RMB500,000
A K #500,0007C

RMB17,150,000

Note vi)
AR#17150,0007T
(B =Hvii)

S il 35 #h = B 5
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37. KB ARFE@E

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

ARFARERAEDH

Direct Indirect
EE 2
- 80%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 70%

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3R

Principal
activities

EX:3 )

production and distribution of
sports content, management

and marketing of sports talents

BENDRUERET B

BATERRmSHEE

Operation of ice-skating rinks
BB

Operation of ice-skating rinks
EEBNE

Operation of ice-skating rinks
LB R KS

Operation of ice-skating rinks
#ERIKE

Operation of ice-skating rinks
LiER KIS

Operation of ice-skating rinks
EEBNE
Operation of ice-skating rinks
EEBAE

Operation of ice-skating rinks
BB

manufacturing of shoes

LEET
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 37. MEA RS @

202

Place of
incorporation/ Issued
registration ordinary
and shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
Company name operations capital attributable to the Company activities
A AR R ERTEER
ARER REE I HERREX EAREEREESL FEEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE %
BNEERREERARAH PRC RMB825,000 = 82.5% production and distribution of
(Note ix) sports content, management
and marketing of sports talents
I AR #825,0007C BENRRUERET - B
(B i) BATER RS E
Active Link Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 53.2% Retailing and distribution of
garments
SAERRRAT s 5,000,000 7T KKEERDH
Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 53.2% Retailing and distribution of
garments
s 28T KKEERDH
Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 53.2% Retailing and distribution of
garments
BEENHARAT EB 18T KKEE RS H
Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 53.2% Retailing and distribution of
garments
BRECERRAA EE 28T KKEE RS H
Bossini International Holdings Limited Bermuda HK$164,383,000 = 53.2% Investment holding
BREEREEER AR BRE 164,383,000/ 7T REER
Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 53.2% Distribution of garments
B 2B KK 8
Bossini Investment Limited BV US$11,928 = 53.2% Investment holding
EERTHE 11,9283 7T REZR
Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 53.2% Retailing and distribution of
garments
BRRE EXBRERAH B 2BTT KKEERDH
Bossini Retail Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 53.2% Retailing and distribution of
garments
BB 28T RKXEERDH

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

DRER

Bright Star Fashion Limited
BEREARLA

Burling Limited
BRBRAF

BHMEMEEXERA

BNEREESHERRA

J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd.

J & R Bossini Holdings Limited
BREEEARAR]

Kacono Trading Limited

Key Value Trading Limited

Land Challenger Limited
AEBRAR

Lead Commence Limited
MREEBR AT

Rapid City Limited
BRAMHBR AR

)|

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

AL
REXRH

BV
RBEAHS

PRC
I
PRC
I
Singapore
IR

Hong Kong
e

BVI
RBRIES

B
RBELHS

Hong Kong
5

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
ERTEER
BRERAE
MOP$25,000
25,0008 7T

US$100
1003ETT

RMB1,010,000
AE#1,010,0007T
RMB148,000,000
AE#148,000,0007T
562,000,000
2,000,000%T 3% 7T

HK$2
2B TT

HK$2,000
2,0007%8 7T

US$100
1003% 7T

HK$2
28T

HK$2
28T

HK$2
2B TT

S il 35 #h = B 5

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

37. KB ARFE@E

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

KAREGRREAT DL
Direct Indirect

Hi &
= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

= 53.2%

Principal
activities

EX:3 )

Retailing and distribution of
garments

KRTERDH

Licensing of trademarks

AR R

Retailing and distribution of
garments

KEREERDH

Retailing and distribution of
garments

KREERDH

Retailing and distribution of
garments

KREERDH

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding
REER

Retailing and distribution of
garments

KEREERDH

Property holding and letting
WEFANEE
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

() Theregistered capital of JRYITHFE/LEE R UL EZEBEBR AT is
RMB1,000,000.

(i) The registered capital of FEJL<EREEE B 2 R (1L ) A PR A /) is RMB150,000,000.
(i) The registered capital of BB ZEIENEBEIR A E R AR AT is RMB5,000,000.
(v Theregistered capital of BREHEZ M EE B R A A is RAMB100,000,000.

(v The registered capital of IESLIEEEER S BB R BERAR AR is
RMB3,333,333.

(i) The registered capital of FE BT BIZEEE B XL AR A R is RMB10,000,000.

(i) The registered capital of /8 IR 4848 AR A 7] is RMB100,000.

(vii)  The registered capital of 2REZEHX HEEZEHBR A 7] is RMB30,000,000.

(X  The registered capital of ER/NE S R R EE R AR AR is RMB1,000,000.

Apart from ZRBEEIENLBREBELEEREREEBPLEAR
&%) being registered as limited partnership, all the other principal subsidiaries of
the Company are registered as limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]

37. MIBATFEE @
B -

0 FRINTIEABEULEXERBR AR ZE
&4 A A R #1,000,0007T °

i) FEALEBEEERULR)BRARZEME
KA AR #150,000,0007T °

iy TREEZBFNESREETEERAG ZM
&R B AR EES,000,0007T °

M HEEFHREEZERAFRIEMERNBA
PR #100,000,0007T e

v FEAEBCGRHE)EERIRERBRARZE
&4 A A RES3333,3337T °

) FEETEEEBEXCARARZEMERS
AR#10,000,0007T

M) EERNEEEREAERARZEMERRA
FR#100,0007T °

viiy REBBENEEERARZEMERAEAR
#30,000,0007T °

i ENERRAMEBERERARDZEMELAR
AR #1,000,0007T ©

BRINEREENRREE VEXBRERE
ERALBRAER)EIMABEREEIN -
BARRIZEMEEMBAREEMAFR

RA] °

ERBINARBZHBAR EERA - %
EHBARSEBRHFAXEERTZE LA
RAEBEEEFELERED - EFRF
FIEAMMB AR 2 EHEEBRERNILER



38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

31 December 2020 —E-F&+—-A=+—H

38. RRRZHMBMRRREEEEED

2020 2019
—g-%% —2-nE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B RERE 2,066 204
Right-of-use asset FREEE 2,133 7,886
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZKE 1,376,837 1,376,837
Prepayment FE IR - 1,856
Deposits e - 1,939
Total non-current assets SEmBEEBE 1,381,036 1,388,722
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries JEUN B 8 A B FRTE 1,587,620 1,039,360
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT FIE - & R EHMFE
W RIE 49,474 47,162
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHER 1,220,396 153,247
Total current assets MBEERE 2,857,490 1,239,769
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Due to subsidiaries JEST B 8 A B FRIE 140,695 38,354
Lease liability HEEE 2,412 5913
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBRESER 6,157 6,014
Total current liabilities MEB R 149,264 50,281
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 2,708,226 1,189,488
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 4,089,262 2,578,210
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Due to a subsidiary e —REK B A E FIE 2,361,217 837,387
Lease liability HESE - 2,412
Total non-current liability JEmE A EERE 2,361,217 839,799
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,728,045 1,738,411
EQUITY E
Issued capital B TR A 28 474,817 443,217
Perpetual convertible bonds KA AT R (E A 30 933,646 1,139,046
Reserves R @) 319,582 156,148
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,728,045 1,738,411

The Statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the board of

directors on 22 March 2021.

RRABIZHBFRRAKRER T —F=A=
T REEFSHE -
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=Y =\
ik O

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

(@ Reserve movement of the Company

Bl 75 ¥5 2% Piid 53

38. ARFRzUBMRRKREFEEES

(&)
Bt -

@ ARFZHEEED

Convertible
Share premium  Share option notes equity  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
TRREE
BHRER BRERE RERfE 5 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET T TET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hF—A—H 4,199,052 103,010 90,392 (2.414772) 1,977,682
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss for the BT R F A2 EIESIEAEE
year - - - (132,519 (132,519
Shares Issued upon exercise of share option BRI FRETZRG 11,510 (3133) = = 8,377
Equity-setied share option aangements PARR R 5 2 BB A 2 b - 10,377 = = 10377
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture or A BBRR B G U Sk & i A 48 3%
explry of share options FERREGE - (53,430) - 53,430 =
Redemption of equity component of convertible notes BB AT H AR Z B LS BB & = = (90,392) 49,725 (40,667)
Dividend paid ERRE (1,667,102) - - = (1667,102)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE-NF+=RA=1+—H
RW=Z2=2F—F—H 2,543,460 56,824 - (2044136 156,148
Profit for the year and total comprehensive loss for the  £E P FI R FF N2 T ES 1R 488
year = - - 282,277 282,277
Shares issued upon conversion of peretual convertble 7k A M RTHRRR (551 34 Hames
bonds BT R1D 173,800 - - - 173,800
Equity-setied share option amangements VARG A & 2 BB AR IE Lot - 5,862 - - 5,862
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture or A BBRR R G U Sk fE i A 4 3%
expiy of shere options BREREE = (17,834) = 17,834 =
Dividend paid BERRE (298,505) - - - (298,505)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+=-A=1+—H 2,418,755 44,852 - (2,144,025) 319,582

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED A A ERZERER AT



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The Group does
not have written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors of the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures
to manage the Group’s exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. The Group

enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts.

The purpose is to manage the foreign currency risk arising from the Group's
operations. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are
discussed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets and liabilities in relation to cash at banks and bank
loans, details of which are disclosed in Notes 21 and 26, respectively, to the
financial statements. The Group has not used any financial instrument to hedge
potential fluctuations in interest rates. The exposure to interest rates risk for the
Group’s cash at banks and bank loans are considered minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument (excluding investment in associates) will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Macau and Singpaore. Most of the sales and trading transactions are settled in
RMB and HK$. Amounts invested into various bank deposits are denominated

in RMB and HKS. As at the end of the reporting period, foreign currencies were
translated into HK$ at the closing rate. As at 31 December 2020, cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB and domiciled outside the PRC amounted to
HK$73,478,000 (2019: HK$6,063,000), cash and bank balances denominated
in GBP amounted to HK$269,484,000 (2019: HK$nil), cash and bank balances
denominated in SG$ amounted to HK$23,541,000 (2019: HK$nil), cash and
bank balance denominated in MOP amounted HK$13,670,000 (2019: HK$nil)
and the remaining balance of HK$603,095,000 (2019: HK$643,176,000) was
mainly denominated in HK$ and domiciled outside the PRC or denominated in
RMB and domiciled in the PRC. Moreover, loan receivable denominated in GBP
amounted to HK$271,874,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$nil). It is
the Group’s policy to enter into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign
currency risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies other
than Hong Kong dollar. The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.

31 December 2020 —E-_F&F+-_A=+—H

39. BKEREEBERBEE
AREEERERBETEBRIEEZBHER

ZHBTRAZRBRER - AEEWEE®
ﬂﬁEIﬁEEﬁZﬁﬁ&TE%I o AT - ARREERS

EHRITEE  OMRHIETEENAEEARSE

BaXzmBRAR(BEIINEREER - FIXE
aREMERER)  RBESEBRREER
o —RME @ AEBERABERRERR

B c REBEFVZETER S @ TEBREER
HEKASY  EEMARERNASEEBKA
EEZINERE - NEBAR ZHEKNH
R T Xt o

%J?J‘Hfﬁ

%J Egﬁiﬁjﬁ%lﬂz $1ﬁ_‘zfﬁi/\m§
I&miﬁﬂ“@ﬁﬁﬁﬂjiﬁ&@zn e H -

$;‘%*ﬁ‘ﬁ§§?&ﬁﬁ B RIRTEER

IRITER - BEEFB D IR B REKMFE21
K26H T o ANEBEWARFEREMT BT A
@ﬁ&ﬂ+&ﬁ AEBERITREMRITE
K2 T R R AR B E R o

SMNEE LB
E¥ERETETA(NBERBEE AR ZER
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mxB 2Bk - AEBRHE - FE
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RERBTLEE - RERZREIRITZREIN
AREREITLEHE - RBEHR - INEIR I
TEXRKEABT N-TE-_TEE+-A=
+—8  WARBEELFERRFBEENZ
He RIBITESRATIA78000B T(ZE— N
£ 6,063,000/57T) » AEEEEMNIR S MR
174588 /5269,484,0008 L (ZE—NF : T8
TC) C AEFTIE TR EMIR G RIB1TTESR A
23,541,000 T T(ZFE—NF : TE L) ' R
Wﬁ%ﬁZﬁ@&ﬁﬁ%%%wmmm%ﬁ
—E—AF FE L) 0 MEREE603,095,000
Br(ZE— n¢6%wmm%mWE£
LA TTRHE X7 A P BIE I ek LA A R EE 5T
EXFRRAABEER N R -T4F
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to

foreign currency risk at year end date.

If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group
would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$6,287,000 (2019:
HK$14,068,000).

If GBP appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group would
be increased/decreased by approximately HK$22,663,000 (2019: HKS$nil).

If SG$ appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group would
be increased/decreased by approximately HK$983,000 (2019: HKS$nil).

If MOP appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group
would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$571,000 (2019: HKSnil).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligations under the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.
The carrying amounts of trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other
receivable carried at amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents included in
the face of the statements of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally has established long-term and stable relationships with its
customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products

are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group generally
allows credit period of one month extending up to six months to its major trade
customers. The credit risk of other receivables arises from that borrowers fail to
repay loans on time. The Group has assessed the credit status of each borrower
and the value of the collaterals has been taken into account when calculating the
provision for impairment. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been made in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks in Hong
Kong and the PRC, therefore the directors consider that the credit risk for such

is minimal. The credit and investment policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the Group’s
exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ L+ El1ZRE R 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model to financial assets measured at

cost, including trade debtors and bill receivable, deposits and other receivables

and cash and cash equivalent.

Impairment on trade debtors and bill receivables, and deposit and other receivables
is measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition. To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition by
considering available, reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Trade debtors and bill receivables, and deposit and other receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there

is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in payments, and the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

Trade debtors and bill receivables
To measure the expected credit losses, trade debtors and bill receivables has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

31 December 2020 —_E-_TF+_A=+—H

39. IBEREEEERBIE@®E
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FEW R K R R
R ERHEEEE BRI MERRE
EREXENEERRSEAMREDAE

Less than 3t 6 More than
3 months months 6 months
Current past due past due past due Total
BEOR BBSExX  ANE8 .
1 =f@A @A ~EA &%
31 December 2020 “ECTE+ZA=1-A
Expected loss rate BHBEX 0.2% 2.5% 33.3% 84.8% 16.5%
Gross carrying amount BEHE 61,610 13,858 8,319 15,452 99,239
Loss allowance ERBREE (132) (340) (2,770) (13,110) (16,352)
61,478 13,518 5,549 2,342 82,887
31 December 2019 “E-NE+ZA=t—-A
Expected loss rate BHERX 4% 5% 35% 29% 9%
(Gross carrying amount BEEmEE 113,239 70,696 21,453 14,994 220,382
Loss allowance BEEE (5,094) (3,844) (7,516) (4,304) (20,758)
108,145 66,852 13,937 10,690 199,624
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

39. BIEEMREEBERBEK @

The movement of loss allowances for trade debtors and bill receivables during the FA - BRERRERRE CEBEREZS
year is as follows: N
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T FHT
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 20,758 4,449
Net impairment loss (reversed)/recognised B (#E), 1R /)WEEE?E FE (5,765) 18,479
Deduction of previous impairment loss due to AR E B AR Bk
disposal of a subsidiary BB R - (2,186)
Currency translation difference ME 5 = RE 1,359 16
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 16,352 20,758
Deposits and other receivables e Kk H i WK
The management of the Group makes periodic collective assessments as well as REE EEE*ETF}EEE EE I MK

individual assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records and past experiences looking forward. The Group
measures credit risk using probability of default (“PD"), which is similar to the
approach used for the purposes of measuring expected credit loss (“ECL”) under
HKFRS 9.

o Deposits and other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1" and have their credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected credit loss is measured on a 12-month
basis.

° It a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when the debtor is more
than 1 day past due on its contractual payments) since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to
be credit-impaired. The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime basis.

° If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically, when the debtor is
more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments), the financial instrument
is then moved to ‘Stage 3'. The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and collection from them,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$118,983,000 are classified
in Stage 1 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$66,087,000) and the credit risk
inherent in these other receivables is not significant. The average loss rate of 2%
was applied as at the 31 December 2020 (2019: 2%).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For the remaining deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$113,236,000

as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$105,943,000), it was classified in Stage 3

and the loss allowance associated with these deposits and other receivables was

approximately HK$93,505,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$87,033,000).

The movement of loss allowances for deposits and other receivables during the
year is as follows:
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R-_E T+ - A=+—HNB TR RE
ft U8 5B 49 113,236,00078 70 (= B — L4 -
105,943,000/8 7T ) E DA B E =BEEL » MEE%
=g o H MO TR AR R A0 S B AR A —
T-ETF+ - A=+—H#%A93,505,000% T
(ZZ—h4% : 87,033,000/87T) °

FA - B REMEBRFAZ BREEEE
W

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

As at 1 January Rn—A—H 88,166 24,014
Net impairment loss (reversed)/recognised B (#E) TERREBIEFE 6,039 64,004
Currency translation difference MEH =58 631 148
As at 31 December N+ A=+—H 94,836 88,166
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31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its

obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash

or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of

settlement of trade payables, other payables and accruals and bank loans, also in

respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated basis by carefully
monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial liabilities as
well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day business. Liquidity
needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 3 months projection. Long-term liquidity
needs for a 180-day and 365-day lookout period are identified monthly. Net cash
requirements are compared to available funds in order to determine headroom or
any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available funds are expected to be sufficient
over the lookout period. The Group maintains cash and short-term bank deposits
to meet its liquidity requirements for 90 days to 365 days at a minimum. Funding
for longer term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of
borrowings and the ability to sell longer term financial assets. The Group’s liquidity
is mainly dependent upon the cash received from its trade customers.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in
full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Apart from the non-current bank loan disclosed in Notes 26 for the financial
statements, the maturity profile of the Group’s major financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is within one year or on demand and the confractual undiscounted payments
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group’s existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the

year, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rate) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay:
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39. KRBT R ZERBEK (@)

TRIRFRERGHRERASRE(BRE
EREMMEREFE 2 M BMK) 2 REREHF
HARAEEARERER &P -

2020
—§-%f
More than  More than
1yearbut 2 years but Total Garrying
Within less than less than Over  contractual ~ amount at
1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows 31 December
R+=A
BB-FE REREE ANBER  =T-H
-7 ORWE  OREF  BEIE EAE ZBEE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TAn TARL
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEREaE
Bank and other loans FIREMER 36,051 1,202,951 - - 1329902 1,256,000
Lease liabilties HEERE 155,922 82,217 96,428 205,273 539,900 408,788
Derivative financial liabilities TE%ERE
Forward currency confract EHERAN 456 - - - 456 456
2019
ZE-NE
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total Carying
Within less than less than Over contractual amount at
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years ash flows 31 December
R+=A
BE—FE  BERER s0ReR  =1-R
—EF  JIREE  OREE BRLE EgE  /KEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAT ThL
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEREEE
Bank and other loans FIRABER 63,150 63150 1,319,150 - 14450 1,256,000
Lease liabilies HEBE 25,001 21239 60,392 195,816 302,448 184,638
Derivative financial liabilities TEBERE
Optons it 2965 = - - 2965 2965
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value risk and disclosures

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group held certain derivative financial

instruments which are carried in the financial statements at fair value, as further

detailed in Notes 16 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

() Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

39. BIEEMREEBERBEK @

DN ERR KK E
HANER A AR 16 20 — it -
R-B_BER_F-AFt+t-_H=1—
B NEBERFEE TEHAFESAMBRER
ZOTHEMBE TR -

() R FERE
TRENAEER _Z_ZTFER_T-NF

TZA=t—BRAFEAENMBEER
BE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-R ;- Jot E= ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Financial assets at FVPL ERERRATENECHKEE
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+-A=1+—A
— Forward currency contracts - EHEEEN - 1,464 — 1,464
— Loan receivable —EIER - = 271,874 271,874
Total st - 1,464 271,874 273,338
Financial Liabilties at FVPL FRERRATENELIKEE
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ-_FF+-FA=+—H
— Forward currency contracts —RHEBEY - 456 - 456
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-NF+-A=+—H
— Options — By = = 2,965 2,965

There were no transfers among different categories during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group analyses the financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation

method. Different levels are defined as follow:

Level 1:

Level 2

Level 3:

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities.

() Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The fair value assessment methods and related key assumptions and judgements
adopted by the Group's management are income approach (specifically, discounted
cash flow method), which uses valuation techniques to convert future amount
(specifically, cash flows based on the expected rate of return) to a present value.
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A 55 ¥ 22 Pl 5

39. BIEEMREEBERBEK @

Fair Value
As at _ Significant As at
31 December Valuation unobservable 31 December  Range of inputs Relationship of
Description 2020 technique inputs 2020 unobservable inputs to fair value
HK$’000
DNFER
g 32 BEX BAREEE
+=-A=+—-H AABR R-Z2-2F AUHERABEBHE
i THT HERMN wARE T=ZBA=t—-HB AFEMNERE
Loan receivable 271,874 Discounted cash Discount rate 4.0%  The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
flow value.
A change in the discount rate by 10% does not
have a significant impact on the fair value as
at 31 December 2020.
RIS E R Eﬁ@?i%;‘ﬁ AR BREYR - ATEBE -
=
RRELEI0R TS HR —F_FF+
—RA=T+—HANATEERKEAY
2,
As at
31 December Significant As at
2019 Valuation unobservable 31 December  Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description HK$'000 technique inputs 2019 to fair value
RZTB—NEF E-DN
+ZA=+—H TRIEER RZZ-NF TREREHABERE
et FAT HERM LN 67 +ZA=+—H A2TFENERE
Option 2,965 Income approach Discount rate 13.0%  The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
value.
A change in the discount rate by 10% does not
have a significant impact on the fair value as
at 31 December 2019,
iif WANE BRI & BRREES - ATEYE

BREREH 09T EHR _T—LF
;1; A=t—BMAFEEREAY
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %38 Bl FEEREMISE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital

ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration

the future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditure, projected strategic investment opportunities and economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company

presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position as capital,

for capital management purposes. The amount of capital (total equity plus total
debt) as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$6,196,090,000
(2019: HK$4,500,233,000), which the management considers as optimal having
considered the projected capital expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.
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31 December 2020 —_E-_ZTF+_A=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified as financial asset/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in Notes 16 and 29 to
the financial statements, all financial assets and liabilities previously measured at
amortised cost which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost under
HKFRS 9, respectively.

40. ZERE S 2MBETA

PREF &M s 16 R20FT R BE D B RFE BB
BRATEAEZHBEE QB ITEN
BLTASN » FIA AT IR B ER A & 2 W5
BEMBENERBYBHRELEREIR MK
B D BBV RIT

41. DIVIDEND M. RE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEZ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiEx FHT

Special dividend of HK$0.0265 1551 IR B & 8%0.02657%8 7T

(2019: HK$0.148) per share —T—NF 0148 7T) 298,505 1,667,102

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

42. Subsequent Events

(@  On 16 March 2021, Viva China Yangzhou Community Development
Holdings Limited (the “Seller”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the share purchase agreement with Yangzhou City Huacheng Property
Development Limited (the “Buyer”), pursuant to which the Seller agreed to sell
and the Buyer agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital in Yangzhou

Viva Property Development Limited (“Target Company”) at a consideration of
RMB313.69 million.

For detalls, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 March
2021.

(b)  Pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into between
Viva China Consumables Limited (“Viva China Consumables” or the “Lender”,
formerly known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings Limited), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and LionRock Capital GP Limited acting in its capacity
as the general partner (the “General Partner”) of LionRock Capital Partners Qile
L.P. (the "Borrower” or “LionRock”) on 28 September 2020, the Lender has
agreed to provide a facility of GBP54,000,000 (the “Facility”) to the Borrower at
an interest rate of 4% per annum for financing the acquisition or subscription of
equity interests in a target company by LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (the
“SPV"), a company wholly owned by LionRock.
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42. Subsequent Events (CONTINUED)

On 15 March 2021, the Lender entered into a subscription agreement (the
‘Agreement”) with the Borrower and the SPV pursuant to which the Lender
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 510 shares of the SPV at a subscription price
of GBP51,000,000 (the “Subscription Price”, and the “Subscription”, respectively)
and acquire a shareholder’s loan (the "Purchase Shareholder's Loan”) from the
Borrower at a consideration of GBP51,000,000 (the “Consideration”, and the
“Shareholder’s Loan Transaction”, respectively). The Consideration payable by

the Lender to the Borrower shall be deemed to be satisfied at completion of the
Subscription (the “Completion”) by setting off an amount equal to the Consideration
against an outstanding amount of GBP51,000,000 which has been drawn down
and remains outstanding under the Loan Agreement (the “Outstanding Amount”).
Upon consummation of the Shareholder's Loan Transaction at Completion, the
Qutstanding Amount shall be deemed to have been irrevocably and unconditionally
repaid in full by the Borrower to the Lender in accordance with the terms of the
Loan Agreement and all unpaid interest which has been accrued pursuant to the
Loan Agreement shall be deemed irrevocably and unconditionally waived by the
Lender. The Subscription Price payable by the Lender to the target at Completion
shall be setting off an amount equal to the Subscription Price against the Purchase
Shareholder’s Loan, and the Purchase Shareholder's Loan owed by the SPV to
the Lender (being the new lender of the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan as from the
consummation of the Shareholder’s Loan Transaction) shall be deemed fully paid
and satisfied in full and Purchase Shareholder's Loan shall be terminated.

The SPV holds a majority interest in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”) which is

principally engaged in wholesaling and retailing of shoes and trading in the brand
name “Clarks”. Upon Completion, the target and its subsidiaries (including Clark)
will become indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 28 September 2020. For details of the Agreement, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 14 January 20271 and 15 March
2021,

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount of loan was HK$271,874,000
(equivalent to GBP25,726,000). As at the date of this report, the outstanding
amount of loan was HK$568,305,000 (equivalent to GBP53,776,000).

(c)  Grant of share options by the Company and a non-wholly owned subsidiary

On 18 January 2021, the Company has granted an aggregate of 288,600,000
share options to the directors and certain employees in respect of their services
to the Group in the forthcoming years. The share options have an exercise price
of HK$0.67 per share. 5,800,000 share options shall vest on 18 January 2021
and shall be exercisable for a period of two years after vested. The remaining
282,800,000 share options are subject to a vesting schedule in trenches of
one-third each on 18 January 2022, 18 January 2023 and 18 January 2024
respectively and shall be exercisable for a period of 5 years after vested according
to the respective vesting schedules. The price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant was HK$0.67 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on
the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the options.
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31 December 2020 —E-F&F+_-_A=+—H

42. Subsequent Events (CONTINUED)
Details of the above were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18
January 2021,

On 5 January 2021, Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 592),

has granted an aggregate of 90,000,000 share options to the directors and
certain employees of Bossini in respect of their services to Bossini Group in the
forthcoming years. The share options have an exercise price of HK$0.460 per
share. Each of the one-third of the share options is exercisable from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2026, from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 and
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026. The price of Bossini's shares at the
date of grant was HK$0.460 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the options.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini’s announcement dated 5 January
2021,

(d)  Proposed rights issue by a non-wholly owned subsidiary

On 5 February 2021, Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
592), proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$296 million before
expense by way of a rights issue of 821,916,697 rights shares at a price of
HK$0.360 per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2)
existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders on the record date.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcement dated 5 February
2021,
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Particulars of Properties

o —
M2 115

1) Stock of properties 1) YM¥HFE
Approximate Site

Location Group’s Interest Tenure Area (sq.m.)
Bt ERE

B rEEER THH (FE53K)

Guangling Xincheng, Yangzhou, 70% Medium to long term 23,334

Jiangsu Province of the PRC,

northwest to the intersection of

Binshui Road and Jianmin Road

FETERE 70% RHIERH 23,334

5 N T 2 B 3 K

BRI EERERX X AEILE

2) Investment properties 2) BEWE
Approximate Site

Location Group’s Interest Tenure Area (sq.m.)
B bR

B rEEER T (FE53K)

Units 1 and 2 on 8th Floor, 53.2% Medium term 3,903

Unit 1 on 9th Floor

Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor

Cheung Fung Industrial Building

No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

FAREE R HBIHE23-395% 53.2% HHj 3,903

RETEARESEIR2E  0B1E

R IEL1 257 RE L
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Five-Year Financial Summary

1 & B R 2
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and total equity of the UATEINAEBRBEREVRFEZEEN
Graup for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited EEHBEMERRENE @ TREEEALE
financial statements of the Group, is set out below: BB HIZS B HREk
RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=1+-HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—2-%F —B-NF —B-0\F Bt —B-AE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAET TET FAET FET
REVENUE Wz 819,036 625,004 1,134,584 612,467 552,208
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBATEF, (B18) 1,213,362 834,137 94,723 (108,863) 112,163
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ARAERRHA AREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF &7,/ (%&518)
THE COMPANY 1,192,392 834,366 76,982 (109,666) 103,630
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LSEHEE
31 December
+=A=t+-8
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EIEF ZE-hE ZEBE-N\F —ZEBE-+HF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FEL BT FET FEL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 3975162 3671737 3867676 3793409 3525815
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE 2,874,758 1,194,828 1,193,328 1,351,961 1,580,745
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE 694,864 327,551 290,979 296,774 635,634
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEEFE 2,179,894 867,277 902,349 1,055,187 945,111
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 6,849,920 4,866,565 5,061,004 5145370 5,106,560
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ BE/2ERTE & & 6,155,056 4,539,014 4,770,025 4,848,596 4,470,926
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS AN RIS A A
OF THE COMPANY G 43293711 3021297 3891137 4,003,132 3,718,317
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In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

“Board”
==

BV
[RERELES |

“China” or “PRC”

(B

“close associate(s)”
[EHEEA

“Company” or “Viva China”

[ARR] K FEAFE

‘connected transaction(s)”

[RERS ]

‘Directors”

(&%

‘GBP"
ES

“GEM”
[GEM |

“GEM Listing Rules”
[GEM =3 81l |

“Group”
[REE ]

“HKS
[#7E )

“Hong Kong”
[ &% ]

Glossary
50l &8

EAFRA - RXEREERAEI 0 T
SEA TFrEd 2 Mz

the board of Directors

-

the British Virgin Islands
EEBELHS

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan

FEARLME - RAFHRME - TREEE - FEARLMBRPIFRIT
B&Rk&E

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules
BB GEM_E TR BIFT AR, T 8 AB R R &

Viva China Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the GEM (stock code: 8032)

ERFRBRIERAER AR @ NASEEIMKZZ2ER AT @« EEZITRHL
GEM LT (B3 5% : 8032)

has the meaning ascribed to it in the GEM Listing Rules

BB GEM_E AR RIPT AR T3

the directors of the Company

RAFES

Pound sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom
BEE - BEUEEER

GEM of the Stock Exchange
B56 22 P GEM

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
GEME % M #5 Al

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRARREMB AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong
BT - BABEEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R R BRI TR
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Glossary si&

“Li Ning Co”
=0l

‘LN Group”
[FEEHEH ]

“LN Share(s)”
[ZFERG

“‘Macau”

(8P ]

‘MOPS”
[RFIT

“Reporting Period”
[REH

‘RMB”
AR

“SFO”
(% K2 (1

'S65"
[ A |

“Share(s)”
[ A& |

“Shareholder(s)”
BE

)

“Stock Exchange’
[ B 22 P |

‘US$’
ESy

oy
[%]

Li Ning Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued LN Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock

code: 2331)

ZEARAF RRASHESEMKZZERAR - HEZETZTEROR

FrER Em (AR - 2331)

Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries

FERRRENEB

NG

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co
FERNARAFEREEC10E T RN

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
A BB PR BT B =

Macau pataca , the lawful currency of the Macau
BT - RPVEEE

the period of 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

—E-EF—F—

Sl

= —=<

F+=-—A=+—HHMH

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - PRIAEER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 5771 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

BBEDI R E/E 75 MG R

Singapore dollars , the lawful currency of the Singapore

AT - FNEOAE B

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company

AR BIPAR FIRE{E0.05/8 7T <« EBAX

holder(s) of Share(s)
P SUESZEPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBBMERIMAERRAR]

United States dollars, the lawiful currency of the United States of America

ETT  EMBER
per cent
Bkt

ErEEER
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VIVA CHINA
VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

FAFEEZERBRAF

AREMHE

caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of So e
EEMERE 4

Room 3602-06, 36th Floor, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
BB T#BER 2005 ==+ LB BHAE 36123602-06=

http://www.vivachina.hk



